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A. Introduction
AL (_tapone, who was probably the most notorio‘us of America's
gangsters, aptly swm\ed up at the peak of his prospority the public's

amblvalent attitude toward organlzed chme " ['I‘] hey call Capon‘e a

3 ‘bootlegger. ..What's Al done" ‘He's supplled a leglt.unate demand. .o

Sane call it rackotoorlng. I call .L‘L a buslne ] A folk he:.o of the “

PIOhJ_blthn ora, (,aponc successfully hld h.‘LS truo self bcthd a benlgn

'publlc, Jmage as a servant of our 1111c1t deslres, and many were foolod

s:mc‘e they falled to cons:.der the ultlmate source of hls power +his

L w1lllngness to conmlt cold-blooded murder. Often, the V1olence was

| ratlonallzed as for example in the t:Ltle of Dean Jennlngs' 1967 popular ‘

blography of another rolk hero, the late Benjamln “Bugsy" ‘Slegel, "We :

‘Only Kill Each Other."'2 Unfortunately ' lJ.ttle changed in the publlc

' consc:u.ousness after PI‘OhJ.blthl’l, and 1t was poss:Lble in the l97()s for
gangster chic to ,supplant the radlcal‘ chlc of the 1_9605. i Too few ‘

| eyebrows were raised when“ a fashlorlable New Yorki hos‘tess Marta ‘Orbachj

1nv1ted a Mafla killer, Joseph Gallo, for regular Sunday brunches, where“

G opeoplc. like Dav1d Stelnberg, ‘the comedlan, or Nell Simon, the

‘ playwrlght, made‘ small talk—-at least‘ unt:Ll Gallo was gunned down o‘n' C
Aprll 7, 1981 as he celebrated hlS 43rd blrthday in Umberto s Clam oF

9 B House on Mulberry Street in Mz,urlhattan.3 Four mnths later, a short

‘ ‘stocky man walked :Lnto a bar in Manhattan took a s:Lp of water, set the

| ' glassdown, pu]."led out two plstols: and rlred *nlne bullets at a gl’_uup‘ of
b |

& ‘Kosher meat dealers, kJ.llmg “two and serlously wound:l.ng the othel to,

Appar(,ntly,‘ it was all‘ al traglc mlstake.{l‘ The Jew1sh bus:.nessmen had

‘ just ‘taken the place at the bar of four members of the Mafla ianu.ly of

Joseph Columbo, and Lhe gunman——so the pollce suggested——was out to



)

avenge the killing of Gallo, who had been at odds with Columbo. There

has never been a limit on the violence of organized crime. It can

‘affect anyone, and it has.

B. Mealung of Words |

"When I use a word," Lewis Carroll s Hulrpty Dumpty sa:Ld, "it means
what T choo;,e rt.‘ t,o,i ‘1‘uc-,an—-—-ne1‘ther more or. les.'s."5 LILkG Humpty Dumpty s
l‘anguacje, the term, "organized cr:ime,"' can mean whatever the speaker
chooses Lo make it mcan.6 It can be ubed to refor the to crimes
comnltted-—bootlegglng, gambllng, or prostltutlons, or :Lt can refer to

the cr:un.mal groups 'Luat_ Ch it them. A dlstlnCthI‘l 1s sometures drawn’ ‘

"between an organlzed crime. "enterprise," _Whlch engages :_1n ‘prov:Ld:Lng ,

illicit goods or services, and an organized crime "syndicate," which
requlates relat:i.ons between individual "enterprises"——allooating

Lerrltory, bettllng personal dlsputes, offerlng protectlon from r:Lval

‘groups and crlmJ nal prosecutlon. Syndlcates, ‘too, have been dlfferent

‘ types. 'I‘hey have been metropolltan, reglonal natlonal, or

1nternatlonal in scope, and they have been multl—serv:Lce or lJ.m:Lted to

only one field of endeavor—-—for example, narcotics. Tradltlonally,

however, most publlc dttentlon has been focused on one national,

multl—-servme cyndlcate. 'lhe organlzatlon has been called a var:Lety of "

names by its own members. In Chicago, 1t is the "Outflt." In ,Buffalo,‘

it is f"I‘he Arm." In New York City, it 1s\ "La Cosa Nostra.‘" 7, Only the

e Mpin £4 0 " o The dedree to

wh:Lch termb like Cosa Nostra or Maf ld, however, conjure up stereotypes

Joseph ‘Valachl, the mob informer, put .1t,‘ "T'm, not‘t‘a‘lkin‘g‘ about

»
i public continuesto-cati—it-th
b T
of Itallan—-Amcrlcan gangsterb is untortunate. As

. Italians, I'm talking about criminals. "8 Nevertheless, the ethnic |



charactoer of tho ékmt en+ mdicate in‘organized crime is, as it will be
shown, an accident of history;‘crindnality is not an essential.charaCter
trait of‘a\particular‘group of‘American citizens, |

C. Roots of OrganiZed‘Crine - | |

The roots ot organ17ed crime run deep in American history and
culture.) Uho oarly plratcs worc among the ilrst Amtrlcans to engago in
organized crime. The revolutlonary period, too, produced its smugglers,
mdny of whom—~such as John Hancock——are now counted among the Foundlng |
Fathers. The 19th century also produced a varlety of v1olent gangs- the
Llfy mob‘ of New York and san Fran01sco ar1s1ng out of ethnic frlctlon,
poverty, and the crude pOllthS of the ‘early metropollses, the
highwayiren and slave snatchers of the old West; the river and port
pirates, such as Jean Lafltte,_a hero of the War of 1812 The‘end.of

the century produced its frontier gangs, who were elther mercenarles

or partles to the struggle over land, cattle, mlnlng and tlmber

‘propertles. The afternath of the C1v11 War also saw a varlety of gangs,

which,. slnce they were usually held together by the force of a strong
personallty, dlss1pated upon the leader s deaths the James boys, the
Daltons, and the Youngers, The late. 19th and early 20th centurles saw‘
the rise of‘the‘great city—w1de gang,comblnatlons, usually in alliance

with the nouveaux riches and theinouyeaUX politiques. «The‘first gangs

of  the thtle Old New York area were Irlsh, and a pseudo—scientlflc

: study in 1881 (‘OﬂC.Luded that the ll" ish were Crlmll’la.L by nature: ~even:

} though they were a mlnorlty of the populatlon, they made upa majorlty

1.0
of the prlson 1nmates.‘ ‘ot by the turn of thL century in New York,
the Jewish gangster ‘had came 1nto hls own. New York's. Pollce

Commissioner, Theodore Bingham, noted‘that even though Jewsrmake up



only 25 percent of the population, they committed 50 percent of the
crimes.ll The Prohibition era in New York saw the rise of Arnold
Rothstein, who was inmortalized by I'. Scott Fitzgerald as the Great
Catsby, and who fixed--so they say--the 1919 World Series.l2 But, by
the middle of the 1930s, the Italians in many areas of the nation,
especially in the Northeast and Midwest, had gained some senblance of
dominance,13 although rarely a monopoly of organized crime activities,
D. National Awakening

1. The 1950 Conference

The beginning of a n7+'mnal effort to understand aﬁd’combat
organized crime may be best14 dated fram the Conference on Organized
Crime that was called by Attorney General J. Howard McGrath at the
urging of the U. S. Conference of Mayors, the American Municipal
Association, the National Institute of Municipal Law Officers, and the

15 The conference was part of

National Association of Attorneys Géheral.
the annual meeting of United States Attorneys. Law enforcement
officials from all over the nation met in Washington on February 15,
1950 to consider the growing nationwide scope of organized crime,
particularly in professional gambling., New Orleans' liberal mayor, De
Lesseps S. Morrison, spoke for the majority:

We do not have the whole picture--but each

of us present—-and hundreds of other(s)

... has] seen a small segnent of this nationel
scene of organized...crime. These pieces fit

together in a pattern of mounting evidence
concerning several highly organized...syndicates
whose wealth, power, scope of operations, and
influence haYE recently grown to...alarming
proportions.



. Capone gang "

I-Ie went on to conment specifically on the casino and slot machine
: gambli'ng operations : of \Frank Costello, Phil Kastel, 'and‘Ca‘rlos -
““Marcello in dcfferson Parish, La., and the takeover of a nationWide wire
service that supplicd horse—-race iesults to bookmakers, by the "o]d |
17 Morrison's view of the nationWide character of .
organi/od CLJJ[\C was ochocd by le] Wilson, Lhe district attorncy‘ from
‘Dallas Tcxas, who cited as eVidence slot mach:mes and punchboards that
~had come to his Cl‘LY from Chicago.‘ Wilson added that the syndicate's
control over garhbling in his area‘was maintained "hy‘ ‘:‘dealing‘ in killing,

n18 , He told of the effort to kill a

killinq of the most reckless kind bid
: policeman by erll'lg a bomb to his car y which killed the policeman s Wife
“instead Later, t.he policerran himself was wounded, but not killed, |
as he left his home. The gang finally finished the job by ‘shooting him
through a hospital window, The majority view at the conference,
‘however, was not nniversally shared. AU S. Attorney from Chicago ,

g Otto Kerner, dissented "There was," Kerner said, "no organized ‘
gambling in the City of Chicago. .o " He then told the Conference that
he did "not know that the Capone syndicate cx:Lst[ed] ? I have read about,“
it in Lhe newspapers.‘ I have never received any ev1dence of it."19 'I‘he
“ Mayor of Los Angeles, Fletcher Brown , took issue With Kerner.‘ He said
he would like to say that his city was. "lily-white, but it... [was]

not." 20

He agreed With the majority. "'I‘his is no fiction about

organi

. nation to the other."‘21

2. Results of the 10‘-"‘ Conference

| The 1950 conference was an :meortant step in the development of a L

national awareness of organized crime, and a number of 1ts partiCJ pants :



subsequently made significant contrrbutmns in the effort to conbat it.,

when Price Daniel, at torney gcnoral of r[‘exas in 1950, for oxamp]o

became United States Senator from Texas, his efforts led in 1956 to

tough narcotic laws, which were to result in the convictions of several
syndicate 1eaders.‘2'2 Otto Kerner, on the other hand , though he went on

to becowe Governor of Illinois in’ 1960 and a Umtod States Circuit (,ourL

Judge in 1968, was conv1cted on I’ebruary 19 1973 of accepting $150 000

in bribes :t.rom horse—-ratlng 1r1terests in 111:Lno:|.s.23 And J. Vlncent |

Keogh, the U. S. Attorney from Br‘ook‘lyn‘ and later a“ New York Supreme
Court Justice, was conVicted‘ in‘1962 with Anthoriyﬁ‘c‘orallo, a New York
underworld flgure, of Jmproperly attempt:mg to 1nfluence a bankruptcy
pet1t10n.24 L‘ugene Kcogh Vincent's brother, had been a c,lose friend of
President Kennedy and one of the "five people who were most helpful "
accord;ng to Robert F. Kennedy, "to the Presldent in the [1960]

electioh 23 | | "

The Attorney General's Conference considered a number of

| recommendations, the most important of which was for a Senate

investigation of organized crime, though it was blocked by Attorney

General ‘McGrath. Nevertheless, a resolution authorizing a Select Senate

| Committee for that very purpose which was then pending in the Senate

under the sponsorship of Senator Estes Kefauver of Tennessee, was

adopted by the Semate. RSN R

o SPRITTIL Ce i 2
E. " The Refauver Investligation

1. ‘Background
1948 was a good year for Lhe natlon and the Democrats, the party in

power . ‘7 'I'he Marshall Plan in Europe was w1dely applauded; there was

prosperlty at ‘home; and Harry Truman had just- accompllshed what no one

thought he ~'could a come—from—-behlnd electlon VJ.ctory “But less than a



ll'ltO exi stence .

year after the election, it all changed. China fell to the Commuisrs; |

. the economy took a nosodi\‘/e; and ‘the integrity of the Truman

Aministration was undermined by the " influence peddler" scandals. In
1950,  Congress was in a restlessy nood,- and Delesseps Morrison, the New

Orleans Mayor and president of the American Municipal Association, took

~advantage of-it by pressing for an investigation of organized crime, as

“he had pressed. the Attorney General for a crime conference in 1950.

Concerned by what he had Joarned from a 1948 study by a crlmc camission

| appomted by Callfornla Governor Earl Warren and having talked at length: .

‘ about organued crime with newspaper reporters,28 Senator Kefauver

1nLroduced Senate Resolutlon 202 on January 5, 1950 It called for a
sweeping examination of organlzed crime in the Unlted States Swift |
passage of the .resolution, however,' was not aSSUred v Democrats feared
that too much llght would be shed on alliances between gangsters and

the big-city polltlcal machmes that thelr party domlnated, Republlcans ,
feared a whltewash "As I look back on the struggle to get the

cormuttee," Senator I\efauver later . cbserved, 23 "I sometlmes wonder that

we were ever able to brlng 1t into- ex1stence." In fact p it took a .

tlebreaklng Vote by Vlce—Pres:Ldent Alben Balkley to brlng the Senate

Spec:Lal Comnlttee to. Investlgate Organized Crime in Interstate Commerce

30

Senator Kefauver was 46 in 19.)0 born of a soc1ally prcmlnent

W

Ienrressee—faxrrly—ﬁehad—served—nrme—ﬁouse—of—RePrcseuuvcs since

1938 and had just been elected to hlS flrst-term in the Senate» He was

known in the House as one of the brlghtest and most effectlve of the

Southern lJ.beral bloc, somethlng of a pollta.cal maverlck HlS se] ectlon

‘ of the committee's staff too, broke tradltlonal practlces. He would

“he sa.Ld " llke to see all personnel chosen w1thout regard to patronage ‘



or politic*s nsl ~"Canpetence rather than influence," he ‘noted,32
" l should bo] Lhe yaldsLlck for choos:mg the staff," i-“ortunate'ly, he got

hl‘: way, “and Rudolph Ilallc , who had dlstmqulshed hlmsell on the .

| well-—; egarded Tnunan and Mead commlttees thaL had loo]\ed into war

contract abuses, was chosen as Ch:Lef Counsel Harold Roblnson, who had

-served not only with ’che Truman cormuLtee, but alos on Warren's

Callfornla (,rlmo Comnlssmn , Was named ch:Lef :mvestlgator. Kefauver was

well-served, ‘for both' were men of‘ ability and 1ntegr1ty.33 Kefauver had
- L 34 |

a vision for» 'the .ca‘mrd.ttee. His concern was not w:Lth crlme 1n

gencral but organlzed cr:n*e, and he wanted answers to certam bas1c ‘

‘questlons: Did a .o NiS 1w1de cr:l.me syndlcate ex:.st'> If S0, where d:Ld
its sources of power lle? To what degree had it purchased the ‘
cooperation of 15@1 governments'> | Kefauver was permltted to. move ahead
An his 1ndependen1_ fash:Lon, accordlng to: Theodore W:Llson, the hl.:torlan,
"not because he was. trusted but because few people in either party

belleved that his mvestlgatlon would recelve much attentlon."35

They |
could not have been more wrong. The nation pald careful attentlon to

the work of the freshman benator from Tennessee, and he almost became

i Pres1dent o

o2, Scope of Investlgatlon

The Kefauver commlttee 1n conductn.ng the first natlonw1de ‘

mvestlgatlon into organlzed ch.me, held hearlngs from May 10 1950

| ‘ untll May 1, 1951 Kefauver h:Lmself traveled 52 380 mlles and pre51ded

Angeles, Saratoga, -and New York Clty. w

over 92 days’cf hear1ngs.36\ In all Lhe commlttee heard more than 800

witnesses in Mlaml ; Kansas CJ.ty ’ ‘St. Louls, Phlladelphla, thcago,

'-'l‘a‘m ’ Cleveland, Detroit, New Orleans, Las Vegas ; San f‘ranc:Lsto, Ios S

37 The New York hearlngs were -

38

telev1sed l:Lve and seen by an estlmated 30—1nllllon people. On the eve



‘ racketeerlng and gangsterlsm. e

of the opening day of the probe ' Attorney General McGrath said that the

Justice Dcpartment had 1o, r)t.. suaslvc ‘evidence that a “natlonal crime

syndlcate" ex:.sted 39 Kefauver would supply that ev:Ldence.

The prmc:pal mtoxcst of the Kotcxuver conmittee was pxofessmnaj
gambllng, partlc'ularly casino gambllng, which was found to be operat:Lng ‘
Wi de—open throughout the country Booknukmg was cqually wi. despread as

were J.lloga] slot machmes and punch boards. Profess1onal gambllng was. .

| £our1d by the Kei“auver conmlttee Lo be "the prlnczl.pal support of blg time

"40 'I‘he Kefauver ccxtmlttee nade only a

cursory cxamlnatlon oi- the narc,otlcs trafflc (1t found 1t to be ! a :

‘ "hlghly organlzed crime" ) but 1ts ploneer study of the mflltratlon of

]cglt'm\ate busmess was a mllestonc.. It found that the “unecrupulous

“and unethlcal buslness practlces, extortlon, banklng, and other forms of

42

v1olence were being used by racketeers in leglt:.mate enterprlses, and

it found "eV1dence of hoodlum mflltratlon 1n approxmately 50 areas of

busmess," ranglng from A to T P "advertlslng“ to "transportatlon.“43

The Kefduvc,r committee v151ted Chlcago on three separate occasmns P

| amass:mq a record of 1, 416 prlnted pages of hearlng transcrlpt, the most s

for any s:.ngle ‘c1ty.44 Qulte contrary to Otto Kerner s view of Chlcago, :

the conmlttee found that the rackets were thrlvmg. Senator Kefauver

‘wrote in hlS book, CrJ.me J.n‘Amerlc‘a. TR DU I

icago-in.our

quest for eV1dence of ¥ .the 11nk between
organized crime and politics,.we could have
~written a camplete report-in-miniature of the,, 45
natlonw:l.de crlmlnal and- polltlcal corruptlon.

The cormuttee found no cas:.nos 1n operatlon in Ch:l.cago proper, but

r
Lk 3. Chlcago |
>
b
>

just out51de the 01ty llmltS, partlcularly in Clcero where there was a



| tradition ofk corruption, the cammittee found numerous plush gambling‘
houses. 46 1>olicy play, however, was widespread within the city itself,

espem ally in the donsely populated bouth Slde. The committee es’cimated

the pollcy play 1n the precedlng five years at $150,000, 000 a sum in

llght of Kerner s declalatlon that there was no organlzed gambllng 1n

Chicago. (,hlc ago was’ also found to be the source of the slot ma(,hlnes |
‘ and punch boards used throughout the United States, and ‘the base of the
(O = rac1nq news serv:.eo that was essentlal for oiftrack betting by |
’ = P 'boolqnakcrs‘.m‘ Most dlsturblng to the comm:Lttee, however, was the open
i ‘and blpartlsan alllance that ex1sted in Chlcago between crlme an |

‘ ‘l polltlcs. Roland leonatl, a Democratlc state senator ' and James J
’ - S Z\ddu001, a Republican sLate senator, both from the West S:Lde, were
‘ 1dent1f1ed as leaders of a bloc of legislators that |

ass001aLed with racketeers and fought to defeat reform leg:.slat:.onf18

3 : : u " As the conrm:Lttee s flnal report quoted John Roselll, a Chlcago hoodlum‘
at ‘the time: ‘

[TIhe wire service, the hand books, the slot
L ‘ ‘ ” ‘ - machines, and the other rackets which have
» ‘ : thrived in the city of Chicago cannot opc_rate
‘ ‘ ‘ without local corruption; if the hand books -
are open, the conclusion is migcapable that
the police are belng paid off

The Kefauver corrmlttee ‘traced the rJ.se of power in Chlcago of

»

- L Alphonse Capone from an obscure, scar-faced 23—y<_ar-old bodyguard of

i Johnny ‘I‘orrlo, his mentor, in 1924, to the absolute master of Chlcago

3 o ‘crlme by 1929--brothel keeper, bootlegger and gambler.‘s0 S the

‘1‘ ' corrmlttee noted however, Capone was conv1cted Jn 1931 for tax evasa.on, ‘
| and his relgn ended, although he left bc_hlnd an organlzatlon that would

@ be run by the men around him: Jake 'fGreasy 'Ihurrb" Guz:Lk, hl’S‘bUSll\’leSS |

adviser, Frank Nitti, Felice Delucia, _Anthony Accardo, Mu‘rray Humphries
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and the Fischetti brothers, ‘Charles and .Roc;‘o,,Capone's cousins.bl

4, Al Capone

As described in Francis X. Busdh?‘\‘s Enemies of the .’B‘tatfr—_f,52

a raid

Was conducted on The Strip, a Cicero gambling house,“' ‘foll‘oWing‘ the ,
brutal murder, apparently by Capone gunmen, of Asslstant Unlted States

53‘

Attorney Wll.].l.dnl . Mcswrgg(,n on. Aprll 26 ].926 'l'hc rald itself was’

not federally directed, but what 1t uncovered led to Capone downfall

‘at the hands of- the U.u. government

In March 1929, a group of c:Lt:Lzens met w:Lth Pres1dent Hoover and

told hnm that Capone ruled Ch:Lcago.54 Hoover then directed that all

“Federal agenmes concentrate on Capone. A"two-?pronged strategy was

-=veloped Frank J. W.LlSOl’l headed up a spec:Lal un:l.t of the Internal ‘
55

' Revenue Service that dlrected its attention to Capone s tax returns.

Lllot Ness was 'in charge of a SpeClal unlt of the Proh:Lb:Lt:Lon Bureau,

56

wh:l.ch was mterested :Ln Capone s beer emplre. Of 'the two, Ness s job -

- was the more dangerous. Only w1retap1ng Capone s headquarters enabled ‘f

Ness to steer clear of Capone s gunmen. As a lesult of the raid on The

Strip, a dusty cashbook was found from Wthh it was poss:Lble P

o through a bank depOSlt sl:Lp ' .to 1dent1fy Lou Schtmway, a Capone

bookkeepc_r. Further bank record examlnatlons led to Fred Re:Ls, :

‘ anothér Capone employee. " Both men eventually were persuaded to

: cooperate with the government. Schunway was® hldden in Callfbrnla

', unt:l.l the tllal and ReJ.s was sent to aoutn Amerlca. Based onm tnelr

test:.mony, Capone was chalged w:Lth falllng to f:Lle :anome La> returns in

1924 1928 and 1929 and w:Lth tax evas:l.on for the years 1925 througl‘ o

1929 He was also J.ndlcted separately for a v:Lolat:Lon of the

‘ PrOhlblt.‘LOl’l law, though never trled because of the conv:Lctlon and
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sentence on, ”the tax charges. The government't* Lax case lar gely

L()nblbt(:‘d of proof of ,p(‘(,lllc items ol 1ncomc‘ noL rcpm, ted and of

Capone"s lavrsh llfe style. The prlnclpal defense argun‘ent presented by
Capone's lawyer Albert Fink, wa‘ LhaL the prosccutlon would not havo
been brought but for the. name of the dei:endant. Um ted States Attorney
Geor‘ge L. Q. ,J‘ohnson res ponded Lo I'ink' s chargc. | |

Thcy say’ we prosccute because of th(, name. . ..
Consider the thousands of little men and women
who earn only a little more than $1,500 a year
and pay their taxes. Is it public clamor to.
demand taxes due in time of national financial ;
"stress and’ treasury deficit from a 'man who buys
“two hundred and fifty dollar cllan‘ond belt
buckles and twenty-seven dollar shirts?
There is i’ lenying the public mterest, but I
am not asking you to think of this man as -
Alphonse Capore, Future generations will not
remenber this case because of ' the name Alphonse
Capone, but because it will establish whether &
or not a man can go so far begond the law as .
to be able to escape the law.”

Johnson s comment about the publlc awareness of future generatlons
dld not prove accurate, but his argument was persuas1ve. On October 17,
1931 ll days after the tr:Lal opened the case was submltted to the

Jury, Wthh dellberated for eight. hours, apparently w1th dJ.sch.mlnatJ.on |

- for Capone was found not gullty of fallure to flle a tax return 1n 1924
and gullty of. only flve of - the remalnlng counts agalnst hJ.m. On |
‘ October 24 Capone was sentenced to two consecutlve flve- -year . terms and

flned a total of $50 000. After two years in the Federal‘ penltentlary

"1n Atlam:a, he was tran —Frrea to A.Lc ﬁaz in San Fran01sco v where he

‘ remalned untll 1939. Upon hlS release he was a desperately 51ck man,

sufferlng from unm:Lstakable s1gns of pare51s, the deterloratlon of rru_nd .

"and body stemming from untreated SyphlllS. '

Whlle the tax conv1ct10n ended Capone s lawless career, hlb not

. be:Lng trled for other cr:Lmes deprlved the pule.c of a full appreCJat:Lon e
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‘by 1928 had been largely taken over and made a front for the Mafla. o

of the true charucter of the man., Capone was born on January 17, 1899
in Brooklyn, N.Y., Ol iuw.. Ot parents, who had come from Nap]c,s in

1883. "89 Ue‘dled in 1947. One of his most 1nfamous acts was Lhe St

: Valentmc' s Day Massacre in 1929, in which seven men were

g ‘nachlne—gumled Only one, Frank Gusenberg , lived long enough to: tell

about it, but when askcd who shot him, Gusonberg replied, "Nobody‘ shot .
l"9

‘me‘ I ain't no copp(_r ~ Capone was also the personal author of an

unrccouicd nuber of murders, 1nclud1ng the bludgeonlng Wlth a baseball
60

“bat of three enemies at a dlnner 1n their honor. . 'I‘hey were Gulseppe

Glunta Z\lbert Anselml, and’ John Scallse, three offlcers of the Unlone

SJ c'lllana, a legltlmate fraternal organlzatlon founded in 1895 whlch

61

No w1tnesses, however, were .ever found to testlfy agalnst Capone :Ln a

murder trJ al, Untll the Federal government stepped in w1th 1ts tax

case, he was above the law.

5. ' Following the Investigation

' V'According to the Kefauver contn:i.ttee,e‘2 Capone's power passed first

“to Frank Nitti, who cammitted suicide in 1943 ,While under indictment in
‘a hJ ghly pub11c12ed motlon plcture 1ndustry extortlon prosecutlon ' next |

to Fellce DeLu01a, and then to Anthony Accardo an old Capone bodyguard' i

ho may have becn one of the planners of the St. Valentine's Day

Massacre.63 Mhe faces changed , but the nature of the syndlc’ate did not,

g

“Its response o the Ketauver hearings was typical, as eviaencea by the—

- murder of two J.mportant w:Ltnesses before they could testlfy Wllllam

Drury, a formcr pol:Lce capta:Ln , and Marv1n J. Bas, an attorney

‘ Kefauver con‘mentedon ‘the,ev.udence developed in Chlcago:g,

[0] rganized crime ‘and political ;corruption go
hand in hand. . . . There [can] be no big~time
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undoing by Everett M. ‘Dirksen to Kefauver's hearings. =

organized crime without a firm and profitable -
alliance between those who run gl;lxe rackets
- and those in political control
The people drew: sunllar conclusions, and they acted upbll them in an

election that happened to be held right after one of the Kefauver .

committee's trips to Chicago. There had been an attempt by the

‘ comnittee to paint a balanced picture of corruption in both parties, but
" the peoplo did not see 1t qu:Lte S0 even—handed]y, and numerous -
~ Democratic offlce holders were defeated ‘on November / 1950 1nclud1ng

- Majority l‘eader“ofw the U. S. Senate Scott Lucas, who attrlbuted hJ.s

65

6. New Orleans

The Kefai;ver commi ttee visited. De Lesseps Morrison "s New Orleans.
As:in Cthng, there were no cas:Lnos within the city, but just over the
Orleans Parlsh l:Lne——ln Jefferson and St. Bernard Parlshes--there were a
number of plush houses. The Kefauver conmlttee called it "one of |

Amerlca s largest concentratq.ons of gambllng‘houses."66

One of the most
e‘]aborate featuring expens:.ve night club entertalnment," was the
Beverly Club, Wthh was owned by Phll Kastel Frank Costello and Jake
Lansky, all ‘of New York, ‘and CarlosfMarcello, who the Kefauver Comm:Lttee‘ ‘
J".dentified‘ as the local Mafia“ leader. The “svlot machine racket had been
imported in the ‘mid4-19305 into New Orleans by Costello, who «‘made a deal ‘

w1th Huey P, Long, then a U.S. Senator v after Costello had Been

; threatened w1th banlshment from New York City by Mayor—elect I‘lorello La

N Guardla. After Morrlson was elected Mayor in 1946 the Costello

operatlon was moved to the nelghborlng parishes, but 1llegal plnbal]

'mach:‘mes stlll flour:tshed in the city, &7 apparently with the aid of

corruption. The Kefauver committee found an alliance between‘ gangsters

and ‘corrupt "sheriffs, ‘marshalls and other law enforcement officials, o8
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7. Carlos Marcello

The Kefauver committee prepared a profile of the man it identified
as the organized crime leader in New _C)_rleans.69 ‘Carlos Marcello was
born February 6, 1910 in Tunisia, of Sicilian parents, who immigrated to

70

New' Orleans la.ter that. year. " His real name was Calegero Minacore;

whu,h was subsoquontly changed to Maru*]]a and later masculinized to

71

Marcello. Marcello was, the Committee found, actlve in, all phases of

the rackets in the New Orleans area. He operated casinos, horse bettlng

perlors and slot machines; he was invol{/ed in the nercotics traffic.72

- In addition, Marcello had lnvested heavily in legitillwate businesses ,“ ‘
including bars, restaurants, inns and food processing concerns, |
particularly see.food and other frozen foods.73 Marcello's nationwide
criminal contacts included Costello in“ New York , Joseph Civello in |
Dallas, Sam Yaras in Chicago and Mickey Cohen in Los“l\r,n;‘[eles.74
Marcello's “New Orleans was elso four;d by the Kefauver committee to 'ha\}e
supplied the weapOh for a Mafla murder in Tampa , Fla., where Scmtos
Trafflccmte, Sr. had been the "reputed Mafia leader. . .for more than
twenty years.“?6 |

8. New York

As the comtﬁittée traveled from city to city; it seemed as if

"Kefauver had accomplished. .”‘.his“ aim," as Thecdore Wilson noted, "of

conducting a fair, non-partisan inquiry,... [bringing] the staggering

to f»the probe, however, Weo LoOoWihg, and not ouly from deféatéd
politioians like ScOtt Luoas of lllinois.‘ Senator Ray McCarron of :
Nevada, for example, was outraged at Lhe Kefauver comnittee's report on.
‘ the domJndnce of organized. crime in Las Vega.,. | Nevertheless, there was

little the opposition could do, and attention soon turned to the
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| ~conmittee's work in New York ‘City, where hearings Were opened on March
.12, 1951, For eight days, America watched spellbound as. some ‘40
witnesses marched confident to be sworn in, oniy to be "reduced to an
‘Jnc,oherenc,e of bollrgorent silence, " as Wllson noted "by "[Chief‘
Counsel] Halley's devastatlng questlonmg and the calm confident
behavior of Kefauver and his collcagues. w78 Where the earlier hearings
had considered general as‘;p‘ects of ‘organized orine, the New York hearings
‘personalized the corrupt alliance between crime ‘and politics by ffocusing

on two men-XF-Frank Costello and William O'Dwyer.

9. “Frank Costello

(,ostcllo was born I rancesc.o (.astlglla on January 26 1918 in
Lauropoli, a hlll town in Italy's southernmost prov1nce, Calabr1a.79‘ |
When he was four P he was brought to New York by his parents, where they

Htraded a life of rural squa]or for an ex1$tence of urban poverty.BQ Yet |
by the time of the Kefauver cammittee's hearlngs, Costello was hardly a .
~ man of the slums: hls apartment was on the fashl‘onable West Slde of New
York; his summer home was in Sands‘Pointr; ‘and he traveled regularlyk each
| year to Florida, New Orleane, and Hot Springs ,k Ark.'81 He‘preeented |
himself to the Kefauver corrm:Lttee as a legitimate businessman, w1th
interests in real es.at- ".oil, and a as frlend of politicians,  thouyn

not a politician. The Kefauver comittee saw him quite differently:  he

- was the owner of 1llegal casinos and slot machines; and he was a

‘bookmaker. The crlmlnal syndlc*ate he headed 1ncluded such blg—name
criminals as Meyer Lansky, Joe AdOl’llS, Wlllle Moretti, Abner Zwillman,
Vito Genovese, and Joseph Profaci, and he was assoc:.ated w1th -Joseph

Lanza, Charles: Lu01ano, and Carlos Marcello , all reputed hOOdllJmu.83
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The Kefauver committee credited him with the political dominance of
Tanmany lall, the New York City political machine in 1942. 1The evidence
on Costello was unusually reliable, since it had been obtained from
wiretaps by Manhattan District Attorney Frank Hogan, which, the
committee observed, "gave a vivid picture of Frank Costello as a
political boss and an underworld c'}mperor."84

10. William O'Dwyer

william O'Dwyer followed a much different career. He was a
policeman fram 1917 to 1924 at which time he left the force to practice
law. Ile was elected to a judgeship in 1938 and, in 1940, became
district attorney of Kings County, which gave him jurisdiction over the
Borough of Brooklyn. As District Attorney, he conducted an
investigation of morce than 20 gangland murders. With the help of one of
the hired killers, Abe Reles, who turned state's evidence, O'Dwyer's
office identified an organization, pépularly known as Murder, Inc.,
which was headed by Albert Anastasia (though he was said to report to
Joe Adonis) and staffed by Jewish gunmen. Murder, Inc. was responsible
for numerous killings in New York and elsewhere, but on Novenber 12,
1941, before an indictment could be returned against Anastasia, Reles
plunged to his death from the bedroom of his suite on the sixth floor of
Coney Island's Half Mood Hotel, even though he was under the protection

of a special squad of six policeman.86 According to the Kefauver

committee, however, there was Iittle evidence that O'Dwyer ever intended

to seek an indictment ol ... tasia, who continued to maintain a

" stranglehold,"B/ as the committee characterized it, on the Brooklyn

waterfront through control of a local of the International
Longshoremen's Association.88 The Murder, Inc., investigation was, the
Kefauver committee found, riddled with "glaring deficiencies. n83
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Nevertheless, O'Dwyer was able to ride it to political advantage, and in
1945, he was éalcc-ted Mayor of New York. Yet the conmittee concluded
abouL O'Dwyar, who was the United States Ambassador to Me‘xice at the
time of  the heaﬁurnga-s: |

A single pattern of conduct emerges fram...[his]
official activities in regard to the gambling
and waterfront rackets, murders,. and police
corruption, from his days as District Attorney
through his term as mayor. No matter what the
notivation of his choice, action or inaction,
it often secmed to result favorable' for me
suspected of being high up in the rackets.

1l. Race WJ re Serv:.ce

1\., a case study of the nationwide operatlons ‘of. ofgan: zed cr Jmo,
the Kefauver cormutteo examined 'the wire service, ‘which provided
bookmakers with up-to-the-minute racing news, an essential :i.ﬁgredient in
any betting opération. As the camittee noted, the "wire service
| (was) .. .as ‘essential “to a bobkmakef as the stock ticker to a |
stockbroker:. w91 The cammittee found that the dqninaint corporation in
the racing news blisiness, Continental Press, was control‘led”byy the old
Capone syndicate. |

The first wire service, NatienWide News Service, was founded ‘in the
1920s by M.L. ""Mce" Annenberg, whpse prihcipal associate wés James A.
Ragen, Sr. In the face of a monopoly mvestlgatlon and an 1nqu1‘ v into
his income tax atfcl.Lrs, however, Annenberq had to divest hlmselt of hls

interest in 1939.92 Annenberg. s legltunate publishing interests would

~develop into Ti?iangle Publications,“_ vpublishe.r‘ of TV Guide. The company
was transformed into Contlnental Press Serv1ce. By 1946,‘ its managenent
having changed nore than once, Continental ended] up‘ in Ragen's hands,
but that was when trouble’ begdn MJ.ckey Cohen and Joseph S:Lca, acti ng

cn behalf of West Coast Mafia leader Jack Dragna, Lrled to muscle into
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Lho company ,‘ and a Chlcago Firm controllcd by AnLhony Z\cc ardo’ und the

g (,apom syndlcate, R&I-'l Publ:Lsh.mg, began to glve Contlnental competltlon.
N new naLronw:Ldo serv:Lce, named Trans—Amerlca, was founded and it bogan’ -
‘ "‘Lu dup T ((I]Lll)(..l\Lcll in a number of ClLleS, 1nclud1ng New Orleans.‘ o
On. June 24 1946, Ragen was shotgunned in typlcal gangland style.93 He
dled three month. dater of mucury tox:Ln polsonlng ¢ cven Lhough he was
“under pollce guard, Iour withesses identified Lenny Patrick, Dave

3 ;Yaras,‘ and WJllJ.auu Block as thc gunmen,g4 but ai'Ler one w:|.tness was
“rerdered, two others recanted and another fled p the 1nd1ctment was |
dropped. - Contlnental passed into the control of the Capone syndlcate
w1thout further v1olenoe. Carlos Marcello ‘was named 1ts New Orleans

‘ dlstrlbutor, and Jack Dragna was awarded a $50 000 "serv1ce contract "95‘
Bookies everywhere ‘had to deal with the national syndicate's front
926 ‘

operatlon——and pay a premlum——or go out of bus:Lness. ‘

12, Structure of Organlzed Cr:Lme

. Senator Kefauver was partlcularly mterested in the structure
of organlzed c,ere HlS conmi.ttee concluded at the campletion of its.
hoarlngs. ‘

~The structure of organ:l.zed crime today is

. far dlfferent from what it was many years

‘ago....  New types of criminal gangs have
emerged during prohibition.... Organized
crime in the last thirty years has taken on
new characteristics.... Criminal groups
today are multl—purpose in character,
engaging in any racket wherever there is

money to be made.... The Mafia...has an
important part in binding Logether into a
loose ac~7 . tion the...major criminal...
. gangs and individual hoodlums throughout
‘the country. .e. The domination of the
Mafia is based fundamentally on 'muscle'
and 'murder.'... [It]...will ruthlessly -
eliminate anyoge who stands in the way of -
its success. ... , ‘
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13 . Accomplishments

‘Other than its clear portrayal of the structure of organized crime,
‘the acconp]..isl‘merlts of the Kefauver corrmittee were hard to rreasure. With
the exceptic‘)n of the Johnson I\Ct,98 ‘.wl'lich‘ ‘regulated the in‘terstate
shi‘prrent.of gambling devices, its 1egis1ative propOsals were vnot :
c-c,erod lavm ably until they were embodied in the Kennedy
| I\dm:mlstratlon 8 legislative program, th.ch was passed by Congress in

99

1961. Some scholars were even crltlcal of its work. Wllllam Moore,

‘ in The Kefauver Comrnlttee and the POllthS of Crlme, argued that

Kefauver launchcd the probe for polltlcal gain, and the thes1s oi
national syndlcate was erroneous.100 If there was agreement on
anything, " it was g'erxerally oonceded\t‘hat the Kefauver‘conimittee was
“successful in arousing the consciousness of the public and stirring its
senSitiVity to organized crirt\e. Nevertheless, the professional
politicians#—a hostile array of urban bosses, Vengeful congressn‘en, .
‘whlte Southerners and a resentful outgo:.ng ‘President——-denied Kefauver
the pres:.dentlal nomlnatlon in 1952 and agaln in 1956, Kefauver dld ‘
secure the v1ceepre51dent1al spot on the Adla:L E Stevenson ticket in
1956, after a down-to—thé-wire roll-call contest with the juniorf Senator
from MaSsachuse‘tts, John F. Kennedy.‘ But in 195\6,- as in 1952, the
Novérber election went to, the Republicans. Senator Kefauver came

close——closer than most--to being elected kPresident, in large part due

—to the yublit. L(Ege as—a-crime fighter that his hearings ?Sﬁbllshed for
him, As it was, organized crixﬁe faded from public view until Novelfber
14, 1957.

The Apalachm Meetlng

- 1. The Rald

November 14, 1957 was a typlcal fall day in Apalachln, N. Y. '
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a small town near Binghamton in Broome ‘County. TFor sonie’ v'l:ime, Sergeant
dgar D. Croswell of the New York State Police had kch his eye on the

l'iO-—acre estate of Joseph Barbara, Sr., on McFall Road a 15-foot-wide

dirt roa.d‘ that ran from old Route 17.to Apalachin .Creek ’ beyond

Barbara s $150 000 home., 101‘ Crosweli knew that '«Barbara, who owned a
loc,al Canada Dry dl..»tr.l.buLO]fShlp, had bc.en mlxod up in booLlegglng ’

assoc,raLocl with: gambltrs , and was )uspcct(_d of 1nvolvcmont in scvoral

gangland slaylngs. » In 1956, _he had met at the Arllngton Iloter in |

| * Binghamton With a nurber of known gangsters, including Campinef’Galente,

‘ John Bonvcntre and Joseph Bonanno. “B‘arbara, 1n ’shOrt, *was thought to be
the "man behlnd al] of the rackets in Broome County," as Croswell would

| 1ate_r testify. 102 |

On Novembcr 13, 1957 Croswell and a fellow trooper notlced

) susplcmu., out-of-state cars parked at the Parkway Motel in Vestal,

103 Upon 1nqu1ry, they learned that Joseph

" which is near Apalachln.
Barbara, Jr. had, reserved roomsat the "motel for guests, some of wham
had not reglstered, even though they were staylng there., Croswell .-
alerted the Alcohol and 'I‘obacco Tax DlVlSlOI'l of the U S. 'I‘reasury
Department that 1t mlght be a meeting d.lke the one in 1956, which was»'
thought to have concerned illicit aléohol 104 and the following day,
Croswell his partner, and two Achol and Tabacco Tax agents drove out to

'y the Barbara estate to check it out a.rrJ.v:Lng there around 12*40 p.m.

They drove into a parklng aJ.ea, plannlng to take the license nwrhers of ‘
. the few parked cars they ex“ected to f:Lnd | Instead, they found eJ.ght s
~ten cars in the lot and another 20 to 25 over near a barn As the '
offJ.cers backed out of the parklng area, eJ.ght to ten men came from
‘Nbehlnd the garage. 'I'hey were, Croswell sald "sharply dressed M

[d] ark clothlng," like "men in the rackets wear“ they looked like "
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‘ I?'v" Genovese replied.‘ "J‘No " Croswell answered.

"hoodlums o 195
| ’l‘hc officers dC‘LJ ded to set up a check point on old Routé 17 near
its jun‘ct.ion with McFal]. Road, a point that any car leaving the estate |

would hav’e to pass to reach 'the highway | . From this Vantage point ’ the

- - officers could see the gathering begin to break up abeut 1:20 p.m. A

nunber ()I nmen’ fled into the woods., bome lef t by car, 'L‘ho l‘l]"&L c,ar to

A

be stopped, with five persons in it, airived at Lho check pOinL at l 25

p.m.. The driver was: Russell Bufalino of Pltt.:LOI’l, Pa., whom Croswell

recognized as haVing been arrested for receiVing stolen property.l%ﬂ AM‘

| passenger was Vito Cenovese of New Jersey, who, Croswell knew, had "an '

extenSive c,riminal background i Croswell asked“”Genovese‘: | "What are you
doing in this area?" | ""I don t think “‘I ‘haVe toanswer your ”question,,do !
107 'i‘he car was |
permitted to ‘pas‘s on..‘ Between 1‘4?20‘and 2:30, a total -of 25 perSOns‘was |
counted at ‘the check pOint, while others were stopped in the woods or

along other roads. . In all ‘59 men were identified as haVing been at the

- Barbara residence. Collectively, they had more than $300 000 cash on

108‘

“ them From New York (,ity, they included Joseph Bonnanno, Joseph i
‘ Magliocco p Carlo Gambino, Carmine ]'.ombardOZZi, Joseph ProfaCi and John

‘ Bonventre, from Niagara Falls, Anthony Magaddino, from New Jersey 2 in

Ml

.addition to Genovese, Gerardo Catena, Joseph Ida and Frank Majuii' From |
California, Frank Desimone, from Texas ’ Joseph Civello; and from Havana,_.
S o 109 | - e
_ vLUDél‘, Santo iraIJ:icante, I~ ;
b 2, Aftemath

Because ot the policc raid of the Apalachin ga‘rhering, organized

cr:une was back in the public eye. Investigations were irrmediately

e ".launched to determine the purpose of the meeting = by Lhe FBI the ‘
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‘Internal Revenue Service, the Immigration and Naturalization Service, 3”
the ‘Alcohol ‘and Tobacco Tax DivisiOn, federal and state grand juries,

‘ Lhe New York, Los Angelcs, and Dallas police dcparUmnts and lcglslatlvo

committees of both the New York and.United States Senates.  There were .
no less than 133 exam:LnatJ.ons of the Apalachin attendées, 1nclud1ng 27
tancoc bef ore Joderal grand jurles and 29 by the FBI, 110 But most of

those questloned, llke‘ GenoveSe, said noth:Lng. Oi' ‘those who said

‘ .anythlng, most. claJmed they were there to v1s1t "a 51ck frlend "o That

was Russell Bufallno s story.l}:L DeSJ.mone, however ’ saJ.d he had’ come

e | Fast' to see. an eye doctor and that Bufal:l.no had 1nv1ted hJ.m and Clvello, )

his cous1n, to a party.‘, 12‘ C:Lvello, on the other hand, told Dallas

Chief of Pollce Carl F. Hanson that “Russ,“ a man he dld not know but

had met 1n New York Clty, had 1nv1ted him to a barbecue and a crap
113

‘_ game, "7 Not one of them would ade.t 1t was’ anythlng more than a chance

meet:ng -— pure co:l.nc1dence that so many of them had got together at one
t:Lme The gcvernnent, of course, d:l.d not belleve it was a chance event

for a number of reasons, not the least of Wthh was the order Joseph

| Barbara, Sr. r had placed on November 5 1957 w1th Armour and Company oi o

‘Blnghamton for 207 pounds of steak 20 pounds of veal cutlets and 15

pounds of luncheon meats.114

A fcderal grand jury J.ndlcted 27 of the attcndeos _For consplracy

to obstruct justlce and perjury After an elght—week trial; the jury

gL 2

’ agreed, ‘and on January 13, 1960 a Verd:l.ct of gu:l.lty was entered by the

Honorable Irving R Kauﬁnan Unlted States DlStrlCt Judge f01
Manhattan 115 Among Lhe 84 w1tnesses who testlfled aL the trlal one :
was - the former Chlef Counsel of a Unlted States Senate comm.ttee that

had conducted J.ts own 1nvest1gatlon of the meetlng, Robert l". .
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”Knnnec'{y 1‘16 Prof-.loi had “sought, as par't. of his defense, to show that
he dld not. ‘::]_)(‘dk ]'J’lgllt;h well Konnody testified that he had spoken
with Profam m his on‘ fice. beiore he testlfled before the Senate Com—

_mrLLoc\ and in lho hall afterwards. Profaci "spoke. ..in perfect -
Engllsh-—wpelieot L.ngllsh, broken perfect bngllsh, but he understood
what I was saying to him and 1 unciorstood what 110 wils eaylng to me.
Kennedy testu.t:.ed.l” Profaci had told hlm, Kennedy'= sald, that a

- "partner" of his who had "recently died" had been a.‘ friend of Barbara,
and he was wonderJ.ng "how Barbara was feelmg " so he pald hJ.m a

v1s:Lt. 118 The jury s VeI‘dlCt wa not however, upheld on appeal ‘lhe .

,eV1don(,e of cone plracy, the Second C:chu.Lt held, was 1nsuff1c1ent.

| Notiny that the,re were susplcmns. .o Lhat lthc Apalac,hln neoLqu

, was. . .oi underworld overlords and thelr vassals, commonly credltcd w1thf
belng niembers of the Mafla,'f the court observed that it was "surely a .

" matter of publjlc concern that more [was] not, known of the{purposes of
the meeting,"_but its judgment‘ had to reet on the. e\}idence, andlt was
].aoking, "if not on the que"stionj‘ of falsity itself, at least on the
question of agreelrent, to tell false stories.119 Judge Charles Clark
concurred; adding that "Lhe most curlous featule" of the c,a e was

: "that after all Lheee years there [was] . .not a shred of legal ev:Ldence :
that the Apdladun qathormq was lll()gal or ¢ven mlpropel either m

purpose or fact." w120 IR SRR o

of great frustration for law enforcement. Apalachin had occurred.“

Connon sense told all but the agenda of the m‘eéting. Yet even with
the power to grant immmnity, the government could not break the wall -

of silence or prevent perjury from beinq comnitted. Several attendeas
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wveh spex:‘rt months in "jau Lol civil contenpt for not talking or"fc‘x‘r}
yiving ovasnve n'wtunony whon Lhey did tnlk.lzl. 'l‘he ‘sign‘ificanc:c oif
Z\pc\ Lndmu 1ay in Lhe ample circumstantial cv1dence Lhat the parL LLlpdl’lL
had gathered for sslnls-ter purposes,‘ l:hough the spec;u:J‘.c purposee could
not be‘ ascertained atthat tlme Much of what the ‘public then ‘le‘a‘r‘ned
| abuuL Lho et Iy, h()WLV()J ’ de Lhe (‘s>ulL of the il 011‘5 of tho 'enate‘ .
belect Conmi ttee on Jmpxopt_r I\CthJLlC' 5 in the Ldbor or. Management

i e]d, aalled thL MeLlellan Cormuttee for its Chauman ' John L.
McClellan of Arkancsas. The Chlef Counsel of the McClellan Commlttee, .
. the worklng-—level lcader, was Robert F. I\Lnnedy. :

- G. The Mc(.lellan Investlgatlon

1. he ’l'c.ambters

n Noyember ‘and l)ecember 1956 , Robert Kennedy made a trip to the
West ‘(‘eac‘-t, vieit,ing' los Angeles, éertlamd "and ‘Seattle.lj?'?‘i‘ He stopped
in Chlcago on December 70 on the way back to Washlngton. Kennedy had
been takJ_ng é prelnm nary look at labor racketeerlng and in. Chi. cago, ‘he L
reached a ch_t;Lcal conclus;on; _Dave Beck was a ‘crook.1‘2‘3 ' The. |
L implicatienq of that conclusion wore dist.urbing, | foanave‘ Beck was the o ,
““pres:Ldent of ‘one of the: natJ on S largesL unlons ‘the Internatlenal |
Brotherhood of Teamsters. If Kennedy's concluSJ.on was correct, thele

was j'ustification tor a tull C§(,nate 1nve5t1gatlon, but Wthh conmlttee

should undertake it?  After much dlscuscnon ’ the decuglon was made to

create a oelec*t conmJ.ttee, wu—h McClellan as chalrman The membershlp
included Senator Kennedy of" Massachu.,etts. Bobby wanted we on that
commlttee," Kennedy .;ald later, "in order to keep it more balomccc 1‘4*4 ’

Othen-n.‘se, it woiuld have been too COnsexVative, too ‘anti—lab‘or. .’I'he

McClellan comnittee was created by a unanimous ‘vote of ‘:_th‘e ‘Senate on.
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| January 30, ]957 ’ au’1d‘ it immediately got down o work. Dtnrinq the 'E‘lmt‘ ‘
yoar, the staff traveled 650, 000 mllos, mtervmwmg le, 000 wi. Lnes ses in
44 of the 48 states. '1‘ho comittee held 104 days of hearlngs 1nvolv1ng
486 witnc;rsses.]'25 CIn its first major investigation, the commlttee tound '
that Dave Beck had ab‘used_h’::i‘.s trust by receiving more -than $'32,‘0001J:i.n :

‘kickbackss, 126 and hoe l‘lad hedped himsclf to more than ‘$370,0()() in union
Iuncls al LogeLhor.]‘27 Boc,k had capitulatod Lo forccs within thc

Teamsters who had pr omoLod the lnLerosLs of racketoors and hoodJ uns .

‘Beck was conV:Lcted in state court and :merlsoned for larceny 1n 1957,
and he was found gui lty of tax evasion in federal court in. 1959 128 As |
a powcr in the labor movemf,nt, Beck was f;mlshed although he went i:ree

in May 1975 2 havmg obtamod a f ull pardon from President Cerald R, |
‘I."ord.‘l?’o‘ eck' ] downtall howovor, proved to be the occasion for tho
rise to the presidency of the union of another labor lea‘der‘, who.se tles

' to organized Crime were even tighter—James Riddle Hoffa;; | |

2. Jimmy Hoffa: Background

Born on.‘l?ebruary 14, 1913, in Brazil, Indiana, Hoffa lost his’

‘ father, a c,oal mlner, when he was seven.1,3]' HlS mother had Lo go to
~work to support th and hlS two .»1sters. In 1924 she moved to Detr01t,,‘
eventually end;.ng up on an auto aSsembly line. Hoffa quit school at 14 .
and went to work as a stock boy in Frank & Cedar Dry Goods and Ceneral

Merchandise. In 1932, Ve.. then working uon‘ the: loading platform at

the Kroger rood Company, started a wouc stoppage and’ founded a un:Lon, ‘
I_ocal 19341 whlch was afflllated w1th the Arnz—_rJ can Federatlon of Ld.bOl".
In J935 Lhe, Jocal was absorbcd lnto the r[‘eamsters A and in 1936, it was
merged into Local 299, Wthh was to be Hoffa s. home base for more than

’45 years.
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Hoffa's association wish racketeers bogan on a romantic note. NAs o
young organizer, Hoffa met and had an affair wjfh aﬂ attractive woman
named Sylvia Pigano. Pigano later moved to Kansas City, where she
marriod Sam Scarading, who was involvod in the raokets. When Scaradino
changed his name to brank o' Bxlen, Plgan s son took the name of her
husband' he hvuuw*(lm;los 0! BrJon. After O'Bricn died, Plggno had an ‘
dlldlr with Frank Coppola, hcr‘son s godfather. Coppola, who livod in
Kansas City and Detroit, was a major narcotics smuggier and'an associate
of Charles Luciano, Phil Kastel and Carlos Marce]lo. He was deported to
Ttaly on January 9, 1943.‘ Itwac through Plgdno that Hoffa net DeLr01L
‘uﬁderworld figures,rincludlngNSanto Perrone, ‘a strlkebreakerHand
bootloggor,]32 and Aﬁgelo Meli.133 lloffa's friendship with‘Porrone and
Dkﬂi.nade the\first Teamétérs city~w1dé strike, in April 1937,
successiul., for he was able to get the mob‘to stay neutral.]34 -1t also
was thé’beginning of ‘an éilianoe thaf‘contributed mightily tofHoffar
‘Ikam@ng‘the Teamsters' preSideﬁt in September 1957. ’Dave‘Béck'su
downfall was the result of an election the McClellan comnittee termed
"rlggod nd 35 ‘ |

\3. Jlmmy Hoffa' The Investiqation“

Following its investigatiohfof Beck,~thé‘McClellan comiittee turned

to Hoffa. It was the beginning of what lloffa termed the "Kennedy

nl36

vendetta. "We were like flint and steel," Hoffa said. "Every time

—wWe éame to grips the sparks Flew. =g corhmlttee's'J.nvest.lgatlonHR
considered Hoffa's rapid ascent to leadership,,his centraliZatioh ot
' powet, “his questionabie ;fuo\ess‘transaotions with trucking companies
‘and his a@sdciation Wlth a number of organized crime flgures, 1ncludJng

‘ el
John DlOgUdrdl Anthony Coxalio and Paul Dorfmdnuld9 For the comnltcee,
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Hoffa's relationship with Dioguardi and Corallo typified the subversion
of the labor novement by the underworld. Dioguardi was described by the
Committee as a "three-time convicted 1abor racketeer and. the su.spected ,

140

mstigaLoJ ol the. lacid] bi.md.mg oL columnlst Vic,tor Riosel " who

had becn writlng a ncwspaper expose on corruption in thc. iabor movement,
""he: case ac;a:m.c;'t l).'l.L)(_]Lla.Y.‘dJ. 1j()1" the Rlcso]. assault was dismissed, when
tho -actual assailant was found dead and other witnoesses refused to

t:estify.“l‘ Dioguardi, identified in subsequent investigations as a

menber of the Luccnesev family of ‘La‘Cosa Nostr"a,l‘f2 obtained controll‘l;3
of a local of the AlllCd Jnduerial ‘Workers of Z\merlca :Ln 1950, | in part
Lhrough the aid of Paul Dorfman, who the McClellan comm1ttce described
as "an as ;(,(..Ldt(;‘ of - Chicago mobsters and the hcacl of a local of Lhc |

144 in Chlcago As Dloguardl 8 :Lnfluence

Waste Material Ilandlers Union"
grew, he en]isted the: assistance of Corallo, who the McClellan Committee

described as a "long-term klngpin in the New York narcotics and labor

*ackets."l45 Subisequent investigation identified him’ as a caporegima in
. the Iucchese family.146 Dioguardi and Corallo brought into the

| in.dustrial workers union 40‘ individuals who had been arrested 178 times
and convicted ‘77 times “‘for such cr:unes as‘ “theft ' narcotics, extortion;
‘bookmeking, assault robbery, burglary, forgery, and murdei.M}7 E F‘Jven“r
after they jOined the local, 25 of them were 1ndlcted or conv1cted for

extort:l.on, perjury, ‘1r1.bewz or forgery. The union hardly repre'senteu

legitimize the misery of thousands of Black and Puerto Rican

unployees who were iorced to ’oolerate low wages, high Jru.tlation fees
and dues, no welfare benefits, no seniority ' and poor working conditions

——unheated buildings in the winter and uncooled bu1ld1ngs in tht.
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" the goveimnent s case was poorly prepared

.t:-;ulnnmzz-r.l48 l)espi Lo Lhclr backqiound loffa supported Dioguardi and

149 .
Corallo, as i,l-m_c court order WJ retaps ohOWCd ina Lax1 driver

"organization drive in 1954 against Thomas llickey, who- repr(_eented

[offa's own 'l'("c"llTlF'l"C“l""-i. | in 1956 llof fa ini tiated a successt ul ef fort to
bring the Dioguardi-Corallo local into Lhe Teamsters . and to take over
Joint Council No l(), Lho ruling body of Nc,w York Lity s 58 Teamster
locals. It was also dur:mg thl'-: L:mxo that IIof fa lent hl.':: bupport: to the

¢ orrupt International lonqshoremcn s ]\SSOCldt.LOl’l in 1t=, fight wi th the
150 ' e

‘ Z\merican Federation of Labor‘.‘*, ;

In duly 1937 before tho McClellan conmittee held th\l’.'lng..) on the

Dioguaidi-Corallo local Hoi:i:a was tried and acquitted for attempting to

bribe a con"u‘nittec lawyer, John Cye ‘Cheasty. - Despite FBI films of the -

passing of J_nformation and an arrest of Hoffa right after the moncy was

15
exchanged, oL lNoffa was able to win. acqu1ttal irom a jury ‘of eight

blacks and four whites with a variety of tactics, including the

appcarance of Joe LeWis, the former heavyweight champion ' who came into

court and - publicly embraced Hofia. ‘According‘ to Kennedy, hcwever, Hoffa

won the case for thrce pr 1nc1pal reasons: - he hired Edward Bcnnctt

o ‘WllJ lams to defend lum, he was-: a forceiul Witnc s in his own behal[ dIld“

152 Follow:mg hlb acquittal

. Hoffa te‘stiffled before the McClellan committee, “initially on August 20,

1957. His tactic was to avoid pleading the fifth amendment, claiming

the office of Manhattw1 DJ cstrict Attorn(,y brank IIogdn, conducted. a

: deva.atating CrOss=2:7=mi n’-"won, brinqinq out t;he (,losc ties boLwoen Ikuia

and Dioguardi. Kermedy Jater commented about the. use of taps . to cross-

. examine a witness. "He can say very forcefully» someone‘s a liar--that's
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casy. ‘J'.;‘Lil't. horo we had his own uoice on the Lapos e oou.l.dn' L dcny‘
lit."lsg ‘Hoffa Joft the ccmuuitoo‘hoarihq a wounded, buthuot disab]od,
nn. llo was“ such\quontly indicted An New York on a wiretapping ohar'go;
Whth Ill,l ondod in a hung Jury, then an: acqulttal in the sprlng of
1958. lle was also J.ndlcted in New York for perjury ¢ but the case had to
vboChopnganthuJL s.ﬂxmrmm>tourL11ﬂpd1ummpoeuny in 1957 tlmt
state court’ordorjwiretaps could ne lonqer bea used in QV1denco.1§ ‘ The‘
‘ MLLLollan comuittee. held furthor hoarlngs on Hofia in 19)8 Wthh
com 1rmod and added dotall to the sordld pi cture palnted in 1937 155 “ !
Nevm Lholoc;s, UIll.LkL Bec,k, I]oLfa'o contest w1th Lho Comm:Lttoo did not ‘
result in hls unseatlng. | .[t was a blunt and acr:.monlous confrontatlon
in an lnvostrgaleo sottlng that wouLd only lator bc >ottled in a V“

‘judlc'lal forum.

4, The Apalachln Meeting B

Follow1ng the upetlng of underworld leaders at Apalaohln‘on
November ]4 1957, the McClellan ccmnuttee turned 1ts attentlon to
organlyed crlme——lts structure‘and Henbershlp In June and July 1958
thero were. hear:ngs on the background of the Apalachln attendeeo} whlch_f
‘ “was sunrmarlzod in the oomm:LLLee s flnal report. Of the 59 men who had

‘<

‘been 1dent1f1ed as in attendante, 50 had arrest records, 35 had

convictions and 93 had spont Llne 1n jdll or prlson.156” The committeeV‘

broke the stat;Lstlc'c down - Further. 18 of the nen had elther been .

arrested ot quesrloned in connecrlon w1tn murder inves tlgatlons;'LS‘had:‘

‘been arrested or eonv1eted for narcotlts, 30 had been arrested or

: ﬁbonV1cted 101 gambllng,‘ d‘23,had'beeh‘arrested or‘conv1ctodwror the |
‘ :lllegal use: of tlrearms. As to ‘their ’1egitin1ate buSiriess ‘avc‘tivities,‘ v

‘nlne were or had been in 001n-operated maehlne bu51neooos; 16 were



involvaed in geummﬂn:rmﬁurfacturing or ‘trucking; 10 owned grocery store”
or markc 57 17 owned taveins or restourants; 11 were in the olivo
o1 l-chetse importiﬁg or‘experting‘busihess; nine were in the
construction husineSS. Others were. involved in automotive aqencies)v
coal campanles, enteltalnmtnt establlshments, funeral’ homes, horses and
racetracks, I1nvn and Laundry enLorpszos, trucking coupanles,
© waterfront unlons and bakerles. ‘Ono was a conductor of a dance
orbhostra. Thc NkCJcLlan ctmmultec did not crcdlt tho pdrthdean
tory that the meet1nq had been a uhance cvent c1t1ng the exten51ve f‘
tclephono communlcatlons between the attcndees that preceded JL 157 The-
‘ConCLUSJOH of the commlttet was reLlected in remarks of Chalrman
Mo(lollan durrng Lho hearnngs, which were quoted 1n the commlttec'
final report;
. - There exists in Amerlca today what appears
to be a close-knit, clandestine, criminal
“syndicate. This group has made fortunes in the
1llegal liquor traffic during prohibition, and
" later in narcotics, vice and gambling. These
illicit profits [are today invested in]...
legitimate business. ... [Tlhe criminal
synd1cate1581s not...locallzed...but natlonal
in scope. :
A measure Of the wealth that the syndlcate members and thelr a55001ates ‘
‘jhad amassed was later descrlbed by Kennedy 1n terms of the llfe style of»
Mlckey Cohen, the west coast mobster.‘

Our investigation and hearings show[ed] that*
Mlckey Cohen spent: $275 for his silk lounglng

pajamas, $25,000 for a specially built bullet-
proof car and at one time had 300 different -
suits, 1 59g9palrs of socks and 60 parls of ‘

. $60 shoes.

He_could‘haVe_added;sdmetning'about‘their power. A moviefscript of The

Enemy Within’160 was prepared by Budd Schulberg, the,author of On the -
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Lhon called f or new approaches f or ":rac]\eteer control "

\I_\l_f_l_g‘(ﬁ_!_l_l_f_)_l_l.l___‘, an exeeptional 19')4 Fidm about unlon conupl ion. Whun
Cohmbia l’vwl'ures, howuvor was advi.se d Lhrough WlJJJdm Bufalino, ai ,
uLtorhoy for: Hoff a, lhnL Twentieth Lontury I'ox had wisely decided noL to
pl.()dU.C(} U e Lilm out oL Lear that Te =amstc_r drivers would refuse to
deliver the print to theaters, ‘Columbla also ‘c'leCJ.ded to abandon the
[)I'()j()(,‘l':,.'j; 6l "l".]l(_' wovie wWalss ‘1’1c:vor.mado.“ | |

In separate remarks httaohed to the McClellan committee report,

. Senator I\vnnedy noted that in "Lho modcrn c*rJ_mlnal underworld we faco

nauonw:.de hJ thy organl/ed and hlghly effect: ve 1nternal enemy n162 . He

163

'lhe investi qat:Lon 1nto corruptlon in the labor mvenent that was'

derCt("d by Robcrt Konnedy for the Mc(,lellan camittee was probably the

most extcnslve ever conducted by Congress.164 In some three years, 270

days o:[ hearlngs were held v 1, 526 w:Ltnesses were examlned and a

‘ .Jtaggerlng 46 150 pages of testJ.mony fllled 59 volumes of transcrlpt.‘ :

One. w1tne 55 in flve told the committee that a Lruthful answer to a

questlon would tend to 1nchmlnate hnn.;65‘ In all 2 5 m:Llllon m:Lles
were travel]ed and 8 OOO subpoenaswere‘issued In the end, OfflClalS

of 15 unlons and over 50 companles were shown to have been 1nvolved in
166

,illlClt practlces, often under the domlnatlon of organlzed crime.
The inves .tlgatlon amassod an lmprosslvo set of facts,‘ ancl J.L lej_'t Robcrt
Kennedy Wl’Lh an abldmg LOTIVlCtJ on: © "If we do not on a. nationa] sca
attack organlzed cyrimi. nal.: with weapons and technlque as effectlve as »
? thelr &wn, they w:Lll destroy us. ’]6/ B
H. The Kennedy Adnunlstratlon
" 1. The Attorney General |
)

On JanUary 20, 19611 ; at noon,\\J’ohn‘Fit'zgera]-.d Kennedy was sworn in

R



j Ly L,hl(_i Justice ]aﬂ Warren as the 35th Prce:dout of the Unite‘d States.
Tt was a buqht, cJoar, SuU,.y but cold day, a].L tho brlqhtor and colder
Jor tho new snow that had I:allen tho nlght before and st111 remalnvd on
the ground ‘On the Luupom]y wooden grandt,tande ralc,ed on the east .
R ‘stepq of the CdplLOl the contrastb between the outgolng and the ‘ N
incoming l.’rosw_l.der\Le wor.c: “‘_.“-;l‘_.j.l.klng Ono a product of: the rural Mi. ciyvoqt,
the other a product of the urban _Northeast. | There were differences 1n
'age——79 ‘ agajnet 43-——r‘eli,cjj.on-—-Protestemt 'andCa‘tholic—-—and 'phi‘l‘os'o‘phy of
‘ liffe ana ‘ﬁmlitics—‘-‘-conser\‘rative and \lj_beral”.\ Eisenhower seemed to
rtprc_sent an endlng, Kenm—_dy a beglnm.nq. Yet Eisenhovter had‘ served :
elght years~ Kennedy would be Pre51dent but a thousand days.,

I\e Proeldent-eloct Kennedy had ta.Lked w1th his brother at their
home in Hyannlsport, ‘ Mass.‘ Was he 1ntereste,d 1n becomlng Attorney
‘General? Robert Kenne'dy said "No.." ; He "had " he said, "been cha51ng
bad men .for three years, and [he] o .didn't Wa”nt to spend the rest of

168 In the end, the Pre51dent told him he

[hls] ...life doing that "
needod h;Lm The younger brother had no. chome. o

| ? Prlorltles | H Ea

“ Robert F. Kennedy had a number of prlorltles as Attorney General
| ‘He was concerned about poverty 1n the adm:Lnlstratlon of ]ustlce, he was A

‘concerned about civil rlgh't.s programs; but, most of all, he was

concerned about organized c¢rine; and it was a concern that begot action. .

Inhis jfirb‘i_ interviewas &
‘Look, a family friend that organized cri.me was. his number—oné o

p.Llorlty 169 ]\t hls fqut press conlerence, he announced that &

_‘organlzed cr.une drlve had the PreSJ.dent s backJ.ng and needed natlonal" : .‘

support ]70 "Don t tell me what I can t do," he would eay to Lhe :
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ever-negative staff attorneys at \Tustic:ce‘, "tell me what T can do."“"‘

Before Kennedy t‘:L.‘c:allod ]lenry Peterson, a career a'l':torney in the

Organized ermo and Racketoo: ing Section of the Cerlnal Dlqumn in

1960, "pcople woqu ask you to define [it]... .Robert Kennedy came in and

172

said, 'Don t dei:me it, do somethlng about it " Nevertheless, the

obstatle Lo dumg something about org<m3 zed crime were Joruuddblo. As

lato as .January 1962, J L.dgar Hoover, the: D:Lrector ot Lhc. I'BI, was on

record as eaylng,, "No s:Lngle ;Lnd;LVJ.dual or coalition of racketeers

dommates organ:L?ed ch.me across the natJ.on.":‘I'73 " For \years, stories'
L hclVL mrculated thnL ]“rank Costello, whom Hoover knew, convinced hlm

that there wa.; no natlonal organ:watlon mvolved in organued ch.me,

174 ps poth

d once conv;mcc,d ' Iloover d:Ld not ea51ly change hlS m:Lnd

men are dead tho truth of .these ..,torles cannot be detenmncd The fact

of loover's ear]y atthude however, was real.‘ Some of the other 26
Federal 1nveet1gat1ve agenc:Les may have been more receptlve to'the :Ldea

that a natlonal crime syndicate ex:.sted-——the Bureau of Narcot:.cs, for ‘

‘ c,xample——but none of those rnvolved in them was espec;Lally exc~1ted about

cooperatlng and oharlng J.nformatlon ' or work:Lng under the leadershlp of
Justlce Department attorneyb‘ Robert F Kennedy may not have changed‘

those attltudes but he dld chanqe performances, and the results were ~

‘ 1mpre551ve .

3. Results:  Administrative ‘ ‘ : v

g

HOOVeT sald the FBI oiqﬁno‘t'-have ‘adequat.e legal jurisdiction to—
lnveatrgate organlzed cr:une. Kennedy iought for the passage of new
crlmlnal statutes deallng w1th J.nterstate racketee:LJ.ng leglslatron that

had orlgmally been proposed by the Kefauver conm.lttee, but- 1gnored by
175

Congress.’ He trled hard too but falled to get leglslatlon
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authorizing court orc'ier,wiretapp:‘fng.176 The number of attorneys in the
Organized Crime and Racketecering Section in the Department of JuStic:e

177

was increased from 17. tu vo etween 1960 and 1964. - Criminal

intelligence from the various investigative agencies was pooled.

R‘Targets were selected for concentrated attention: the list started out

at 40, including Mltkey Cohcn and’ John Roselh on the West Coast,

Anthony ACCaldO and Sam Glantana in the Mldwest, Carlos Marcello and

Santo Trafficante, Jr , in the oouth and numerous Apaldchln attendees
Frosii the Northeast.178 By 1964, the list had grown to 2,300 top 1ob
fi gures and their assoc1ates, and the Organlzed Cr:Lme and Racketeerlng
Section also had 175,000 cards in its’ ‘master f:Lle of :Lnformatlon on
racketeers and a‘ssociates.1_79 ‘ | |

Kennedy S way" of uslng the Internal Revenue Service in the 'I‘reasury
Department was a good 1llustratlon of the .unpact of his personallty on
the government——ln h:Ls ovm»_r:.ght and as the Pres:Ldent's brother. ‘

Mortimer Caplan, who had taught Robert Kennedy at the University of :

| Vlrglnla Law School -was appomted Connu.ss:.oner of Internal Revenue, but

£1rst Kennedy made sure that Caplan supported v1gorous tax enforcement

180

agalnst the mob. I<ennedy knew that he would be "cr:Lt:Lc:Lzed on the

‘ grounds that tax laws are there to. ra:Lse money for the government and

w181

should not be used to punlsh the underworl Ramsey Clark the

‘Asslstant Attorney k:eneral for the Lands DlVlSlon, later named Attorney

kcases...;

L:enercu Dy Preside

;‘applled "tax c,rlterla ," 1L was ot "okay to select organized crime

w182 But that was precisely Kennedy's p01nt ‘Should mob

figures, because they were mob figures, be free to evade taxes? Kennedy

‘belleved that the arguments agalnst brlnglng mob prosecutlons 1n the tax

2183

area "were spec:Lous. Moreover 0 Kennedy could argue ‘that revenue i
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raising was a function of the organized crime program, for while he was
Attorney Ceneral, the IRS civilly assessed top racKeteers a quarter of a

 billion dol_iars in taxes beyond the amount paid when they had filed
their returmns, L 8‘4‘ At Lornty otntral 1<c,nnedy addre ssed a group of IRS
agents on the J_mportance of the tax program:

e s on that this [programJ has
received such top priority...is not that
[Secretary of the Treasury] Mr. Dillon is’
interested in it, ...but the fact that the
President himself is$ personally interested
...He 'served on the McClellan committee for

. three years and became personally 1ntere§85
‘ ted. .« «Your work is of great J_mportance.

I<ennedy d:Ld more than make speeches, giving the program personal

“attentlon. Reglonal Dlreotors of the IRS who did ‘not support the

program were transferred‘.186 The program paid off in concrete% results.

| IRS man—days of partlcn.patlon in organlzed crime mvestlgatlons rose

from 8,836 in 1960 to 96,182 in 1963.18«7 In 1967, the President's

‘Commlss:l.on on Law Enforcement and the Admlnlstratlon of Justlce found
Lhat 60 percent of all organlzed crime prosecutlons brought between 1961 ‘

and 1965 turned out to have originated J.n tax 1nvest:.gat:Lons.188

4. Public Attention: McClellan Hearlngs

In ade.t:Lon to developlng leglslatlon and brlnglng civil actlons, '
; Kénnedy sought to focus publlc attentlon on ‘organized chme He spoke
w1de1y and freely gave 1nterv:|.ews. He also worked c,losely WJ.th Senator,

McClella.n in presentlng a comprehens:Lve set of hearlngs, beglnnlng on

September 25, 1963, on the natlonw1de structuro of the Mafla or La Cosa
Nostra, as it wasf known by” 1ts members, The hearlngs would feature the
| ~testimony of Jos‘eph Valachi, Ythe “first menber of La‘ Cosa‘,_Nostra everto
- testify publlcly about the nature of the organlzatlon. Senator .

“ koClellan opened w1th a statement, in Whlch he observed
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Today, we begin a new series of hearings
[into organlzcd or synidcated crime]....We
- will,..examine...[its] existence,...its growth,
- how :Lt operate its impact on society, the
toll .t~ -8 frcm our econamy and just how
effective or deflc:l.ent [are] ex1st1ng laws. .o

The existence of such a crlmlnal organlzatlon
as Cosa Nostra is Irlghtenmg. [It]...attempts
. to be a form of government unto itself... .Murder
o lin its behalf] has often been ordered for a”
 variety of reasons; a grab for power, the code
- of vengeance, gangland rivalries, 1nf1de11ty
C : ‘ - to the organ:l.zati@g or even for susplclons of
. RO = o : derellctlons.... )

The lead-off w1tness before the Cammittee was Attorney General ;
Kennedy, hJ.mself. He ccmmented on the structure of organlzed cr:m‘e 190
> , R Because of :Lntelllgence gathered from
‘ : ' Joseph Valachi and from informants--we
know that Cosa Nostra is run by a comission
- [of nine to 12 men], and that the leaders of
" Cosa Nostra in most cltles are responsible
to the ccmm.ss:.on.

He described his organlzed cr:.me program:191

Syndicate leaders and thelr assoc1ates
have been identified and all are now under -
intensive investigation. A number of major .
‘racketeermg figures have been convicted and
many more cases are in the 1ndlctment or"
mvestlgatlve stage.

.o-oo-'\'_'-‘o'o-oooo'o--o-oo'-do-oo"o'----oo--.‘

P ‘ L It is an organization. It is [the]
- Mafia., It is the Cosa Nostra. There are
_other names for it, buifg}t all refers to e
the same organlzatlon. ‘

IIe noted the dlfflculty 1n solVJ.ng organ:l.zed crlme murders'

[T] he members of the comission, the
top members, or even their chief lleutenants,
have insulated themselves from the crime =
itself; if they want to have ‘samebody knocked
R i ‘ L off; ‘For Jnf‘tance, the top man will speak to
oo R R somebody wno will speak to somebody else who:
S o ‘ will speak to somebody else and order it. The



man’ who actually does the gun work. . .does not
kniow who ordered it.- 1'5‘9 trace that back is
Vlrtually Jmposs1ble. ‘

l'lna] ly, Kemucdy dlscussed the tendency of orgam?ed crime flgures

Lo move out of gambllng and narcotlcs 1nto leglt:mate bu51ne.:s and

g unlons, but he added

“J don £ ey mybody to mlsunderstand the" fact ;
“that they are also domg the same thlngs that

- they were doing during the days of Al Capone.
Because there have been 1arge numbers of very
brutal murders which have been corrmltted by

L those in. organlzed crime just over a period of

" the last two, ‘years. Certainly not a week goes

by that somewhere in the United States an in-
‘dividual is not kllled or murdered in some kind
“of ganglandl attle or a witness is not garroted
‘fand kllled L L -

" The Attorney C.eneral was followed by law enforcement OfflClalS from
all over the country, who adv1sed the conmlttee on the structure of o
‘organlzed crlme “in Lhelr respectlve areas. g In addltlon s the commlttee
was able to 1dent1fy from federal and local. J.ntelllgence reports the
| v organlzed cr:lme famJ.lles that dom:mated varlous areas and varlous :

| ~illicit: act1v1t1es, :mcludlng the 1dent1ty of thelr bosses, underbosses,

' con31gller1, caporeglme, and thelr members. To the general 1ntelllgence :

e presenLed by the law enforcement w1tnesses, Joseph Valachl added hlS

| personal knowledge of the hlstory of organlzed cr:me in, New York, where
he had for years been a member of the VltO Genovese fam:Lly.,

| 5 Results- Statlstlcal'ﬂf, [

: 'I‘he overall statlstlcs of the K—nnedy orqanlzed cr:une program 1n
“the Department of Justlce were unpre551ve.1'95’vl“ In 1960 Organlzed Cr:me
and Racketeerlng Sectlon attorneys spent 6l days 1n court, 660 days 1n |
,‘ 'vthe fleld and 100 days before a grand jury, :Ln 1963 they spent l 081

days :Ln court, 6 177 days 1n the fleld and 1 353 days before a grand
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jury. The number of indicted individuals rose fram 121 in ].961 to 619
ln 1963; convictions, wh1ch ‘always lag two Lo three years behlncl
1ndlc,tnt—:-nts, rose frwm'7? n 1961 to 288 in 1963 In all, 116
1nd1v1duals who, ac‘cmdmg to subsequent 1nvest1gatlons, were members -of
La Cosa’ Nostra, were 1ncluded 1n the Department's radketeerlng
indictnents botwem 1960 and 1964 ’ J.ncludlng such top syndlcate figures
as Anthony Accardo (tax‘eVasion) in Chicago, Anthony Provensano
(extortlon) in Ncw Jersey, Alfred Slca (tax evas1on) in Callfornla
‘Joseph Valachl (narcotlcs) in New York, Angelo Bruno (extortlon) in
Phlladelphla, (.arlos Marcello (consplracy) in New Orleans, Carmlne
Lombardozz:n. (tax evasion) in New York, Anthony G:Lacolone (tax evas:Lon)
in Detroit and JoSeph Glimoo (unlawful _payments) in .Chicago. In: |
addition, Mickey Cohen, a West Coast underworld flgure, though not a
_ menber of La Cosa Nostra, was convicte:d“ of tax evasion.‘ For the first
time on“ a'sustained cdmprehensive basis, the'sy‘ndicate was ‘feeling the
pressure, not ]ust the publlc exposure of a Congressmnal mvestlgatlon,
: but prosecutlon for serious crime. Robert M., Morgenthau , the United
”yptates ALtorney for Manhattan ; who was later elected dlstrlct attorney,
told of the Jmpact of the Kennedy organued crime program. |

It really wasn't until Robert F. Kennedy

became Attorney General that an organized

program was developed.... It's kind of

" like a good football team. You know, they

can lose a few of the top players, and *they‘
can fill those spots with substltutes, but

when it reaches a point where there are no

substitutes available...I think...that' s9 6

what.. .happened. .+ [to] organlzed crime.
'Ihat is what was happenlng at least untll November 22 1963

6.‘ Irrpact of the Pre51dent's Assass:matlon

After the Preside... o, ;ssasslnatl'on ' }the steam went out of the



orgam zed crime proqram. Whatever was 1ntended, the mab proved to be
the pr lnchal bcnoflclary of Dallao. »]t- started w1th llttle thlngs. No
longor dld the FBI sond a car to p;Lc,k up the Attorney General when he
travellcd around I:he c,ountry.]‘g7 The whole—hearted enthusiasm at .[Rb
soon waned The pl_ogram ceased to functlon as it had; The statlstlcs
tell Lho 5 tory 19‘8 By 1966 Lho number oj attorneys in the Organlxod
- Crime and Rackotoorlng Section was - down to 48; days in court fell to |
‘ 606 clays 1n the fleld to 3, 480 days before the. grand jury to 373. IRS o
part:Lc:LpatJ.on was down to 74 938 man—days in 1966 by 1968, :Lt was only
“42 120. The pressure was oEf the syndlcate.‘ ‘ |

I-or a t:Lme, however, the Kennedy crime program was carrled by its
own mouun-'l.um. . 'l‘ho MLLlollan commlttoe, 1n July ‘and AugusL 1964 rosumed
hearlngs that had been suspended in October 1963 ‘ 'I’he comm.ttee s
‘pr1nc1pal interest was syndlcate act1v1ty in narcot:Lcs. The”Md:lellan*
conmlttee f:Lled a: three—part final report on March 4, 1965 th.ch set
| out its has1c f:Lndlngs about the natlonal syndlcate :Ln partlcular what

19_9

the committee had learned from the testlmony of Joseph Valach:n.. The

Annual Report of the Attorney General submltted by Kennedy for 1963,

‘ "breakthrough " wh:Lch enabled the Department "to prove. conclus:Lvely" the |

existence of the "nat;Lonw:Lde" organlzatlon known as "Cosa Nostra."zo0

The McClellan comm:Lttee agreed that Valachl s test:l.mony wag .trustworthy,‘

—and—it;—too; u.‘

organlzatlon of the underworld Nevertheless, not all wrlters then or-
later agreed e:Lther Wlth the Department of Justlce or the McClellan
conmlttee evaluatlon of Valachl s testlmony. Ralph de Toledano

reflected the late Dlrector S skeptlc;l.sm toward Valachl, notlng that the



FBI had "lonq known" of the organuatlon and that not a smgle
202

convxcL:Lon had boen based on Valachl s testlmony. Arthur Schl‘esinger
apparent]y ref 1octcd his own £oe11ngs in 1965 when he observod that

» [c]rmu nolocpst._». . .were skeptlcal of the sanctron Lhe Deparw\enL [oL

Justice] gave to ‘the notlon of a centrally organlzed and all—pervaswe
’ T Mafia.. ."203 Sc‘hﬁl.(:sirig‘er's own feelin‘gswere made explicit in “19"‘/8,

when he observed that he found the skeptics' position "more |

204

; persuasive b The judgment of knowledgeable professionals outside the:

“v“lgoverrment, however, was aptly expressed in 1969 by Ralph Salerno, a

hlghly rcspecLed authorlty on organlzed crime.

The Valachl confess:.ons are ranked next to

Z\palac*h.m as the greatest single [1ntelllgcnce]

blow ever delivered to organlzed crime in the

United States. This evaluation came from the

lips of those most affected by it: menbers of

the criminal network whose camments were over—
, heard through bug and w1retap. ‘

: ST Many of the 1n01dents Valachi descr:l.bed had. ..
e been known to the police, but...[Valachi] was
able to £ill in the gaps and connect one incident .
to another.... [Valachi]...drew a schematic"
“picture of the organlzatlon , described it and
P ‘ told how it worked. The police, for example,
> NI R ~ had long realized that certain underworld
i : ‘ figures were often ‘seen with each other, but -
. they did not realize that these were formal,
“not casual, associations, relatlonshlps of rank
in a system governed by rules and regulatlons. ‘
s S ~ -The pattern that Valachi furnished made it
> o ' possible for police intelligence men to begin to
5 ‘ ‘ see the dimensions of syndlcated crime and stop2 5
- looking at it as a serles of unconnected cases.

ULgdnized =

b _ . crime only after Genovese had marked hlm for death thlnklng he was an
‘Jnformer. . Valachl had his revcngc,.‘ One of Lhe most protecLLd prlSOIl(:‘lg
in the history of the federal prlson system, he dJ.ed of natural causes

% | at LaTuna Federal PJ'LtF-‘YI"'"-‘ty, El Paso, Texas, on ‘April 3 1971.
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7. Jinuy Hoffa
James R.. I'IOf'FEl"“‘ stewardsh‘ip of the"I“e‘ams;ter' s Union was also a

..:Ub]eCL of. concerted 1nterest for the McClellan comm:Lttee when Robert r.
‘Kennedy was 1Ls Chlef Lounsel 1L contlnued to be after Kennedy .
res1gned When Kennedy became Attorney General Hoffa was h:Lgh on the

: agonda of . Lho Departmcnt ol Julece s efforts agalnst corruptlon in the

| 1abor movement In 1958, Attorney General William Roberts had sot up a-
‘, - Special Group on Olganlzed Cr;une headed by Ml]ton Wessel to- look into
the Apalachln meetlng. Attor'ney General Kennedy followed up by |
ass 1gmng a spec1al group in the Labor R:Lghts Un:Lt of the Organlzed
¥ " Crime and Racketeerlng Sectlon to the ‘I‘eamsters Unlon. Headed by Walter

| ‘ Sherldan, ‘a former 1nvest1gator for the McClellan commlttee p tho spe01al o
group’ was charged by the Attorney General "Lo take a fresh look at the |
flndlngs of the McClellan ccmnlttee and to probe generally dinto. the
tleld of racketeerlng v partlcularly :Lnto the act1v1t1es of Hoffa and the
Tearnsters'."'zos The group came to be known as the "Get Hoffa Squad "o
“Hoffa hJ.mself charged on November 15, 1961 that 29 specn.al grand jurles
and one—half oi' the Justlce Department s lawyers and FBI agents were out‘
to get h:un, 1n fact, there were only 13 grand jurJ.es, 16 attorneys and
;‘yapproxmately 30 FBI agents, and theJ.r attent:Lon was not focused solely |

-.on Hoffa, though it was the:Lr prJ.mary ass:.gnment.207, The. effort did -

show some m\presswe results. Durlng Kennedy S: tenure as Attorney

: ". ‘y‘

126 of them were conv:Lcted 208

Nevertheless, the most J.Irportant
prosecutlons were the three brought agalnst Hoffa hJ.mself -

- The 'I‘aft—Hartley Act Prosecutlon " i

On May 18, 1962, Hoffa was :Lndlcted under the Taft—Hartley Act in

4



HNashV:llle, Tennessee for rece1v1ng $1, 000 000 in Jllogal paymcnts

through a trucklng company, the '1‘est r‘loet Corporatlon, which had been

209

set up in h:Ls w1fe S name, II:Ls trial ended w1th a hung jury on

December 23 1962 but the ]udge, William E M:Lller, ordered thc
convenmg of a grand JurY to lHVGStlgate charges of jury Lamperlng ’I‘he |
judge col.uuentocl ‘ ‘ ‘

’I'he right of a defendant in a criminal case to:
be tried by a jury of his peers is one of the
mostsacred of our const:LtutJ.onal guarantees.
The system of trial by jury, however, becomes
nothing more than a mockery if: unscrupulous
persons. are allowed to subvert it by improper.
“and unlawful means. I do not intend that such
shameful acts to corrupt om):laury system shall
go unnotlced by this. court. ‘

| The grand Jury J.nvestlgatlon resulted J.n Hoffa and f:Lve others
being :Lndlcted in NashVJ.lle on May 9 1963, ‘Hoffa and seven others were
also ;mdlcted in Chlcago on June 4, 1963 for obta:Ln:Lng by fraud i
‘$20 000 000 in loans from the Central States Pens:Lon Fund, from wh:Lch
1t was charged, they had d:Lverted $1 000 000 for thelr own benef:.t.z}1
But flrst actlon had to be ‘taken agalnst one of Hoffa s ]awyers. ) ;

b Actlons Agalnst Hoffa ] Lawyer

- One November 7, 1963 Sherldan learned that an effort was belng made
by a IIoffaattorney, Z T "Tonmy" Osborn, Jr., to tamper w1th the jury
in the ju.ry tamperlng trlal Osborn"z‘12 was' a promlnent Tennessee

lawyer. He was the leadlng candidate for presldent of the Nashville Bar
Ll | 213 .

‘A:‘SSOClatlon’,‘h and he had succesSr.ully argued‘ Baker v. Carr,‘ ~—the-
'I‘ennessee reapportlonment case, before the U S. / ‘Supreme Court Wlth
'the trJ.al judge s permlss:Lon, key conversatlons beWeen Osborn and

| Robert V:Lck, a man whose asslstance Osborn had sought in the brlbery

| attempt, were recorded Osborn was confronted with the allegatlon b)
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the' court; ‘he denied it , ‘unt.il thc tape was presented to him. e 'then“
claimed ho had bLCl’l entrappcd On . Novunber 21, the court dlsbarrcd |
‘:‘Osborn, Lomung hJ. actlons "a callous and .,hameful dlsrcgard of
\ duly. .o ."rM‘ JNanually, Osborn was 1nd.Lc,Led and trled for cndcavorlng ’
| ,. to obstruct justlce. He was found gullty and sentenced to
Lhrte—and—-onc—halt yoals in prlson sa conV1cL10n Lhat was uphelu by the
~ Supreme Court m 1966 ‘:: : bubsequcntly, it lcarned that Osborn' s g |
paymcnt recelved 1n January 1964, was $12'/ 500 of a dlverted Tcamsterc :
pc,ns1on fund loan, though 1t was not enough to: repalr the damage to a
| :“;‘pronusmg career, Osboxn was paroled 1n Aprll 1969, apparently afLer “ﬁ
congress:Lonal mterventlon, on February 2 1970 he commJ.tted |
216 Y , : . ‘

su1c1dc .

: “c.‘ 'I‘he Jury ‘I‘amperlng Prosecutlon

Hoffa s jury tamperlng trlal Wthh had been shlfted to
f‘Chattanooga, got underway on January 20 1964, before Judge Frank W. v
: WllSOl'l. | le ‘weeks ]ater :Lt ground to an end Hoffa was found gullty '
’ _prn.nclpally on the baSlS of the testlmony of Edward Crady Partn.n, the 3‘
’SecretaryJI‘reasurer of Teamster Local “in Baton Rouge, La. r who had
“:been part ‘of Hoffa s retlnue durlng the Nashv:.lle trlal but who had
dec:Lded to cooperate w:Lth the government in September 1962 Partln at
‘that time told Justlce Department lawyers about a June 1962 conversatlon

‘ he had had with Hoffa J_n Washlngton 1n Whlch Hoffa had talked about

: JFBI lle detector test 1nd1cated he was telllng the truth 217 Partln

: :‘f"agreed to: tell Sherldan whaL he knew about Hoffa' s effort 0 1nfluence
' the jury in the Nashv:Llle prosecuu.on, and hlS 1ncr1mlnat1.ng testlmony

”‘,_l‘surv:Lved flve days of gruellng cross-—examlnatlon.k Tt was :on the b_as:.s



of Partin's‘account'that the jury verdict ultimately rested. Judge
 Wilson sentenced Hoffa to eight years in prison on MarCh 12, 1964
saying:

Mr. Hofic..../lou stand here convicted of having °
tampered, really, with the very soul of this
nation...[w]ithout a fair, proper and lawful
administration of justice, nothlng else would"

‘be possible in this country--~the administra- -
tion of labor unlons, the administration of
business, the carrying on of recreation, the
administration of health services, everything
we call civilization depends ultimately upon218
the proper adminlstratlon of justice 1tself

The aupreme Court upheld Lhe conv1ctlon in 1966. 219

‘ d.“ ’I‘he 1"raud Prosecution

~ Hoffa's Chicago ‘t‘rial*for fraud in connection with the; pension . .
funds got underway on April 27, 1964. After 13 weeks it ended with a
five and one-half hour summation to the juryby Assistant u.s. Attorney
W:Llliam Blttman v in which the flow of funds was traced g
through intricate and dev1ous channels. Blttman was followed by a
rebuttal by Charles Bellows, a prominent défenseCounsel in Chicago,
but ,Judge Richard Austin became angered when he learned that Béllows
had used charts based on exhibits not in evidence and | he instructed

the jury to dlsregard thetn.zzo

Hoffa was found gullty after the juxy
deliberated 17% hours, and Judge Austln sentenced h:un, on
| August 17 1964 to serve five years 1n addltlon to his jury tamperlng ”

term. Elght days later Robert Kennedy ‘ having res:.gned as Attorney

' General announced hls candldacy for the U S Senate from New York, he :

. was elected in November.

Hoffa dld not go to ]all untll March 1967, when all hlS appeals
had became final. It had been a contest of w1lls of two detexmined g

bitterly opposed‘men‘ a tﬁ " “nic struggle, unprecedented in history.
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Ilolfa had won the f 1rst rounds, but Kennedy had won the last. Hoffa‘
would e onLend ho had been £ rcm\ed but jurJ es decided otherwise. There
was more’ to Iloffa bau_le to tay out of prlson than showcd in the

court x:ecc)rds. The (,hlcago underworld had a pla.n to fix Judge M:Llle
in Nashville, but no one had the courage to offer the er.be,221 ,there“
, was"also a threat"against‘the brother of SuprcmeCourt Justice William

J. Brennan in connecthn wWau Hoffa s appeal whlch was 1gnored-2"2

223

and there were varlous other despf.rate cfforts,‘ allegations of

government w1retapp1ng and an offer of $100 000 to dJ. Edgar ‘Hoov‘er, ‘

if he would testlfy they were true,?“24 accusatlons (later dlscredlted)

. that the judge and jury 1n Chattanooga had been supplled prostltutes

by u. &». Mars ,hals.225 A U. s. Senator who had enjoycd 'I‘eamster support,

Edward I_ong of M:Lssourl (he had once recelved $100 000 in questlonable

26 ‘was behlnd an effort to undercut

227

fees from one of Hofi:a S attorneys) '
the organlzed crime program and enbarrass the Attorney General | And
Congressman Roland LJ.bonat:L of Chlcago demanded an 1nvest1gatlon by the
House Judluary Commlttee 1nto the Hoffa prosecutlons in a resolutlon | ‘
‘that passed on September 22, 1964 but was not carr:\.ed forward after :

: leonatl did not run for re--electlon.,z,?‘8 Dav1d Brlnkley of NBC termed

the leonatr demand "p.u.ous mouthlng " and he descrlbed "the spectacle" :
of a congress:.onal committee "dan01ng to J:mey Hoffa s tune."?‘?g “ »

F:Lnally, agents of Carlos Marcello——a friend, Pete Rotolla, and

a lawyer, G- ‘
tape recordlngs, and a $1 000,000 fund was allegedly mde avallable to
Marcello by unlon and undermrld supporters of IIoffa Lo bc_ used to treo |

230

the Teamster leader. All of the efforts to subvert ]ustlce falled’. g

e, Hoffa s Murder

Hoffa recelved an Executlve Grant of. Clemency from Pres1dent
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Richard M. Ni.xon on December 23, 1971, without the customary consulta-
tion with the judge who sentenced him, and even though the U.S. Parole
" B‘o‘ar‘d:‘- on three ocoasions in the preceding two years :‘had[considered and

231

unanimously rejected u\i.—.‘ iv eSts for release. The Parole 'Board"s

decisions had ' in‘vpart been based on advice fram the'Justice Department

glhat llofJa was. Ll(‘d to organlzcd r.,r.uw ' rl‘here were also ugly rumors

about the clcnency glant 'Ihe New York Tnmes termed it a plvotal

tlc_ment in the strong love affaJ.r between the [N:onn] admlnlstratlon‘ and
the unlon,“ implymg it was related to the 1972 electJ.on.232 The
‘ terms of hJ.s re] ease, however, forbade Hoffa from engaglng in: dlrect or
: 1nd1rect management of a labor organlzatlon. Much as the unJ.on wanted f‘
‘IIoffa out of prison, J.t seerred the mob did not want hJ.m in a pOSltlon
of ‘unlon lea’dershlp.“ The parole restriction had been bought r accordlng
to one ‘rumor,233 w1th a '$500,000 mob contr:l.butlon to the Pres:.dent s

re—electlon campalgn, englneered by Anthony Provenzano, a Teamster

leader in New Jersey and a capgreg 1n the Genovese famlly of La Cosa. ‘
: 2
: Nostra. 34‘ Once out, Hoffa flled qu.t to declare the restrlctlon null

and v01d and he began to make a move to regaln the pres:.dency of the
union.  He was soundlng like a reformer, and one: promlse he made, ‘1f

| elected 1n 1976 1ronlcally ’ was to end the Teamster s relatlons w1th
’the mob. That prom.lse went too far It would lead to h:Ls murder.235

At about 1:15 p m. on July 30 1975 Hoffa left h1s Detro:Lt home

‘_;on Robson Drive to. go to the Red Fox Restaurant im Bloomfleld, a suburb

of Detr01t to meot w1th Anthony Provenzano and Anthony Glacolone, who
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was a caporegima in the Detroit La Cosa Nostra family. Hoffa arrived
~.at the Red Fox about 2:00 p. . Neither Provenzano nor Giacolone were

Vthcre, they would both subsequently establlsh their whereabouts

elsewhere by alrtlght allblS. Hoffa was ev1dently plcked up between

2" 45 and 2:50 by Charles O'Brien, the son of Hoffa's one—tlme girl-

fr 1end ¢ Syl via Plgano. I\ccording to one account 237 t least two other

‘men were in the car, or~. whom was SalVatore Brlgugllo , who served as-

bus1ness agent for. Teamster ]’_ocal 560 Provenzano s home local. Hoffa |

‘was probably knocked unconsc:.ous, which would expla:.n why hlS halr

‘partlcles and traces of hlS blood were. found 1n the back seat of the

m‘aroon'Mercury that O' Brn.en had borrowed from Glacolone s son, Joey.‘238‘

o Brlen had close thS to: Glacolone, whom he-called Uncle Tony. Indeed .

O'Brien's mother, Sylv1a, who dled 1n 1970, had also been Glacolone s

k girlfrlend' 1n addltlon, she had been a close frlend of Hoffa's w1fe,

' Josephlne, and it was’ rumored that the two wamen were double-datlng ‘
- Giacolone and Anthony CJ.m1n1, another Mafia leader 1n the Detroit area,

“in the early 1960s. Accord;Lng to that story, Hoffa had only been ablef :

to break“ up the affair by appealing directly to Joseph Zerilli, ‘the La
o 239

. Cosa. Nostra boss in Detroit It has been suggested , on’ the other

240

: hand , that the hlt nen were not w1th O Brlen in the car. Instead

- Hoffa was driven to O'Brien's temporary residence four mlnutos from the o

Red Fox. Waiting calmly at the house were Salvatore and Gabriel

Brlgugllo and Thomas Andretta ‘ who were flown in on a prlvate plane. o

_There were also confllctlng reports as to where Hoffa was actually S

© killed, It may havc been at the house where O'Brien was staylng . but

apparently unbeknownst to the people who llved there. ‘41 In addltlon, :

there were contradlctlons as to how Hoffa s body was dlsposed of. One o
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1nformant'° story was that 1t was stuffed into a 55-gallon drum and
| “shlpped to a Now Jers(,y dump 242 It was also reported that the
facilities f(shr‘edder, compactor, and incinerator) of Central Sanitation

Services, in Hamtramck, Mich, were used.‘?43

'~ According to 'other BT
informants, Central Sanit.ation Services, which was owned‘by Rafael“
Quasarano a‘nd Petor Vitale, two Isetroit La Cosa Nostra nembers, ‘had bcen
- used to dispose of at Jeast 10 other bodies of Mafia murde'r victfimS 244
I‘;Lnally, Lhere was disagreement over how much O'Brlen knew or what his ‘.
role was. :‘ o' Br:Len h:.mself said: "I never d:Ld anythlng to hurt J:any

"245 What there was no dlsagreement about was that Hoffa was

_‘ Hof fa.
dead, and the mob was responsn.ble for his death

The murder, moreover, was ultlmately traccd to Russell Bufallno of ‘
Pittston, Pa., a Mafia leader for a large area of Pennsylvam.a and an
‘Apalachin attendee\_in‘ 1957;246 In addition to ‘Bufali“no ; the | finger
" pointed at Joseph Zerilli, as neither ProvenzanonOr ‘:Giacolone had the
stature to order a hit on ‘Hoffa in 'Zerilli's territory. ‘Bufalino's |
1nvolvement could be 1nferred from a number of factors.247 He had, for
one’ thlng, long been assoc:Lated w1th both Provenzano and Glacolone,‘ he"* ‘
‘had al.ao been in telephonc. contact w1th Quasarano and Vitale 1n the N |
months that mmedlately preceded Hoffa s d1sappearance, and he was, close
ko his: cousm, W:Llllam Bufallno of Detro:.t, a former Hoffa attorney, who i

showed up to represent all of the suspects and the:Lr allbl w1tnesses 1n

a grand Jury probe oF Hoffa E dlsappearance. Flnally, FTnk_Sneeran ’
‘the president of Teamster Local 326 in Delaware, ‘who shepherded the ‘
a11b1 witnesses befoxe the grand jury, was Jnvolved w1th Bufallno in a
"labor leasmg" schen‘e to c1rcumvent wage prov151ons of the Natlonal

E Master Frei: ght Agreement, Wthh would have been in jeopardy had Hoffa



* returned to powér.

f. Iloffa s Murder.‘ The Motive

Hoffa' S dlsapearance and death however, needs to be placed in a
broader perspcctlve than concern that he mJ.ght put an end to a labor -
leas:mg scheme Before hlS death, Hoffa represented the mob's access to
an Jmporlant sourc*c oJ woaLLh 'l‘hc 'J ccunstors Union Ccntral bLate

248

Pens:Lon I‘und As an l‘BT electronlc‘ survelllance conductcd bet:ween , :

1961 and 1964 on the Home Julce Company of Detr01t showed (IIome Julce ’

Cial soft drlnk dlstrlbutor, was owned by Anthony and V:Lto G:Lacolone) v

| o Hoffa was the mob‘s connectlon" to the Fund Accordlng to VltO

G:Lacolone, Mlke POlJ.ZZl, a, Detro:Lt mob flgure, had remarked that "he

- would havc hever gotten hlS loan of $630 000 w:Lthout JJ_mmy : The load

" had becn obLalned "through SylV:La O‘Brlen." Mlke also sald that R
"J:xmmy...had to put his stamp on 1t in order to [force] these guys [the,‘
= fund trustees] to glve 1t to hlm. " Several factors contrlbuted to" ‘
= vHoffa s mfluence over the fund, a ]Olnt employer—unlon trusteeshlp for |
- the employees, whlch was establlshed 1n January 1955, 249 uThe un:Lon o
"had de facto control over the mvestmenL dec1s:|.ons made as the
‘employers did: not want to antagonlze Hoffa. In ade.t:Lon, the declslon
gwas made to 1nvest the fund's assets dlrectly and not to g:Lve ltS ‘

- ‘management over to profess:Lonals. Hoffa, hlmself therefore, became

‘ the controlllng flgure 1n the mak:l.ng of loans.f S s .

Hoffa s chlef adV1ser on pens1on loans was Allen Dorfman, ‘

| Nstepson of Paul Dorfman, through whom Hoffa had establlshed and

" ‘rralntamed hlS Chlcago mob connect:Lons. Paul Dorfman was’ one of Lhe o

‘ flve or six closest assoc:Lates of Anthony Accardo one of Al Capone [

" successors. in Chlcago. When Hoffa went to prlson 1n 1967 he told L
,F:Ltzsmmons that Allen "speaks for me on all pens1on fund questlons."z\sq ‘



Ivloffa‘l\dded, "He's the guy in charqe while I'm c_rone."‘zs1 Dorfman, like
loffa, has been success sful in dcioatlng a nunbor of crlmlna]
pro:secutions. lle was’ found not quilty in Hoffa's Chattanooga jury
Lanptrlnq prosecution in 1964 he was also found not guilty in 1974 OL‘
embezzlement and ma:Ll fraud in connectlon with a fund loan of

$1,400, 000 Chargod WLLh hlm in Lhe 1974 prosooutlon were Anthony
Spilotro and Fellx Alderlslo, both Chlcago mob figures, and Irw1n
WCanl, a chlcago bail bondsman long suspected of organlzed crime tles.
On Septenber 27, 1974 a w1tness 1n the embezzlement and mall fraud
case,‘Danlel elfert, was shotgunned ‘to death in front of hls w1fe and ‘
two—year—old son.%52‘ Dorfman's one guilty verdlct came in 1972——for
cons plracy to takc a $55 000 ‘kickback for arranglng a $1,500. 000 loan.
The cross—oxanunatn.on by the prosecutor at Dorfman S trlal establlshed
how little 1ndependent Judgnent the funds trustees exer01sed over loans
or over Dorﬁnan, then an enployee of the Fund Dorfrran was able to
extract the §$55, 000 klckback by arguing that the fund had already lost
='e] much money on outstandlng $15 000, 000 loans to the borrower who pa:Ld
the klckback George Horvath, that a new one should cost Horvath the I
$55,000. 253 ‘ |

‘ Although the Horvath klckback was Dorfman's only crlmlnal

. conviction, there were organlzed cr:Lme overtones to pens1on fund loans L

he admlnlstered partlcularly some, in Las Vegas. Most pens:.on funds o

" tend to ‘have a conservatlve pollcy ’ mvestlng prlmarlly in government

bonds and havmg less than two per cent of the:Lr assets in real‘ ‘

| est‘ate.254: Yet by 1963 the Central States l"und, w:Lth accumulated

- assets of $213 mJ.lllon, had 63 per cent of :Lts 1nvestments Ain real
‘estate and only three per cent 1n governnent bonds, with the resL held
‘ 255

in bank accounts and 30"‘"_“"" e bonds Fund loans J.ncluded in 195'9
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loffa Nded, "He's the guy in charge whlle I m gono.'f25] Dorfnian,” li]te
Noffa, h boen successful 1n def oatlng a number of crnmna] d‘

: prosecutlons. He was found not gullty 1n IIoffa 8 Chattdnooga jury
Lamperlng prosc,cutlon 1n 1964 he was al.:o found not gullty 1n 1974 of

embezzlement and mai. l fraud in connectlon w;Lth a fund 1loan of

-~ $1,400, 000 ‘(,harged W1th him 1n the 1974 prosecutJ.on were Anthony :

pllotro and I‘ollx Alderlslo ' both Chlcago mob figures, and Irwin
| Welner, a Chlcago bdll bondsman long suspected of organlzed ch.me thS.‘ |
On September 27 1974 a wltness in the embezzlement and mall fraud
| case, Danlel be:u‘ ert, was shotgurmed to death in front of hls Wlf(. and
two—year—old son.252; Dorfman's one gullty verdlct came in 1972-——for
consplracy to take a $55 000 klckback for arranglng a $1, 500 000 loan.‘
: ’The c:.oss—exanunatlon by the prosecutor at Dorfman's trlal establlshed
how ltttle 1ndependent judgment the funds trustees exerc:Lsed over loans ‘
‘ or: over Dorfman, then an employee of the Fund ‘ Dorfman was able to "
extract the $55,000 klckback by argulng that the fund had already lost
SO much money on outstandlng $15, 000‘ 000 loans to the borrower who pald
the klckback George Horvath ' that a new one should cost Horvath the |
$55,000. BIL | | o Ty '
| | Although the Horvath klckback was Dorfman's only crmu.nal

‘ conv1ct;|.on, there were organlzed crime’ overtones to pens;Lon fund loans

he admm:Lstered, partlcularly same' 1n Las Vegas. Most pens:uon funds

tend to have a con.,ervatlve polJ.cy, 1nvest1ng perarlly 1n government i

bonds and havmg less than two per cent of the:Lr assets in. real

& 'estate.254 Yet by 1963 the Central States Fund w:Lth accumulated

| ‘assets of $213 m.'LllJ.on, had 63 per cent of J.t., mvestments in: real ;
__estate and only three per cent 1n government bonds, wi. th the rest held |
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in’ bank accounts and corporate bonds l‘undloans 1ncluded 1n 19.)9
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and 1960 a series made to Morris "Moe" Dalitz, a gambler and fomex
hoot. leggor from Cleveland, whom Hoffa had known in Detro:Lt and through
whom a payoff had been allegedly arranged to se‘ttle a Teamster laundry

‘256_ The Dalitz loans were cbtained to build Sunris:? ‘

strike in 1949,
Hospltal 1n Las Vega.p, as well as to flnance Lhe Stardust Hotel and
Country Club, Lho 1' renont IloLol and tho Desert Inn, all in Las Vogas.

Z\ccordlng to FBI ov:Ldence, the Stardust l’remonL and Dcsort Inn casmos

welc taken to the tune of $100 OOO—a—nDnth 1n the early 1960s by a skJ.m

e operatlon for the. beneflt of organlzed ch.me flgures, mcludlng Sam

Qlancana of L,hlcago i John Scal:Lsh of Cleveland and Meyer Lansky of

e r— Pension records showed that from 1965 to 1972, $20, 400,000

was lcnt to Caesar' S Palace, the ostenslble owner of Wthh was Jay

Sarno,258‘ but who was really ' accordlng to. the FBI ,_- a front for

organized crime interests in the Midwest and New England.zsg ,

- Skimming was suspected atheasa"r's Palace but not documented by the
I‘BI In 19'71, on Dorfman"s‘ recomlendation‘, fund assets were also put
260 . ’

. into the Circus Circus Hotel and Casino. Loans of $15,500, 000 ‘and

~<;2 000 000 were approved, the total figure flnally reachlng $26, 000 000,

Jay Sarno was again the paper owner r but . the real party in 1nterest, :

“ “accordlng to. the FBI was Anthony Spllotro P descrlbed by the IllanlS

Crime Investlgatlon Ccmnlssn.on as "one of the nmost dangerous gang B

errorists in the Chicago area. w261 The FBI was also Suspected Skirmning

7 olpp.(.uvcu a

$62 700 000 loan to the Argent (,orporatlon, owned by Allen R. Glle to
'purchase the Stardustand the Fremont.262 C‘llck . in turn, put Frank
Rosenthal 1n charge of his gambllng operatlons. Rosenthal who Was” an
assoc1ate of bpllotro and who was conv1cted in the 19605 of brlblng a

i college basketball player, proceeded to organlze a sophlstlcated Schere S
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to defraud thc casinos and the State of Nevada of at least $20 million
in 18 months,  the largest known skim operation up un‘til“ that ti‘me.263

| It hasbeen estimated vthat if all of the organized'crin‘e-connected
' loans since 1957 were added up, thc,y would amount to $600, 000 000 out

of approximately $1.2 bllllon that had been loaned by - the Central States

264

Pension Fund. At least $100,000,000 has been lost in undercharged

interest and another ‘$285,0‘00‘,(‘)‘0‘0 has been lost in defau-lts.z65 Indeed,
the ‘mismanagement of the tunu was so bad that in 1974, it ceased making
loans, and in 1979 under Labor Department pressure, the trustees
resn,gned and Central States Pens:Lon Fund was put 1nto the hands of
Equltable Life Assurance Soc:.ety and Victor Palmiers & Company.ze6
The percentages of real estate loans dramatlcally shlfted from a top-
heavy 70 per cent to about 35 per cent by 1979 The ‘cash return went up
to more than nine per cent from roughly four per cent.

If Hoffa's fate is put in the larger context of control over the
fund, then Bufallno would not have stood alone as the respons:.ble party.
It would have been a matter for the Organ:Lzed Crlme Comm:Lss:Lon to pass
on. Arguably, the top underworld leaders had too much at stake to
permit Hoffa to return to the pres1dency of the Teamsters on a reform
tlcket. It would have been ; as Hoffa h:unself sald of Robert Kennedy,
"He s got to 'go.”

8. The Electronlc Survelllance Program ,' o i

The mvestlgatlons that followed the criminal conclave at ApalaCTl:Ln
on November 14, 1957 served to p01nt out ‘how little was, in- fact, ‘known
'by law enforcement about organn.zed crime in the Unlted States. As |
‘ Robert Kennedy recalled, "The FBI d:Ldn t know anythlng ’ really, about
‘[the Apalachln attendees] ...that was rather a shock to me. "267 :

‘, Apalachln, however ’ marked the beglnnlng of a broad effort to: catch up
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i 'I‘c)day, the single most reliable source of organized crime information is.
the ‘transcripts and Sunmaries of conversations of underworld figures
that were obtalned in the course. o:C a oomprehensn.ve program of
, olectronlc survei. llanco that was conducted by thc FBI between 19‘59 and
‘:]965 As J. Bdgar ‘Hoover .il. ..3elf acknowledged :Ln 1967, the Bureau would
never have learnod what it did "abouL Lhe Cosa Nostra w1LhouL electronic
survelllance. 268 The TBI 1ntelllgence system was termed "sJ.gnlfJ.cant"
by the Prcs:.dent' S Conmlss:Lon on Law Enforcement and Adm:LnlstratJ.on of
Jl.L:thG, whlch, 1n 1ts report :Ln 1967, noted that only the Bureau had
been able "to document fully the natlonal scope" of orgam.zed crlme 269
By 1959 the PBI in Chlcago had 1nstalled the first of a serJ.es of
electronlc devices that would reveal so much about the underwor]d in
the years o came. | | e | | | |

Two spec:.al agents in Chlcago , Ralph Hill and W:LllJ.am Roener , were
vespec:l.ally J.maglnatlve and enterprls:Lng.270 'I‘hey had learned that mob
figures regqularly met in a second-tloor tallor shop on North Mlchlgan
| Avenue owned by: Gus Alex ;. a.Chicago mob flgure. After gettlng clearancev
from Washlngton and after a series of frustratlng Sunday mornlng |
fallures, they galned entry to the taJ.lor shop James Bond explo:.ts
notw1thstand1ng ' electronlc survelllance equlpment of the day was /

relatlvely unsophlstlcated the mlcrophone, J.nstalled behlnd a’

radlator, was of World War II v:.ntage ;. as b:x.g as a Coke bottle. ~The

techn101an who installed it Was competent ‘- but clumsy, “and whlle T

, strlnglng wires in a crawl spacc between the tallor shop and the -
restaurant below, he fell. and almost col]apsed thc COllJ ng. But, m
1 the end the equlpment worked ‘ '
[The agents] heard frcm the hoods own llps who

~ had the power and how it was distributed, who |
put the fix in and where it was put, what decisions
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were made and who was affected, who had the
‘ soJutlons. - They heard stories, anecdotes,

. Famlly problems, even a history of mob

 decisions as told with relish by Murray -

- Humphreys [the mob's senior fixerl.... . -
[It], was to be the biggest, most: rcl:.able
source of information on the Ché(iilgo
syndlcatc_ anywhere at any tJme.

The: survelllance program was accelerated after Attorney General
'Kermedy, ‘1n July 1961 cr1t101zed the quallty of FBI 1ntelllgence.27‘)‘ :
DeVJ.ces were J.nstalled elsewhere in Chlcago and' throughout the counts”-

= .as Lhe effort was dlrected at the major orgam.zed crnme flgures. .
273

' ‘,‘Stefano Magaddmo, , the chalrman of the comnlss:l.on and famlly boss 1n :

;“Buffalo, at Merrorlal (,hapel, a funeral home he owned 1n Nlagara Palls,

Sam Glancana,zu a ccmm.sslon member and famJ.ly boss in: Chlcago, at the

‘ Annory Lounge in Forest Park Ill., Angelo Brtmo,2375 a comuission memberf ‘

and famlly boss in Phlladelphla, at hlS Penn Jersey Vendlng Company J.n

Phlladelphla, and Raymond Patr:.arca,zl6 a ccxrm:l.ss:.on n*ember and famlly =

: boss 1n New England, at Natlonal Clgarette SerVJ.ce, a vend:Lng machlne
company he owned in Prov1dence, R I. Lesser flgures, but nonetheless ”

| M1mportant members of the organlzatlon, who were put: under survelllance ‘

z77

mcluded oam DeCavalcante, a fanu.ly boss in New Jersey, at the -

Kenworth Corporatlon ' a plumbl.ng company he operated in Kenllworth, :

278 a ca@rgma in: the Genovese famlly, at 'l'he

‘Barn, a restaurant in Mountalns:l.de, N. J., and Mlchael Clexrente,279“

¥ N J Iy Angelo DeCarlo,

member of the Genovese fanuly, at the Pr:.sco Travel Bureau 1n New York.v |

. Clty.‘ Some of the survelllance was aJmed not so much at 1nd1v1dual
: 'crmunals as aL arcas of opelatlon. Por example, ccrtaln Las Vogas ‘
“.{casmos, 1nclud1ng the Stardust 2 I‘remont and Desert Inn, were buggod 280

~and a dev1ce was placed in the offlce of the Flrst Wald DemocraLlc A

e organlzatlon 1n Chlcago ' Lhe base of operatlons of the West S:Lde Bloc, :



a group of pOlltlle.l’lS who had traditional ties to the CthdC_jO
syndicate.281 In all, the Bureau had in operation at any qlven time

from 75 to 100 "bugs" planted in most metropolitan areas, and nany were
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kept in for substantial periods. The Magaddino bug was "on" for

more than four years“ (Apris 961 to July 1965) ;. while 'Patriaroa's buga"

‘was being overheard for over thre'e'yeare (March 1962 to July ‘1‘9‘65) . On
August‘ 24, 1964, Courtney Evans, the Associate FBI Director for the
‘opecml Investigative DiVleion, could say w:Lth confidencc to Alan o
‘Belmont, the Assoc1ate Director for: the General Investigative Div:LSion:V

. We are probably in. the unique p051tion of better (
understanding Giancana's, reaction [to an incident
involving Joe Bonnanno, a comnission menber in -

~disfavor with the commissioners] than [are other
family bosses].... ~Our recent expansion in
development of intelligence on the existance and
activity of La Cosa Nostra [into the smaller
states]...tends to confirm that there is no -

adequate substitute for [electronic surveillancel
.. .for the development of accu:sg&e 1nformation
on. this underworld phenomenon.; :

Not everyone who reviewed the logs, administrative memoranda, and
transcripts came away from them with Evans' conclusion. The principal
academic debunker of Lhe FBI's position was Professor Dw1ght C. Smith,
‘ who wrote: - | | |
[H]ow reliable was the evidence [of a national
‘syndicate] ?. When examined...[the] revelations
were. often ambiguous. ..Boasting lies and mani-
pulative statements for effect all stemmed from

the same base as did statements of the facts
and truth, Of the interpretation of them, :

summaries of sumaries of sumaries, cbviously
depending on third party interceptions; had to
be based gR what the primary listener expected
‘ 2
to hear.™ ) ‘
For Smith, as well as‘others‘,286” the Bureau had not learned the : 3

‘truth, but had read its own ill-conceived conspiracy notions into the
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materials. Sm;LLh theorles, hmvever, moved Jonathan Kwitny of the

Wall 5Lreet Journal's a respected expert on organlzed crlme, to wrlte'

It is dlfflcult to understand how a reasonable
person’ could read these transcrlpts——or similar
transcripts. from bugs on the offices of: other
Mafia leaders--and fail to conclude that there |
is across the United States a tight-knit =
criminal organization with strict regulatlon
of mombcrshlp and. conduct that it exercises

. ultimate governlnq power: over-its members, superior .

to the power of country. or blood family; and that -
its sole purpose is making money th:.ough illegal -

_activity.... [T" -~ conversations were recorded

. while Mario Puzo was, still an underpald magazine

' editor. ‘Many of the conversatlons were' recorded

' before Joe Valachi' surfaced. This is not llfe
imitating art, as Professor Smith and his

. SOClOlOngt friends wou}§7have us. belleve.

ThlS 1s the real thlng.

}Ie also obse_rvod-

' Surely grown men would not sit around
jremlnlscn.ng about how they had part1c1pated
. together in various events unlesgs those
events really happened. ‘I‘hegag.lght exag— l
‘ gerate, but not halluc:Lnate.‘

I. The erglns of the _Natlonal ‘Synd;cate o

1. The Term Mafia

Whlle there is a wealth ot accurate mformatlon in the publ:.c
domain on La Cosa Nostra as of the early 19605, there 1s no. e
) correspondlng accurate source for the orlgln and early development of‘ |
’ ‘v o : ‘ | the natlonal syndicate.. The term "mafla" 1tself has been traced back to

the 13th century , and there are Varlous theorles about 1ts orlgln. A

‘popular one 1s that it orlglnated :m S:ch.ly 1n lZBJ 1n a rebelllon,

called Slc,lllan Ve.:pers, agalnst (,harles I and the French occupatlon ‘

am ,,289' ']'he slgnal for the uprJ. 1ng was said to have been Lhe rlnglng °

of church bells for evenlng prayers, or Vespers, and the_ motto 1n Lhat

‘uprlsmg was "Morte alla Francals Italla anela" ("Death to tho French is

Italy s cry") ’ from whlch "Mafla" was derlved Joseph Bonnanno, a



‘authentlc:Lty of the Vespers legend

| Sicily in 1282 would have Lhought oJf itself as Itallan.

’ Abra.ham Linco].n. ‘

prominentorganized crime figure, told Gay 'I‘alese,zgo. his biographer,

Lhat he had been taught a varn.at: on: of the Vespers story, in whlch the

~mother of a Sicilian glrl who had been dishonored by French =‘old1ers, v
ran through the streets crying, "Ma fla, ma fia (My daughter, my
; daughter) "  Far frcm ostahhshlng the authentlc:Lty of,the Vespers .

‘theory, howovcr, Bonanno's undoubLedly apocryphal account was a good

1llustratlon of why there is need to be skoptlcal of many myths about

‘,organlzed cr:me Several po.mts, for cxample, undermine the

291 Not a word of it can be found in

contemporaneous llterature, nor dld "Mai:la" appear in dlctlonarles of
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the period. But, most telllng, 1t 1s doubtful that the populatlon of,
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~ Mlthough an author??4 had found the word in use as early as 1658,

"Mafia" did not appear Ln a dlctlonary until 1868, when it was defined
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as a neologlsm meanln’g "any s:Lgn of brav: Another dlctlonary in -

1876 deflned it as a word of Pledmontese origin, hav:.ng the meanlng

somewhat of -"gang. "296‘3 VlZZlnl s La Mafia, publlshed in 1880

fattrlbuted the word--and the foundlng of the organlzatlon 1t
Hdescrlbed--to Gulseppl Mazz:Lnl ;a 19th century Italian Republlcan ’ a

~ shaper of the natlonallsm and llberallsm of his day, frlend of Wllllam

Lloyd Garrison, the American abolltlonlst ¢, and a correspondent of
297

Accord:.ng to VlZZlnl, durlng a revolt in Sn.c:Lly 1n o

~1860° agalnSt the m&&ml LUJJLEU the termas-a name for-a

secret society he establlshed from the mltlals of its motto: "Maazini ’

: autorlzza futl, 1ncend1, avvelenamentl (Mazz1n1 authorlzes thefts, arson
" and pmsonlngs) " The facts of Mazzml s life have to be determlned

w1th cautlon Ly slnce hlS enemJ.es-—:anludlng the Prench secret

pollce——spread v1c1ous storles about h:lm. It appears certaln, howeVer,



that he formed more than one secret society during Italy"s revolutionary

pericd. Their codes of conduct parallel one another, as well as those

of successor societies, the Mafia and La Cosa Nostra. Assassination was

not precluded., In fact, it was encouraged as a means of achieVing
pOllthal ends. ‘Mazz‘:i_ni himself, though he denied*lit , ‘was reportedl&
.anolved in an aLLuaned ass ass:LnatJ on of K:Lng Charles Albert of
Piedmont, havmg suppllc,d a dagger and travel docunents to the would—be
assassin, I\ntonlo Gall n~~,  Corsican who backed out at the last
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mlnute. " There is also mteresting corroboration for the Vizzini

version: in. 1890 -a reputed Mafioso, who had been arrested 1n New

‘Orleans, told a pollce undercover agent that the £ounder of the Mafla
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was "a great brigand named Guiseppe Mazzini. On the other hand,

substantial reasons exist to .discount the Mazzini-as-Mafia—-founder

thesis, along with most of the o’c:l'zers.v?’o0 For one, Mazzini‘was‘

considered a liberal, while the Mafia has always been essentially .

conserva-tive.?’obl About the safest position; however, is that of Francis

Crawford in his The Rulers of the South: the word is "of doubtful
origin.“302 Whatévér the genesis of the name—-or the organization it‘
descrlbed——the Mafla attracted cons1derable attentlon in the. Unlted
States in the latter part of the 19th century ' partlcularly in New .
Orleans, where on October 15, 1890, the assassJ.natJ.on of a high public

official was an early milestone 1n the development of publlc awareness
'zn'z

- of the Mafld as part of organlzed crime in Amerlca.

I

2. The Slcn.llan Roots

In .Jeptember 1874 The london TJ_mes reported that refugees from

Sic1ly were‘ pourlng 1nto Perugla, a unlvers:Lty town  in central Italy, in
fllght from the atrocn.tles of a new Camorra , a secret soc:.ety "called

the SlClllan Maffla [sic]," Wthh had a code of s:.lence . and whlch "had
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'its own set of. laws, ... [that] replaces legal authority."""p-‘l"\ On Novembelr

18/4 ‘The London ijés re'ported that the ‘governnent had, J'n its view,

crushed tht. new organlzatlon , which called ltself the "Ilonorable ‘
qOClety. Apparently, Lhese were the f:Lrst r(.ports in an Engllsh |
language newspaper of +he exi stence of the Mafla. Three years 1ater,‘ &
~ band of Sibiliem outlaws, also going by the name Mafia, dr‘ew“ attention
- to itself by the kldnapplng of an Lngllsh banker, ‘John Forester Rose ‘305
"l‘he head of the group was Antonlo Leone' ' hls second in command was
) Gulseppo ‘ESpOSltO.‘ When a ransom note sent Rose's yvife‘ was not folloWed |
by mmedlate payment, cmother was sent p conta:Ln:Lng Rose s shrlveled ear.

The ransom was pald ’ but an outraged Brltlsh government ’ then headed by

Benjamin Dlsraell, gave the Itallan government an ultlmatum unless |

‘Leone and his band were punlshed , a British expedltlonary force would be e

dlSpatChed to do the ]ob 1tself Eventually, an Itallan army brlgade
cornered Leone and his men on a hlll outs:Lde Palermo After a pltched
battle, Leone, Espos:Lto and a handful of followers were captured. l.eone:‘“
| ‘was taken to Rcme, where he was trJ.ed and sentenced to llfe
urprrsonxren't.3 0’6, Espos:Lto + however, escaped p apparently by bribing a
vguard He remalned at large J.n SlClly for a year (he was' captured and
escaped a second tJme) , then: fled to New York with six henchmen in -
November 1878.

Largely based on- cOnt‘emporary naﬂspaper records and othe‘r

B documents, one of the best accounts of Esp051to s career from that pomt

was wrltten by DaV:Ld L. Chandler, a Pulltzer Prlze-—wmnlng journallst ;

who suggested Lhat Esp051to s stay 1n New York was brlef for two .

‘ ;reasons-307 the reform movement that had drlven the 'I‘Weed R:Lng out of
”C:Lty Hall was Stlll 1n effect° and there was no p] ace for Itallan

| cr:l.mlnals s1nce organlzed ch.me 1n ‘New York at the tJme was dom:Lnated by .
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the Irlsh and Jews. Fspositoand his followers, therefore, ha‘d‘« a
| lnmlu_d cho: ces Lhey could Lollow Lhe oxample of” Paul and James
Vaccarelll who changed thelr name to Kelly and assoc:Latod w:LLh an, lrtsh‘
gang called the Whyos. Paul Kclly became the 1eader ot the Five Po:Lnts -
‘gang, wh:.ch numbered among its younger members John Torr:Lo, Alphonse
“(,aponc and oalvatoro L.uclanla i and he later was a v1co—pre JdCI’lt o:E the -
Internatlonal Longshoremen s ASSOClathI'l, AFL 308“7 Espos:Lto must have :
,dec1ded accordlng Lo Chandler, that his future would be brlghter in ‘
more hospltable cllmate of New Orleans, where there was not only
o ‘bllodltorranean weather, but a substantlal colony of Si: c:Ll:Lan :lmmgrants |
and a local Mafia organlzatlon. } . L | ’
Arrlvmg in New Orleans 1n the sprlng of 1879 Esp051to, calllng
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himself "Joe Randazzo, establlshed‘ a frult and vegetable busmess, :

took arah Castagno as a new w:Lfe (he had le:Et another-—-w1th f:Lve

31 0 and llved a prosperous lJ.fe, dlnlng at the best

| and most fashlonable restaurants.311 He also ecl:n.psed312 Joseph P,

chlldren—-ln SlClly) A

, Macheca, a- promlnent, Arrerlcan-born leader of the Sicilian commun:l.ty in 2
~ New. Orleans, as well as the Mafla--but only temporarlly. The‘, S
Superlntendent of Pollce 1n New Orleans in 1881 was Tom Boylan.’ 'I‘wo of
his top detectlves were DaVld and Mike Hennessey, who were couslns. a5

‘ When the J.tallan government learned from Lhe jealous wife he had left

behlnd 1n 101ly that E..:pOSltO was hldlng 1n New Orleans, 1t' hired two o

. New York prlvate detectlves, James Mooney and Dan Boland, to go to New
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B Orleans and brlng ESpOSltO back. Chlef Boylan, when' contacted by the S

New York detectlves, arranged to have the Hennesseys make the arrest,
which was smoothly carrled out on July 5 1881 at: ll a.m. in: front of
: the St. Louls Cathedral 1n the I‘rench Quarter. Espos:Lto was splrlted o

“ away by boat to New York, extJ.ad:Lted to Italy,?’l4 and tried [or :
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kidnapp:i.ng and_:’,‘ ea;tortion . ‘I--le was found ‘gu\‘i‘.lty on 51x counts of murdcr, ‘
and he spent: thc rest of his llto :Ln ‘prison. The' arrest of a ('r:imina] “u
‘of Esposito's stature made David Hennessey famous, though it also led |
T to ‘the kllllng on July l6 1881 of ’I‘ony Labruzzo, who the Mafna had
‘apparently 1dent1f1ed as the :Lnforzrer who made it pOSSlble for I—Iemcs:ev
to capture,Es;mslto.alG‘ Labruuo was. not the only one alJ' ected by the
. decision of Lhe Mafla to seek revenge. It was up to Macheca, who had
been romstated as the leador, to avenge Lspos:Lto, even though he had
been in a power struggle w:Lth the SlClllan. : Macheca had con51derable
‘ J.nfluence in one w1ng of the Democratlc party, Wthh enabled him 1n
- August 1881 ‘to force the c:.ty admlnlstrata.on to reorganlze the pollce T
‘ departmc_nt 3]7 - The Hennesseys wore demoted rcmoved from the dJ.recL ’
‘Vcontrol of Chlef Boylan and placed under Thomas Devereaux, who had been R
named Chlef of Detectlves. Dave Hennessey had asplred to be Chief of -
Detect:.ves, and the bad feelmg between him and Devereaux led to a gun
battle on October 13, 1881 1n Wthh MJ.ke Hennessey was munded and
“vDevereaux was kllled 'I‘rled for murder, the I—Iennesseys were acqu:.tted “
on Aprll 26, 1882, but they were dlsmlssed from the force.‘3]"8
POllthal and other fortunes, however, have a way of turnlng
up, as well as down In 1888 New Orleans elected a "reform"319 V ‘,
‘mayor, Joseph A, Shakespeare, though hlS electlon may have been no:

r‘more than a de31re for change——a dec:.s:.on by . the voters to shlft

,4.,‘ 320.

‘the balance of social and econcmlc power .Lu the \Mm.unl .
” ‘\Apparently, Shakespeare was a product of New Orleans antebellum L
arlstocracy, wh:Lle his opp051tlon, Wthh :anluded Macheca ' cons.LsLed of

‘ pro-South pro-whlte Democrats, who found thelr support in the
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working clac;s. Shakespeare had been Mayor once before, fram l88‘0 to
]882 when Lhere was a struggle over control of Lho patronage, graft,
and v:.ce that was thriving :Ln the cn.ty. In fact ' the
I:Iennessey—-Devereaux feud in 1881 was widely seen as part‘ .of that

: ,‘struggle.‘ In any event ' whlle Hennessey had. not become Chief of
Detectives ‘1n L88] he wa appomted Superlntendent of Pollce by Mayor
Shakespeare in 1888, an appo:mtment that set the stage for hlS shocklng

a.ssassmatlon two years later.

“‘“3‘. The New Orleans AssaSs:Lnatlon
a; ’lhe Murder ” | | R

| On October 15 1890 1t was cold and dlsmal in New Orleans.321 A g
fog, turning at tlmes to rain, enveloped the c:Lty, and the unpaved
streets of the French Quarter were topped by an inch of water and
rmJ.d‘.”3‘22 Chlef Hennessey, 32, and a companlon, Capta:Ln William O'Connor
" of the Boylan Detective SerVJ.ce, a prlvate pollce agency that was ‘run by i
the former pol:Lce superlntendent ' were returnlng at 11 p m. from a “
o meetlng of the. Pol:.ce Board at the old City Hall. Hennessey, whose llfe

b had been tlueatened p had taken to haVJ.ng someone walk w1th him. They “

= ‘had stopped for a short wh:l.le in Hennessey s office in the Central _

Pollce Statlon at South Basln and Conmon Streets, and’ then proceeded
toward home When they reached Glrod Street, Hennessey told O'Connor ‘

“There S no need to come any furl:her w1th me now, Blll Ycu go on your

S Ls B ]

“J‘-J

way. O Connor then splashed ac roS ‘ ‘ =d

i toward the Mlssa.ssn.ppl R:Lver, wh:Lle Hennessey travelled west toward the :

B house he: shared w1th his mother at 275 Gerd Street, between Bas:l.n and
Franklln Streets. He dld not nake :Lt home he was ambushed by assa.J_.lns

usmg sawed-off shotguns, he recelved six wounds, four o:f them

324

| superflclal one serlous, one mortal i Bleedlng and staggerlng,
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"iho dld thlS, Dave?"‘ he askcd ‘ "Dagos," IIennessey replled

~ Department. ces

llumossey managcd to draw hls gun and roturn the fllO. O'Connor, having

" heard. the: gunflre, roached Henncsscy S sn.de mlnutes after the shooting,
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He was rushed to old Charlty Hospltal where he was operated on by '

: a spec:l.al medical team. | At about 1l am., he rece:l.ved the last rltes o_fq ‘

the Church from a ‘Cathc“,:i‘r"*"j"est. At about 9 a.m. on Octcber 16, he

" dded.

‘b.‘ j Its Aftermath. 'I‘rlal and Lynchlng

Events then moved swiftly. A 1arge number of mm:Lgrants from Italy“‘j““ |

‘ and S:u,lly were 1ndlscr:|.m1nate1y arrested, scme for apparently no more
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reason than that they dld not speak Engllsh well On October 18

Mayor Shakespoare appo:mted a conmlttee "to thoroughly mvestlgate the f

matter ot the ex:Lstcnce of secret soc:Let:Les or bands of oath-bound

: assass:Lns, whlch it is openly charged. . .have culmmated in the

assass:!.natlon of the hlghest execut:l.ve off:l.cer of the Pollce
"327 That same day r Hennessey was glven a grand funeral
after lylng 1n state in the Counc:Ll Chamber of C:Lty Hall, where two

years earller, Jefferson Dav:Ls, the former Pres:l.dent of the Confederate S

A requlem Mass was sa.Ld at St

‘Joseph's Cathol:l.c (,hurch and a funeral process:Lon, more than a m:Lle

R long, went to suburban Metar:l.e Cemetery, where Hennessey was entombed

o C;tates of Amerlca, had rested 328

(7 in a marble and granite mausoleum

‘ Forty—elght hours after Hennessey‘”' S assassy*‘ !
b :
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cal Jber revolver .

newspaper pedd] er, asked to see one of those arrested, he sald he wanted

to makc an 1dent1f1catnon of hJ.m as one of the assass:Lns. When the

guards produced Anthonlo Scaffld:l. 2 Duffy lunged toward hJ_m, f:Lr:Lng a 32

As the guards plnned Duffy down and dlsarmed hlm, L

o he screan‘ed, "If there were 75 more- men llke me in New Orleans, We'd run



o _grandnlece, a "pillow case‘ full of money.

all the dagos .out of the.city!“33‘0‘ “A'lthough‘wounded, Soaffidl
‘surviv‘ed. Duffy was tried and conyicted, and sentenced to six months in
the Crleans and Parish Prison. | |
On November 20, 1ndlctmean were returned agalnst 19 prlsoners- -
one group was charged with lylng in wait and shootJ.ng w1th :Lntent to

]<1ll another gloup, which 1ncludcd Macheca, was charged w1th bolng
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accessories boforc the fact. On February 16, 1891 ‘in Sectlon A of

Criminal D:Lstrlct Court in Old bt. Patrlck's Hall on Lafayette Square, a

trlal of same of the defendants began. 321 The state was represented by

: Charles Luzenberg, the defense was represented by ’I'hcxnas J. Smmes ,a

former Lou:LSJ_ana Attorney General, who was pald, accord:.ng to hlS

w333 Out of 780 prospectWe

334 ‘Out of 319 witnesses ,sunmoned, 154
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jurors, 12 were fina‘lly selected

actually tE‘Stlfled—-67 for the state 84 for the defense. The

test:.mony fllled 800 typewrltten pages. The trJ_al lasted untll the

middle of March and it was covered extensrvely——and perhaps unduly

affected-—by the press.336' Chandler, in Brothers in Blood, termed the
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evidence. ’against the defendanto “'=xtens1vely 1ncr1mlnat1ng. Rlchard

- Gamblno, in Vendetta ’ conceded the "probable gu:th“ of four of them,

338 The tr:Lal judge, ‘

suggestlng that the rest were "probably 1nnocent '
Joshua G. Barker ’ dlrncted an acqulttal for two of the defendants. th i

days were then taken in. flnal argument, and the Jury went out at 6 22

a.m. on March 12. The followmg atternoon, around 12330, it aecra—ref

1tself deadlocked as to three defendants, and it"found the others,‘

| ~ including Macheca p not gu:L] ty. Slnce addltlonal charges were pendlng '

those found not gUl] ty as well as the others were remanded to the Parlsh,

: Prison. Judge ‘Barker was later to suggest that the actlon was to
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“ protect them.339 That was not what he acconplished, ‘

The il?l'pact_of the jurywver‘_d_ict\ stunned the city.' A howl ‘of rage
went up in I..afayette Square., As““the jurors‘ were escorted out , they were
: “taunted, “I-'Iow‘muchdid‘ you ‘g’et.?"340 The defendants held a “vi‘ctory‘
| celebratlon in the prlson, but there was another gatherlng that night
~with a d:LJ ferent purpose.‘ At Lhc Boston (_lub ' the second oldest prrVam
club in the country W. S. Parkerson, who 'had been Shakespeare s “
campalgn manager, was named to head a "moverrent to correct the fallure

'341 Newspaper owners, who had attended the meetlng ' agreed

of justlce. ‘
bto hold thelr presses, S0 that a notlce, 51gned by 61 of the most
| promlnent c1tlzens of New Orleans, could be :Lnserted on the front page
the next 1morni. ng. It announced a mas meetlng for that very morm.ng '
‘Saturday, March 14 at 10 e,y at the Clay Statue ,"to take steps to :
remedy the fallure of justlce in the Hennessey case."‘ And as if to
c;1gnal what was planned 1t read "Come prepared for actlon. '342;“,‘1 ;
March 14 was abrlght and .:unny day. By 10 a. m., .a crowd ‘of-as
many as 8 000 persons had gathered about the granlte pedestal of the
. statue of Henry Clay, then located at Canal and Royal Streets.
Parkerson addressed the crowd ( | | ‘ |
People of New Orleans:.. .Affalrs have leached
such a crisis that men living in an organized
and civilized community, finding their laws.
fruitless and ineffective, are forced to protect

themselves. . When courts fail, the pecple must
act! What protectlon , Or assurarices of protec—

tion, is there left us, when the very head of

our Police Dc.partment , our Chief of Police, is

assassinated in our very mldst by the Mafia

Society... JWill every man here follow me, and3 43
- see the murder of D C. Hennessey v1nd10ated7

~ Toward noon, the mob, :Lts 51ze 1nflated, marched to Orleans Parlsh ‘

Prlson, where the warden, reallzlng the futlllty of res1stance ' released D
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the 19 prisoners, so-that they might ‘have a chance to hide.“ ’I‘he t,ac,tic‘ |
saved the -lives of eight of them, including Macheca ’ but the 'fremainingx
11 wore shot or hanged or both, and the bodies of two hanged men were
‘used for target practlce. ‘The Ttalian consul, Pasqnale Corte, arri\}ed
at the scene to find, as he descrlbed 1t in his report on March 15 to o
the Roya] Mlnl Lry in Rome, the "horror of cslaughter ' the 51ght of
‘ "doad bOdlCE: hangod to chcs."344 Of ‘the ll who were 1ynched thrcc had
been acqultted three had been declared subjects of ‘a mlstrlal and flve:
‘ had not been tr:Led at all - ‘ |
Responsc. to the lynchlngs reflected an. antagonlstlc attltude toward "
) ‘Jmm:Lgrants 1n general and toward the Mafla in partlcular, although the
| cr:lmlnal socie ty had not yet achleved notorlety p exccpt in the vc,ry :
:large cities llke New York New' Orleans and Chlcago. | The New York
%345 sald 1n an edltorlal that "llfe and property" was made "safer "

- while The Washlngton» Post346 edltorlallzed that the people of New

Orleans had been "provoked" and had had to break a "reign of terror.“
Theodore RoosevelL ’ then a 32—year—old civil service coxmuss:.oner,‘
Lemved the lynchlng "a rather good thlng ," addlng that he had sald so, :

too, at a party in. the presence of "varlous dago dlplomats.'!34_7 ‘

'I'he '
Itallan representatlve .'Ll'l Washlng'ton r Baron Francesco Severio Fava v
‘however, lodged a serles of protests w1th Secretary of State J.:\mes G.

Blalne, th.ch called for mdenm.ty for the fam:LlJ.es of the VJ.ct:Lms and
348

‘ p‘unlshment of the offenders.‘ k Relatlons between Rome and Washlngton‘r ‘

became tense and then deterlorated, as each nation w:Lthdrew :|.ts :
representatlves. ‘ Pres:Ldent Benjam'Ln Harrlson asked Attorney General
| ,VWJ.llJ.am H. H. MJ_ller to look mto the matter, and on: Aprll 27 1891 the

349

U. S, attorney for New Orleans, W:LllJ.am Grant . reported ~Lo the

,‘Attorney General that he had been unable "to connect" any of the persons
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lynched,with hribery of the jury or ‘to obtain "direct evidence
_c'ormectmg. .. [them] with the Mafla," the exmtence of which, he
conceded, had been "known and belleved in by the publlc [1n New
_Orleans] for a great many years." He also acknowledged that "few of its
vict:'uns. .. [had] the courage to speak... .'l While conceding that he had |
not attempted "to examine 1nLo tho gu1lL or 1nnocenco of the persons
accusod oi the murder of lIennessey," he expressed the opinion that the
ev1dence was not "conclusive one way Or the other.

~ ¢. The Grand Jury Report

A grand jury in New Orleans; th.ch was empowered on March 17, 1891
to investigate the lynchlngs, was not SO restralned in 1ts judgment. In
a .report 1vsued May 6, 1t called the verdlct 1n the murder trial
Mstartlingly amazmg ,a bltter dlsappomtment. . .shocklng to public’

| oplnlon,'f and it termed the state's case "strong" and "more than
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suff:l.c'lent. It dlso noted extens1ve eVJ.dence of efforts to reach

those select(.d as. talesmen, comnentlng, however,“ that:

[It] will be qu:l.ckly real:l.zed by every thoughful‘
person that the difficulties of establishing the
existence of a conspiracy by adequate proof are .
- almost insurmountable. Such plotting was done
in secret places and their working often guarded
by the advice of counsel well versed in criminal
law. Secrecy is an essential element in the
successful execution of the designs of a conspir-
acy. ~Seldom does it happen that any one of the
~participants will reveal the V&%_Jl.alns either
before or after its executlon.

*

'I‘he grand jury then returned s:Lx 1nd1ctments for efforts to fix the
trJ.al jury in ‘the Hennessey assass:.natlon, of which three resulted in -
‘conv1ctlons, two resulted in acqulttals, and ohe was never trled ‘I'he :
. grand jury concluded that some members of the trJ.al jury "were subject

1352

. toa noney ,lnfluence,._"‘ On the: questlon of the Mafla, the grand jury

cone luded:
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The extended range of our research has developed -
the existence of the secret organization styled
"Mafia." The evidence cames fram several sources
fully competent in themselves to attest its
truth....0fficers of the Mafia and many of its
members aré not known. ~Among them are men born
“in this city of Italian origin....The larger
nurber of the society is conrpgggd of ltallans

and ...:lClllanS. .o [mm.‘l.grants]

' c ' The grand jury then pldlSGd some soc1et1es that mnu.grants had

created "for laudable" purposes, but it condemned "the practice of

assassj_nation. .o ."354 It also noted ‘that a large part of the Italian

. e ‘ ‘ colony“in New Orleans“was recognized "as a worthy class"; it was, the
grand jury said, "fairly industrious” and characterized by
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ki "frugality." It then found that the "sadly deficient" or "badly

’ “:“-"v-«‘ : administered"" _J'.mnigration laws had failed in the past to dj.stinguish |
between the "meritorious and law-abiding" and the "\}ioious.";356 |
Flnally, the grand jury turned to the murder of Hennessey and the
5 » e lynchlngs- E o

Assassination of the late Chief of Police shows
the culmination of a conspiracy. His death was
deemed necessary to prevent the exposure and
s punishment of criminals whose guilt was beér}g
- fast establlshed by his diligent pursuit,

The grand juxy noted that "good CJ.tlzens" had been "profoundly |

: impressed by the repeated and signal failures of ]ust;ce."358 The - |

» ‘; = lynchings seemed, the grand jury 'said, "to involve the entire pecile
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" of the parish and city of New Orleans.. oo Tt declined, therefore,

- to prese‘nt‘b any ind‘ictments on the lync:hings_. ‘
9 o h 'I‘he grand juxy‘report was ‘generally well vreceived The WashingtOn
e Post360 endorsed it, for exaxrple, buL others i:elt dlfferently _The |
Itallan consul in New Orleans, Pasquale Corte, wrote an open letter on
3 - vMay 6 to the grand jury in Wthh he questloned its work not denylng the,

ex1stence of the Mafla or that there were "Itallan cr:LmJ.nals" in



New Orleans. Corte notod that same members of the mob 1tsel£ had served
on the grand jury, and he condemned its failure to 1nd1ct those who had
in "cold*blood" killed those who. were "either acquitted or not yet ‘
tried. "36 Pres1dent Harrlson agreed with the. Itallan consul ‘In his
Third Annual message to Congress on December 9, 1891, he termed the mab
action :"deplorable and discreditable," but he rejec‘t.ed any suggestion
that the lynchinq resulted oo "general animosity to “the‘ Ttalian

: people. n362 | | |
d. Its Aftemath

The repercusslons of the lynchmgs were. w1despread and, curlously,
| the forces in play were much the same as those 70—odd years later when
the £ irst Irish-Anerican Pre.:ldent met Lhe same fate——assassmat: on-—as
an Irlsh Chief of Pollce in New Orleans——the u. s. qovernment the |

natlonal crme syndlcate, or Mafla, and a Carlbbean country that flrst - '

£ attracted u. s. attention in the 1890s, Cuba.

“In 1891 the Unlted States had alm:)st no flghtlng navy, whlle Italy :
had one of the world‘s mlghtlest when a war scare developed over the
‘ lynch:.ngc in New Orleans (several resolutlons in the Itallan
:I‘ Parllarnent?"63 had called for bombardment of Atlantlc and Gulf ports) '
the Harrison Adnum.stratlon,‘ prodded ‘by congress1onal mJ.lJ.ta.rJ.sts lJ,ke
Senator Henry Cabot, Lodge of Massa‘chusetts,‘ second ran]ting‘ on the Nayal

' Committeej and a jingoistic press, argued successfully for -

364

approprlatlons to bolster the natlon S naval presence. 77 War with
Italy was avcrted but the statlonlng of the U S. fleet in forelgn
waters led elght years later to Amerlcan mterventlon in Cuba, followmg o
the smklng of the U.S.S. Ma:Lne in Havana harbor on February 15 1898
'I‘he Spanlsh—Amerlcan War was over almost as soon as 1t began Cuba was

o :anaded in June, and by July ’ control of the country had been wrested
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from Spain. Cuba remained under U. S. control until a‘constitution in
1900 established its freedom, but that constitution also contained the
Platt amendmént, which, until it was revoked in 1934, recognized the

right of- the Unltcd States to 1ntervene to preserve " lndepcndence" or

| "order" in Cuba.365

'l'he New Orlcans incident also was s(,uod upon by advocatcs of

restrlctlve inmigration legislation. - ‘The Washlngton Post366 roporLed

Lhroe weeks after the lynchlngs that 1t was ‘the "almost universal bellof

that Congress. oo [would] undertake to make some radlcal changes in the
immigration laws." Parkerson, the leader of the New Orleans nDb, went:
on a speaking tour in 1891 in behalf of "reform. " In ade.t:Lon, Senator
:Lodge, as strong in his nativism as in his support for the Navy, fought
succe.:sfully for a restrictive pollcy toward mm:.grants, which would hot
| be reversed until 1960, w1th the electlon to the pre51dency of another
Senator from Massachusetts, John F. Kennedy. What Samuel Eliot Morlson,
the hlstorlan , said about’ leglslatlon passed in 1921 applied to a |
general polJ.cy of discriminating agalnst southern and eastern Europeans:
."SlClllanS were suspect, owing to their hav:Lng J.mported the |
Mafia,...[while] eastern European :an:l.grants were suspect because they
' were largely Jewish and possibly 'Red 1n367 .

e. A Reconstruction and Perspective

It must be conceded, that as Smith argues in The Mafia Mystz.que,;&5

it is not possible to "say for' certa:Ln where the truth lies" in the
. various accounts of the Hennessey assassmatlon and the retrlbutlve
lynchlngs in 1890 and 1891 owmg to the 1nhe1ent dlfflculty of |
' reconstructing any hlstorlc event, espec1ally when crime and controversy‘ “

are involved. Nevertheless, it is knovm that a Mafia famlly that
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existed in New Orleans today can be traced through identified persons,
activities and trad;itions back from Carlos Marcéllo, its current leader,

to Sam Carolla, to Charles Montranga and to”Joseph‘Macheca‘.‘ That alone
‘ ‘ n369

even a debunker’ like Gambino, in Vendetta, conceded is "telling.

The most satisfactory reconstruction of the events of 1890, however, is

' Ny o that of Lhandloy in Brot‘hor‘-s in Blood.

: 'f : | et o Accordlng to Char; 11~ .3 0 Joseph P. Macheca " the stepson of a
hard——worklng frult stand vendor, was born in New Orleans 1n 1843 of an

) um.dentlfled SlClllan father. By the age of 30, he was a man of .

-property ‘and ‘1nfluence. Nev,ertheless, in 1869, Ralph Alnello, a newly

arrived immigrant frofn Palermo, challenged his leadersh’ip” 1n the
’ | ‘ | ‘S:icilizm conmunity.‘ A[Jparerlt,ly r Ainello was a Matla membcr, and he
S ‘b ‘proceed(.d to organize a local chapter. Macheca had Alnello murdered by
| Frank Saccaro, us1ng a M, a sawed—off shotgun , and he took over
B Alnello s orgam.zatlon Macheca stepped aside for Gulseppo Espos1to,
v ‘the SlCllldn bandJ.L, but he was back in power in 1881, aftcr Espos:.to |
was arrested by the Hennesseys and deported In 1890, strife erupted
9 1 S S w:Lthn the orgaru.zatlon between fact:l.ons loyal to Joseph Provenzano and’
| Charles Montranga over controJ. of the New Orleans docks. The conflJ ct -
caxre to a ‘head not long after Dave Hennessey became Chlef of PolJ.ce.
3 v L , On Apr:l.l 6, 1890 some of Provenzano s men attacked a group of
o Montranga followers w:l.th shotguns at Clcu_borne and Esplanada Btreets,
just outs:Lde the French Quarter, W—HW

arrested Surprlslngly ’ the Montranga group swore out complalnts, and |

desplte an ev1dent effort to. le the case, the Provenzano people were
” conv1cted but the judge ordered a new trial. Wh:l.le‘ the case was stlll
“fé‘p B ‘ . pendlng, Hennessey let :|.t be known that he would "show up" Macheca and

‘the Montrangas, whereupon Macheca observed to reporters- "Hennessey is |
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‘ mvcstlgatmg the: Provenzano case the wrong way and ho w1ll answer. for

371 w372

It was, he said, " strlctly an ltallan affair, Macheca then

it."
posted. one ‘of his men and a l4-year—old nephew in a wooden shanty a
half-block from liennessey's house. In early October . four others moved
into the shanty On October 15, two days before the second Provenzano |
trial was to ..:l(l]’"L thc ncphew, acLJ.ng as a lookout, 51gnaled

Ilennes sey's. approach 'I‘he othcrs were ready w1th thelr lu@ras.

As Chandler noted the "amazmg th1ng about the 1891 lynchlngs is
that they had so l:Lttle effect on the Mafla in New Orleans."373
Montranga succeeded to Macheca S leadershlp v and / except durlng the
prohlbltlon, when Irlsh gangs challenged the Mafla s domlnance, the
power. was passcd pcacc.fully from generatlon to generatlon. , Montranga
- remained as leader untll 1922, when he was succeeded by Sam Carolla, who
in turn was succeedcd by Carlos Marcello. Montranga dled on October 28 |
: ‘1943, at age 86, and hlS funeral was attended by executlves of Unlted

Fruit and other large corporatlons that had been dependent on his good

will.374

The’ events in New Orleans in 1891 permanently affected the American
consc:Lousness in a number of ways. : Whlle there were a number of secret
| SOCletleS of a crlmlnal character that orlglnated in elther S:Lc:Lly or _
southern Italy and the cultural dlfference between SlClllaIlS of various

- parts of the 1sland ar.‘ Pt en ‘them and Neapolltans or Calabrlans was

and is substantlal, the tendency among’ ]
ki ignore these dlfferences and to assoc1ate Lhe name, Mafla, w1th any ‘
chmlnal organuatlon whose m:zmbershlp was in whole or 1n part of |

SJ.CllJ.an or Itallan extractlon. Hobspawn375 notes correctly that 1n‘

~fact the Maf:La 1s assoc1ated Wlth SlClly, the Camorra W1Lh Naples, and

the Honored Soc1ety w;.th Calabrla. Indeed‘, the tendency,has arisen to
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~ use the term, in-its loose sense, to refer to anx cr:unnlnal
organuatlon- a s‘rudy by I“rancn.s A, J. Iannl in 1972 of ethnlc
SUCLPSolC)I'l 1n organlzed crime was, for example, entltled Black Mafi 1a, a

loo e—kmL group oi cr um.nals 1n the Southern part of the Unlted Statc_s '
.376

was refelled to in a New York Times artlcle as the "Dixie Mafia.,'
J.amontably, Lho assassination ol Ch: LUI Ilennesscy ha.a L)ocn LW.LS:LOd‘
Lo ‘)LLLL var lous purpw "s W"'"h in 189] and later. In the mlnds of many,
Ilennessoy ‘8 death became a symbollc event, not merely a hlstorlcal
occurenrce.377 The tradltlonal v1ew, of course, used the Mafla element 2
“and the con equent "purn.ty of. . .:Lntenta.ons“ to jU.Stlfy the conduct of <
;the lynch mob Judge Robert H. Marr, to whom the grand jury returned

its report, so wrote in 1891 in the scholarly Amerlcan Law Rev:n.ew.378

' Popular llterature at the time smularly reflected a view favorable to
the lynchers. In general modern wrlters have tended to accept
uncrltlcally the OfflClal v1ew, at: least on. the exztstence of the Mafla,

g w:LLness Herbert Asbury s The French Quarter, in- 1938 Ed Reld'

Mafla, in 1952, and Frederlck Sondern, Jr. Brotherhood of Ev:.l,;

‘ 1959 ’I‘here developed, however ;@ rev151on1st straln. ‘ Seelng events
\ .chlefly from the perspectlve of the VlCtJ.'mS, and emphas:Lzlng the soc:Lal ‘
| and econonuc factors, 1nclud1ng the undenlable presence of blgotry, ’ k

= works, such as G. Sch:Lavo ] The Truth About the Maf:La, in 196? Henner

Hess's Mafla and Maf1081 ; in 1970 Joseph L. Albini's The Amerlcan

o ‘;1977 attempted to argue that there was no- organlzatlon—-~Ma 1a or ‘

ias. Genesm of a Legend J.n 1971 and Rlchard Gambino's Vendetta, in

| "“other-——at work 1n the assaqsmatlon of Hennessey. The partlcz.pants, 1f
: they were part1c1pants at all were p_ad;r labor bosses, who exp101ted

: Itallan 1aborers, not a don ‘or rappresentantl, the head of an orgamzed
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”.of 18.

: crime family,;br members of a brugad or borgata, an organizéd crime
f’unily. What was present was a ‘social system characterized "by‘
patronage—-the relatlonshlp between a patron and a cllent--and not. an
organlzatlon. These wrlters were on sound ground when' they showed' that
more than the Mafla played a role in the events of 1891 but thelr
effort to rulc out lhe existence of an organ;Lzatlon was stralned——and

obv:Lously so.379‘ It. 1s mpoqs:.ble not to take note, for example, of the o

almost casual way in which Alb1n1380“ accepted in h:Ls study the

“ hlstorlcal ex:Lstence of the "Molly Magulres," an Irlsh secret

| soc,lety-—an organlzatlon——that terrorlzed the anthrac:me coal operators
in the 18605 and 1870s :Ln-Pennsylvanla; It stands in sharp contrast to -
Albini's e_ffort to cxplaln away all eVJ.dence--however dlrect and |
concxete—-of the smu.lar ex:Lstence of an organlzatlon among ch.mJ.nals ’
who happened to;-be of Itallavn_extractlon. =

4. The Foundation of the National Syndicate

'l'hat there was in existence a national syndicate‘ prior to
Prohibition , however, may be doubted. FNeVértheleSs', there 1s
i substantlal ev:Ldencc outside of New Orleans that there were Varlous
: 1ndependent Ma«f;a group in a number of major Amerlcan c:.tlles. In" ‘
11903, Nicola Gentile; a native of S:Lc:Lllana ’ S:Lc:Lly, flndlng llttle
opportunlty in hlS natlve v:Lllage, came" to the Unlted States as a youth

382 After a r*areer in: organlzed crime, he returned to SlClly 1L

1937 hav1ng been charged w1th a narcotlcs v1olat10n in New Orleans, ‘

383

‘ where he Jumped ball In the 1950s ' follow:Lng hlS retlrement ; he

began writing a long , rambling memoir in Itallan rentltled Vlta dl,
Cﬂ%, Wthh was publlshed in Rome in 1963

; ‘Gentlle wrote :



All organuat:l ons are born Wlth princ:Lples and
humanitarian goals, but in their midst the op-
portunists are never missing and will try to

nake a prolit. .+ [Tlhe Honored Society, or .
Mafia, as it is.commonly called... [however]

finds its [current] reasons for existence in
force and in terror.... It...was brought to
America in the ‘sections of the country where
Sicilians, Calabrians and Neapolitans lived.-

.+. With the passing of time in every [major?]
city ot hmerica . these assoClation., were ‘
formed. In the city of New York and Brooklyn = 384
alone thcre were live. . .borgates or. families....™"

With (:entile, as well as Joseph Valachi, as a w1tness, a nationaly.
syndicate was apparently formed in the years mmediately before L
Centile s return to SlClly. 'I‘he eyew:.tness accounts of Gentlle and
Valachi-—hav:l.ng all the elements of a Florentine intrigue of the l6th |
century--have bcen indeptndently substantiated by the reminiscences of
other 1n31ders, picked up on FBI bugs | | i

a. The Castellammarese War

In the 19205, Giuseppe Masseria ruled a Mafia family in New York
Clty that numbered among: its members three of the most - familiar names in
‘the annals of orga.nized crime Charles Luciano, Vito Genovese, Frank
Costel lo. One of the reasons that the names were to become synonymous
Wth crime itself was the part the three men played m a conflict o
'between Masserla and Salvatore Mara.nzano, who arrived in New York ;Ln
1927, and prcmptly founded a Mafia rfamilyvto rival Masseria' s.385 The

conflict was called the Castellaﬁmarese War, since Maranzanosand many of

his followers were natiVes‘vof the Sicilian town of CaStéllamnare del

«GOlfo.3;86 : Other Mafia groups from Chicago, as well as New York, were |
‘also drawn :Lnto conilict. Allied w1th Masseria were. a fam:Lly headed by
Steve Ferrigno, a boss from the Bronx (Ferrigno would be succeeded by ;

“the Mangano brothers, Phlllp and Vincent, then by Umberto (Albert)
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| Alxas;iwxs;ria, then by Carlo Gambino), and Al Capone's organization in

Chicago. Maranzano cormxanded the loyalty of a Mafia family headed by |

Joseph Profaci, a boss from Brooklyn (Profaci would be succeeded by -
‘Jo‘eepfh Magliocco, then by Josetjh ‘Cdloxﬁbo) , and the Joéeph‘ Aiello family
in Chicago.. | | L, |

| 387

Valachl remembered how the war went. Masseria had another Mafia ‘
» boss, Gaetcmo Relna . kllled on l"ebruaxy 26, 1930, when Reina reswted
Massexla s eiiorte (unrelated to. the war) t:o move in on Reina's Jce

dlst,r;Lbutlon racket. Masserla forced the Relna famlly to accept as. 1ts

bosS Joéeph Pinzolo,‘\ who in ‘turn was kllled on September N '1930_, and .
p G - ‘ succeeded by Gaetano Gagliano ‘(Gagliano died of‘ na‘tura;l“causes in 1953
| ~and was succeeded by Gaetano Luccheee; better known as Thamas 'Luccne‘se) .
Valach.L was 1nducted 1nto the old Relna famlly when Pinzolo was LLS -
B R ;. | boss, and Maranza.no hlm.,elf pres:Lded over the mductlon rltual Joseph o
| Bonnanno, who was later to succeed Maranzano as- boss, was made Valachl'
‘ ‘qodfather, or g_______ "At the time," Valachi said, »y don £ know
Q B nothlng about all th:Ls, but the 1dea was to br:Lng in new members l:Lke me

,388

that- they could count on to help. them. " Valachl'c first dos:LgnmenL

was to watch Ferrlgno. He recalled:

At the time I“‘m Jjust "'proposed" ‘--f:meani‘ng I'm in
line to be a member, but I ain't one yet.

g

oooooooooo.oooo.oooooooooooooo

Now I'm in the apartnent on Pelham Parkway Tt's

.on- the second floor. It's over a.court; and on

the other side of the court 1s the entrance to

the 'apartment of Ferrlgno. «ee One of the guys :
~ who stayed on and off in my apartment is Joe Profac1,
~and he expla:me a lot of the. history of what has been
~going on. He tells me how Maranzano and Gagliano have
put up $150,000 each for the war agalnst... [Maeserla]

Besides that he says we got $5,000 a week coming in

from Steve Magaddlno :Ln Buffalo and $5 000 frcm ‘
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Joe Z\Jcllo in Chi. cago. “e .'I‘hen one day he comes in wnth
.a sad face and say§8 e re out of money flom (,hlcago.
Capont got 1\1ello. : : : ‘.
I‘errlgno was killed on Novunbcr 5 1930 as he left his apartlrent
o ac 759 Pelham Parkway South, 1n the Bronx, but the Castellanmarese War
would not end untll one or the other, Masserla or Maranzano, was
“ elimi. nal:cd—--an ideal bltud Llon for a chacherous underllng lJ.ke (,harles

Luc1ar 10.

b, Salvatore Luciano: Background

‘ Salvatore Luc:LanJ.a was. born 1n November ll 1896 at Lercara

i I‘rlddl, a sulphur nunlng town in the prov:ane of Palermo, SlClly, ‘the

th:er son of Antonlo and Rosa Luc:Lanla . who brought h:un to the Unlted
States in 1905 390 '1'hcy settled on Lhe lower Last S:Lde of Marmattan. "
I\ntonlo Luc1anla got a jOb in a brass bed factory, never broke a law in
‘hl., lJ.fe, and became a U S.c:LtJ.zen in 1929 He dled :Ln 1941
other sons and two daughters were never 1n serlous trouble elther ’ but o
thc son, who would anglicize his, name to Charles Luc:Lano ‘. left school
"P. S 40 Jn Manhattan, before completlng the flfth grade ‘ He was

| 'j connuttc.d by thc Board of Dducatlon to the Brooklyn Truant School then /
went ‘to work in a hat factory, but after two years, he qu:l.t "If I had

391 Luc1ano later

| to be a crumb w he said, "y would rather be dead.”
explalned to a probatlon officer that a "crwnb" Was sameone who worked

saved lald hls money as:Lde and 1ndulged in no extravagance He never°

earned an honest dollar agaln. At 18 Luc:Lano was charged w:Lth unlawtul. k

possessmn of narcotlcs, a v1al of half a dram of herorn. , He was |
v‘conv;Lcted and: served six months of an 1ndef1n1te term He was"arrested ‘:
agaln in 1921 for carrylng a loaded revolver, :Ln 1923 for her01n, in e

-~ “1926 for carrylng loaded weapons, and in’ 1928 for armed robbery 39?
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Durlng ths L:Lme, Luc1ano was formlng chm:Lnal assoclatlons that were
not lJmltod to ulCllldIl& and Itallans.‘ 'I’hey ;anludcd Mcyer Tansky v who‘
became a lJ felong frlend Arnold Rothsteln, John T, Nolan (Iegs ,
. Diamond) , Arthur Pleger1heme1 (Du’cch Schultz.) and Benjanun (Bugsy)

Slegel 393

On OcLober 18, 1929 LUCldl’lO was kldnappcd bcaten, and lelt for \ i

dead, auspendod from a bcam in an abandoned warehousc on Staten Island

The New York Tlmes reported. -

Charles (Lucky) Tuciania. [s:Lc] assoc1ate of the
late Arnold Rothstein, the notorious Diamond
brothers and the late Thomas (Paddy) Walsh awoke
at 23341“. yesterday,.. -and thought he was drtam-.

“ing,
Part of thc Luclano legend was that thlS 1nc:.dent gave rJ.se to the

w395 "I‘he Times account dlscounts the lengend the

nlckname, " ucky.
nlckname clearly predated Luc1ano s narrow escape. In reallty, the ‘
nickname was no ‘more than a corruptlon of Lu01ano. “ :

| By 1931, Luc:.ano was a ranklng lleutenant of Masserla, but the
Castellarm\arese War was not gomg well (Maranzano had accompllshed at
least 60 successful ambushes) ¢+ SO Luc:.ano dec:.ded to: end 1t hlS own way;
‘When he made that declslon was uncertaln (Valachl would testlfy that |

396

-Luc:.ano had been negotlatlng w1th Maran7ano for sone tlme) i ‘but on .

Aprll 15 ‘1931 Iuciano: arranged a "peace" meetlng with ‘MaranZanc for

| Masser:l.a at the’ Nuovo villa, “Tanmaro Restaurant, 2715 West lbtn btreet, i

397 At least Lhree other Masserla men, 1nclud1ng Vl‘LO

Coney Island
" Cenovese, who was ]oyal to Lu01ano, were there.‘ Aftel a lelsurely mcal B
(lobster and Chlantl) ’ everyone but Luc:Lano and . Masserla left the

restaurant accordlng to- the reconstructlon by pOllCe and chme ,



reporters.39§ Luci.ano sugtj‘eSt.ed car‘ds while they waited for Mara‘xuzano,‘ ‘

‘ 5‘L‘hey 1)] aycd unt;Ll & ut 3 30 P m. ' when Luc:Lano goL up, he told the

'399 Wh:l.le he was gone, Lhree

vallCe, "to go to the washroom
men, ldc_ntlf.led by the underworld grapev:me as Ben]amln blegel Albert
v:Anastas:La and Joe Adonls, entered the restaurant and f:Lred some 20
| shots, six ol whlc,h hlL Masscrla 1n Lhc back and head.llq0 IIe never
had a. c,hance, to turn around 2 |

Accordlng to NlCOld UGJ.u_lle, a frlend of Maranzano ’ V:anent
: TrOla, was. called to Luc:Lano S apartment that nlght. “ "Don V:Lcenzo "
. Luc,lano .Jald “tell your _g@:_ Maranzano that we have k:Llled :
Masserla-—not Lo serve h1m but for our own personal reasons. ...
T'¢ ‘J] hun that wi thn 24 hours he s t g.Lvo us an allw.rmatlvo answer

for a mcc_tlng. P ""4‘01

Luc:Lano got h:Ls aff:erat:Lve answer. - The war
had cnded but for Luc,lano, it was just thc begn.nnmg.

S Ce The Washn ngton Hall Meetlng

Toward the. end of Apr:Ll 1931 Maranzano held a f:Lve day celebratlon
at a’ b:Lg hall on Washlngton Avenue :Ln the Bronx. Valach:L, whof was
there, remembered |

Mr Maranzano called a meetlng. o' .'I‘he ‘place 'was
packed. There was at least four or five hundred
of us janmed in....I didn't know until later that

~ he was a nut about JUllu..« ‘Caesar and even had a
“room in the house full of nothing but. books about

- ~him, That's where he got the idea for the new .
‘,organlzatlon. ...In the new set up he was g01ng v
. to. be the Capo dl tutti CaEl meaning the Boss o

.. of all Bosses. He said that from here on we
‘were going to be divided up into new Famllles.
~ Each Family would havea boss and an under-boss..
Beneath them there would be lieutenants or
‘caporegime. To us regular members which were
.soldiers, he sa:Ld, 'You will each.be. ass:Lgned
~to a lieutenant. When you learn who he is 40you
5 _w:Lll meet all the other men. in your crew.
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According to. Valachi, ‘Maranzano discussed :other rules.‘lo3 No longer

; would there be a war——SJ cili ans, Ncapolltans, and Calabrlans would

‘ forget their dlfferences. ‘ The organuatlon would c,omc flrbL ' chaln of
‘command would be rcspected death was decreed for talklng, no Vlolatlon
of a member s w1fe would be pe,rmltted, hear:mgs would be held to dec1de
disputes, and S0 On. Few of the ideas were or:tglnal——-or derlved from
J;ulius Caesar. They were Lhe standa‘rd code of Italian and Sicilian ‘
secret .,ocn.etles, gomg back aL least o "The Young 1taly Socn.ety "
whlch was' founded in 1831 by Gluseppl I\/lazzn.ru..{m4 It was also at thls B
meetlng that Maranzano, the new boss of all bosses p unposed on the Mafla
| factlons the famlly strucLure that was Stlll in ex:Lstence today. ‘ The,f
organuatlon Maran/cmo had fonuc.d in, 1927 was. d1v1ded mto two famlllos P
one under .Iosc_ph Profau., the other under .Joseph ‘Bonanno. | Caetano
Gagllano headed another 1_:amlly, w:Lth Thomas Lucchese as underboss and

“ " Charles Luc1ano headed the old Masser:l.a famlly, w:Lth VltO Genovese as
‘underboss.‘ Control of the f:Lfth fam:Lly was awarded to Phlllp and
Vincent Mangano.405 |

d. La Cosa Nostra

When Valachl teStlfled before Lhe McClellan commlttee, Senator

‘ McClellan asked hJ.m to name . the organuatlon. Valach1 replled "Cosa

406

Nostra." A number of cr1me reporters and other crltlcal observers

“reacted negatlvely. Hank Mess:.ck the ‘author of ’The Mobs and the« Mafla‘,‘ |

L ‘suggested that J Edgar Hoover had extracted the name Causa Nostra,"

: from casual references by members on bugs and then fed it to Valachl,
| along with N:Lcola Gentlle s manuscrn.pt.‘m7 For Mess:.ck, Valachl s
”'testumny was llttle n"ore than a face—savmg effort by Hoover, who had

‘ ‘long malntalned there was no Mafla. ,I‘n thev:.ew of ‘some cr1t1c:s,~ more



Lhan face savmg was. involved. Tom chker of the ‘New Yoxk T:Lmes, for

anmp]e suggos tcd that Hoovor had fashloned a new menace, as he had

with the Communlst Party, to assure large (,ongress:Lonal approprlatlons
408

‘ tor the FBI. The theories 01 both Mess1ck and chktr, however, are

" contradlcted by the factual record

. In The Valach1 Papexs, Peter Maas r(_counu.d how the FBI first heard
409

- the name "(‘osa Nostra" from Valachi. "7 1n1t1ally ' Valach1 was under
the jurlsdlctlon of Lm. Foad n of Narcotlcs v Wthh was unable to learn

much from hJ_m The dec1s:Lon was made to brlng 1n Spec:Lal Agent Jamc_s P,

I‘lynn of Lhe FBl, who was a master of the art of mterrogatlon. -On

‘ ‘September 8, 1962 certaln that Valachl had not begun to tell all that
he knew, , Flynn suddenly ‘said, "Joe, let S stop ‘fooll‘ng‘ around. ' You know N
I'm ‘here because the' Attomey General wants ‘this in\formation‘. I want to
‘--talk about the orgam.zatlon by name, rank, and serial number. What's

o the name'.?_ Is it Mafia?"

"'No," Valachi sai”d.“ "It"s not ‘Mafia. That's the expression the

, outsider uses."

"Is lt of Itallan or1g1n°"
“What do you nean"' ‘ | ‘
"We know a 1ot more than you thlnk " Flynn sald "ow I'11 gi've‘

you‘thevf.lrst part,’ You glve me ‘the rest It's Losa | v

but Flynn had Lhe ‘good sense not to treat him as though he

2

“ Valachi went pale.‘: For almost a m:Lnute he sa:Ld nothlng ‘Then he -
o " ki rasped Back hoarsely. "Cosa NOStra' 80 you Kriowabout it

3 ‘ It is doubtful that Valachl "ever mtended to become a full-fledged
"defector,““o

had. As Salerno noted

y
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'[Flynn] talked to him, argued with him, reminisced,“
listened. ' Sometimes he saw' that Valachi was with-
drawn, and he would drop the subject of Cosa Nostra
for that day. Sometimes he would pretend to get
angry and call Valachi a lying son of a bitch or try 411
to provoke him 1nto lcveallng more to justify hlmsclf
‘Valachl in short was "handled." | | |
Flynn s key advantage over . Valach:L, however, was the result of
| intelllgence obtalned by the FBI electronlc survelllance program. And
an analysls ot the Lranscrlpts of the surve:Lllance conflrm.a the
authentlclty oF- the name, La Cosa No.:tra.. FBI F:Lle 92—6054 wh:Lch
| contalned the basm lntelllgence collected by the Bureau on the nat:Lonal‘ ‘
- .Jyndlcate of organlzed crlme, was orlglnally ent:Ltled "The CrJ.m:Lnal |
| Comru,ss;on.""llz As. early as September 1959, the bug in Gus Alex's
tailor shop in Chrcago had p:Lcked up a conversatlon between Sam Giancana
and ”‘Anthony Accardo , in which a "Commission" was cilis‘cl.‘lssed;413 Giancana
e rev:Lewed its membershlp, in addition, to hlmself. Raymond Patrlarca of :
Prov:Ldencc, Gtefano Magaddlno of Buffalo, Joseph Zer:l.lll of Detro:Lt '
Joseph Ida of Phlladelphla, Sebastlan ‘John LaRocca of P:Lttsburgh and
Joseph Profac:L, Vito Genovese + Thomas Lucchese_ and Joseph Bonnanno p all |
of New York C1ty.4¥4 Once the survelllance program was expanded under
th‘eKennedy Admi.nistratlon , agents began to ‘develop a more sophlstlcated | |
awareness of what they’ were ll.atenlng to, a thought process that can be

N traced in the flle, ‘partlcularly in the admlnlstratlve menoranda,

-

which the agents discussed the poss:Lble meanlng of dl'fferent ‘worus,415

Inltlally ;, for exampl(,, agent«* llstenlng to a conversatlon in .

: Phlladelphra on [‘obruary ll 1962, mlstakenly thought thoy were

,.416

B overhearlng “La Causa Nostra, and t_he f:Lle* was renamed accordingly

417

on January 16, 1963 On July 1, 1963, the semlannual sumnary of the

e _-status of the 1ntelllgence program gave several varlatlons oi the nane, :
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includihg Lu .Cosa Nostra La Causa Nostra and “Onorata‘ Soc:LcLa Finai‘ly, g
: on August u 1963 Courtney Dvan the Assou.ate D‘.irector for the

' Spec:.al II’IVQS‘ngathG DlVls:Lon , wrote to hJ. counterpart J.n the General
Investlgatlve DJ.VJ.sJ.on ’ Alan Be]mont- S B | 7

Infomatlon on La Cosa Nostra [was] first recelved
~from a live 1nformant in Septenber 1961, in New York N
as La Causa Nostra, meaning Our Cause. Within months
there was corroboration from other sources, mcludlng

membors, who also gave La Causa Nostra. - ‘

There appeared to be ‘same dlsagreement as to
translation.. I‘lnally, Bureau translators opted for.
Our Thlng. The souﬁfgs who had used Causa dJ.d not

: speak ItalJ.an well

Boss ol /\l] Bo ses

‘ As boss of all bossas, Maranzano establlshed hlmself in a ]uxurlouo ‘
‘apartment be.hlnd the IIotel Conmodore, next to Grand Central Statlon J.n

' Manhattan, and he establlshed a bus.mess front, the Eagle Bu:le:Lng

Corporatlon, a real estate company located at 230 Park Avenue.“?, But,* o

Maranzano p 1t seemed was not oontent o w1n. About six months after
Masserra s murder, he told Valachl to come by h1s house at 2706 Avenue J
Cine Brooklyn. Valach:. arrived. about 5 p.m. He remembered

s Mr Maranzano got rlght to the po:Lnt. .. He sald
'I can't get along with these two guys [Luciano
and Genovese] and we got to get rid of them before .
~we control any thing.' He talked about some others
who had to go too--like Al Capone, Frank Costello,
. Willie Moretti from Fort Lee, N.J., Joe Adonls, and

i Charley Lucky's frlend from outs1de the Oosa Nostra,_
Dutch Schultz. B T,

3 ".'o'"'oo'.Oo"O'"oo."'c'o.'.vo'.t"’tooo"'ooooo

Then Mr. Maranzano tells me that he is hav:.ng cne last
meeting tlﬁonext day at two o'clock w1th Charley Lucky

and V:Lto.

It was: to be Maranzano s last meetlng ’ but lt was not to’ be Wlth Luc:.ano’

or Genovese ' who he planned to have kllled as they 1eft hlS offlce. On



September 10 1931, at 3: 50 p m., th.lc_ in hls off:Lce, Maranzano was o
hot four LJ.mes and stabbed six tmes by four urxldentlfled nen posmg

as. pollce offlc,ers. Valachl was. 1ater told that the klllers were Meyer

kN Lansky s men (one of whom, "Red" Dev:Lne, conflrmed the story to Valachl) E

e Valachl was Lold buL ho res1sted and'! had to bc shot

actlng on Luc:Lano s behalf they had wanted to cut Maranzano s throat,
421
& 'l‘he Maraxwano murder may not have been: an 1solated event
Apparently, ‘Luc:Lano had been planning a purge of the old llne leaders 01:

the Mafla acrosv the country, although Humbert S. Nell:L, the hJ.stor:Lan, g

o has suggested probably correctly, that the murders were largely

, Records were not kept- to docunent the extent

restrJ.cted to New York.4 2

: of the purge, but '1'h0mas E. Dewey, who later was to prosecute Luc:l.ano,
es t1matec1 .L'L at “some 40 nd23 It came to be known as the "nght of

the SJcmlJ.an Vespers nd24

. £, 'LU.CIEJ.D.Oi The Cammission -

: (1)' The Conmlss:Lon

Maranzano had held hlS celebratlon :Ln New York r wh:Lle Luc:Lano held
“ his in Chlcago, but that was not the on]y dlfference. 4 Instead of a boss | :
v ‘of all bosses, Lu01ano establlshed a coxmuss:.on of bosses . whlch made |
the old famJ.lJ.es of the Mafla 1nto a new organlzatlon ’ the natlonal
0 syndlcate of organlzed ch_me Valachl was asked to go- to Chlcago, where -

a "peace conference“ was to be held | "to testlfy agaJ.nst Mar’anzano" (the
425

:kllllng of a boss hac ‘:“ 2 1ust:| fled) v but he decllned He sa:Ld hc
,was not eloquent enough. Accordlng to Gentlle, who was there, the -
cormuss:n.on formed in Chlcago cons:Lsted of Luc:.ano, Profac:L, Bonnanno,
GaglJ.ano a.nd Vlncent Mangano of New York,. Capone of Chlcago and I’rank

| Mllano of Cleveland 426? L:Lttle by llttle, the- other Mafla famllles soon



L Hotel,

‘Lecognucd the new set up and assoc:Latod thc.msolves w11,h 1t 21 ‘ .

l,uc iano had come a long way form belng lcf t for dead on Staten
‘Island in 1929 He moved 1nto apartment 39—C of the Waldorf ’I‘owers in -
| New York Clty, reqlstcrlng under the name Charles I{oss.t_lzg" He was - |
Jmpeccably groomed, a man about town, who enjcyed Lhe company of |

-boautllul womc.n and. hlgh .llV.'l ng T 'l‘hc_ue was, howovcr, scrlous busmess ‘
to aLtend ‘ Polltlcal all 1ances had l:o be cemented. At Lhe ‘1932 ‘

: Democratlc Natlonal (‘onvem'lon in Chlcago ' at Wthh l“ranklln D

‘ Roosevelt was nonunated, a number of mterestlng flgures were on

» hand,429

Joseph P Kennedy, the successful f1nanc1er, was one. Iie was
widely credlted w1th helplng to secure the ncmlnatlon for Roosevelt by
convmcmg Wlll.Ldm Randolph IIearst, the publlsher, to swn.ng Callfornla s
| crucml 44 votes. to FDR.430“, James J ‘ Hlnes, the powerful pol:l.tlcal boss
) from the West. Slde of Manhattan, a Roosevelt supporter, ‘was also there r |
’accompanled by Frank Costello. ’lhey stayed together at the Drake
43"1 where several floors down ’ Luc:Lano hlmself was. ensconced 1n
the entourage of- Albert C. Marlnelll, the Tanmany Hall leader, who was
pledged to Z\lfred }:.. mlth the former Mayor of New York and |
| ‘unsuccessful pres:LdentJ.al candldate in- 1928 Meyer Lansky, too, was at
the Democratlc Conventlon. ‘ - |

‘ Whlle pol:LtJ.cal 1nfluence was - J.mportant, Lu01ano was also busy

strengthenlng alllances w1th1n his own organlzatlon ‘and sortlng out

AQ’) ;
terrltorJ al arrangements. "’f ‘T Rlcﬁfd "Dlee" DaVlS, a’ corrupt l— awyer
who represented Dutch Schultz, descrlbed the new order of Lhe underworld:s

433 After notlng the new

~ina serles of artlcles for Colllers in. 1939
system of alllances," Dav:Ls wondered at the sk:Lll w1th Wth'h "the
underworld" had been “drawn 1nto cooperatlon on a natlonal sca]e" by |

Luc:Lano



Hank MeSSJ.ck has suggested that the alllances descrlbed by Dav1s,
whlch had apparently been agreed upon at a meetlng 1n the sprmg of

: \1934 , in Luc:Lano 8 Waldorf 'I‘owers apartment, constltuted a natlonal

: syndlcate, of wh:Lch the Mafla was only a pa.rt.434 Accord:l.ng to Mess:.ck

the Maf:.a leaders 1nvolved in the synd:Lcate, called th‘e "comblnatlon,"

were more as parwc.rs...than as leadc,rs ol a separate entlty."43$‘

Messlck Wrote that the MaLJ.a flgures referred to thlS natlonal syndlcate

436

as the "comblneesh [s:Lc] " He also alleged that as Lu01ano was about

“to go to prlson for compulsory prostltutlon, he :Lssued an order to hlS

‘ "Mafla subordlnates.‘ “Cooperate w:Lth Meyer," meam.ng Lansky, who then

‘ became the leader of the syndlcate.pj It is questlonable, however,

" whether Luciano possessed the power to transfer his authorlty to Lansky -
- or anyone else. And, if Angelo DeCarlo, a camreg in the Genovese |
‘ fam;Lly, can be belleved Messlck was mlstaken. On October 17, 1961

DeCarlo was remlm.scmg about "the good old days" Wlth several other

‘ members of ‘the Genovese famlly, as the FBI was llstenlng 438

" In the good old days, they dld lt the
right way," said one man.

"You bet your life," DeCarlo agreed
“"Poday they're talked about like everyone .
knowns. You never read nothlng in the paper .

- . about (La Cosa Nostra). years ago. Today we got
an Americanized mob, a Polack mob, a Jew mob,
an Irish mob —- they all know about this
thing." ' ;

- "They had Jew mobs then," observed o

. ancther. R
: "T mean they didn't know about lt - maybe

Meyer knew about it, but the rest of the mob
didn't," said eceolo. "Today they all know. -
.«+ The newspapers know!... [They know] how you’
- get started, how you take the oath and :
everythlng. Look at the kid they made the boss ‘
over [in Philadelphia]. Angelo Bruno. He's'
only in this thing about five years, SlX i
years. And he's the boss."™ . = :
oo "It's always been that way," another man
‘said. g4
‘ ‘ "But not as bad " DeCarlo corrected
- "Before it ‘was more relatlonshlp. All the
B » 89 , S



b()&w(?b"".LL was 1hrough r‘O].cl“LlOIIS'"'COLlanb.
That's the way this thing was supposed to -
‘start. All relations. That's the way it
started in Italy. We were with the .
. combanesche...." :
: L "Couunatn on, what <.omb1natlon'>" a man
asked. -
. "Combanesche' " DeCarlo replled e were
- with the. combanesche. xxx  Vito was a :
- combanesche., ... Vito got in=--I think he told
me...in 1923." o :

A year 1ater, 1n another conversatlon ’ DeCarlo was heard to say 439

‘ "'I‘he combanesche and the Mafla is the same [thlng] When they had it
_all by themselves, nobody knew the (obscenlty) who the hell they were. “

. And then when they started lett:.ng Amerlcanlzed guys 1n. ot

2. Murder, Inc.ﬁ

. Luc:.ano madc_ bkll] ful use. of an awesome squad of assasslns called

o "Murder, Inc. ," a name that was given. to 1t in 1940 by a New York

440 441

| journaln.st, Harry beeney. ) Composed mostly of Jewish klllers,

Murder, Inc. 'y was organlzed in 1927 by LOUlS "Lepke" Buchalter, who was:

‘ electrocuted in 1944, ’lhe serV1ces of Murder, Inc. p however, were not

for hire.442 'I‘he work was done exclus:.vely on retalner, and the Mafla :

was its exclusive cllent.: Luc:.ano ' for example, would J.ssue a contrac*t -
,Lo Joe ]\donls, who would pasc it on to Z\lbert Anastas:La, the Mafla

‘contact. w1th Murder, Inc. ‘Thus, Luc:.ano was tw1ce removed from the

killer. As Burton B. 'I‘arkus, the DlStI‘lCt Attorney who prosecuted the

leaders of. Murder ' Inc. e observed' " [A] ssass:Lnat:Lons were ordered ,

‘talks, you can mvestlgate forever and get nowhere

[Th "SJ

contracted and performed. ..to sustaln rackets.‘ ;- Tarkus made another

; p01nt about organlzed crlme mvestlgatlon. " [T]\here is," he said, only -

_one way organlzed crime can be cracked Unless someone on the msldc

,,444

(3) Prostltutlon -

Apparently, a major aspect of Lu01ano s operatlon.; was organlzed |



prostitution..MJ ‘ 'I‘hroughoutl Manhatt’am, the Bronx » Brooklyn, and Queencs,
he ran 200 hou es and over' 1, 000 glrls, all of whlch amounted to an

annual gross of $12 Illllllor\.44,6 Tuciano, who had contrac*ted gonorrhca :

‘sc,vcn times and syphllls once, dld not rellsh h1s role as a mep 447 "I
don!t f_].lke the racket," he conflded‘to one of his madams,_Florence _, |

| "'Cokey 'f'lo" Brown "There"s‘ not enough -in it f0r the risk we Lake"

“ ,“‘1‘he girls who worked 1or hun had Lhelr complalnts, too. Whon Lu01ano ‘

Was ‘ flnally brought to trial, testlmony :mdlcatcd that many of them had
been kldnapped, hooked on hero:Ln, repeatedly raped, and after thelr Wlll
H was broken, forced 1nLo prostltutlon. As one sald "They worked us s:Lx ¢

. days a -we_e,k, the. syndlcate d1d I‘hey worked us llke dogs and then they ‘

‘448

qkricked‘us“out " At Llrst not wantlng to get 1nto the 1nvestlgatlon

- of prost1 tutlon, rlhomas 13 Dewey, then a spe01al prosecutor for New York ‘

: (,ounty, saw a chance to make an unassallable case agalnst LuC1ano.44?v

‘ Three telephones were tapped from January 11 1936 to February 1

1936, 450

Over ‘100 prostltutes and the1r managers were arrested, and ‘
they soon began to talk,. since there was safety in nunbers. ‘One"of “ the ‘
‘wom:n at the tr 1al told what happened to those who talked "I know what :
:‘ : happened to gJ.rls who had ta]ked about the comb:matlon. 'I‘he soles of |
thelr feet and their tomachs were burned by c1gar butts... ."451 On -
Aprll 1, 1936 Luc1ano was 1ndlcted on 90 counts of cmnpulsory o

prostltutlon. He was arrested 1n Hot Spr:Lngs, and returned to New York

:to stand trlal. Dewey S openlng statement to a SpeClal nlue riboc wry
,swrmarlzed the prosecutlon s case. | | | | o

The vice 1ndustry, since Luciano took over, is
“highly organlzed and operates with business-
like precision. It will be proved that...
-Luciano sat way up at the top, in his apartment
~at the Waldorf, as.the czar of organlzed crime
in th:Ls c1ty. s sWe w1ll show you his function
- ‘as the man whose word, whose suggestion, whosg52
‘ very statement, 'Do thJ.s,' was sufflclent. cels

i .



In all,; 68 w1tncsses Lestifled mcluding 40 prostltutcs, 12
bookcrs pimps and male madams Even the spirlted defensc of one of
Luc1ano 8 lawyers (_-corge Morton Levy, could not overconx. the cunulatiye
cLlect of thc_ testimony. The hlgh p01nt of the trial was Dewcy § Cross
examlnatlon of Luciano, who though he denied” any connection with
o prostltution, could not explain the source of the 1ncomc that supportedvv
| his cxpcnsivc life style.‘ Faced w1Lh his Lax returns ior 1929 to 1935
which showcd that he had never. declaxed more, than $22 500 on an annual

453

| return, Luclano was reduced to stamnering Dewey also pomtedly

| | questioned Luc1ano about a record of his long dlstance phone calls to |
‘reputcd organized cr1me flgures as the case Dewey presented agalnst

" Luciano went beyond the prostltutlon charges for which he was belng

454 Conv:LCt Luc1ano Dewey told the Jury, or "say to- the world

, and the pubch that the base gangster can’ go free."'l*SS\

trled

The Jury

‘ returned its gullty verdict on June 7, 1936 Justice Phllllp J

456

McCook passed sentence on June 18

Charles Luclano an intelligent courageous and
discriminating jury has found you guilty..
You [are]...responsible...for every foul and
-cruel deed, with accompanying elements of '

~ extortion performed [by your] band. [There

. appears] no excuse for your conduct nor hope '
_for your rehabllitation. cee

“ The court J.mposed a staggerlng sentenclng of 30 to 50 years mxprlsonment ”

on a stunned 38-year-old Lucn.ano Dr. L E Ke:mhola the psychlatrlst

‘ ‘at Smg Slng prlson, who examined Luc1ano after his conv:.ction, tld not
dlsagree w1th the need for Luc:.ano s mcarceratlon He found that
‘ 'Luc1ano was "a dangerous md1v1dual. . [who] should not be glven too much

- freedom," |

; g :



| (4) Arthur Flcgcnhenner

Luclano was not the only one of hlS klnd to feel thc heat of
| _ Dewye 8 wrathul determlnatlon Arthur Flegcnhelmer called "Dutch

bchultu," had by strong-ann Lact:Lcs and a pol:Lt:Lcal le he had secured |

o w1th James J H:.nes se1.7ed control of the numbers racket in Harlem for

o requlred by the state constltutlon. The message

E lac_k ganbsters 1‘57 From June 10 to October 29 1936 Dewey had a- tap

on a phone in Hlnes o:tl:.ce from wh:Lch he learned enough about ‘the role ‘
of J. Rlchard DaV1s Schultz s lawyer and hlS lJ.nk to Hlnes, to nersuade

‘ Dav:l.a to testlfy agan.nst nu“.s who was conv1cted and sent to prlson

(3) Deportatlon : ’
Luc1ano was sent flrst to S:Lng Slng and then to Cllnton State .

: Prlson at Dannumra, in ups tate New York where he became’ mmate 92168

458‘

and wenL to work in the laundry He did not come to publ:Lc attentlon ‘

“ again untll January 35 1946 when Dewey, by then Governor of New York
1‘ forwarded an executive clemency message to the State Leglslature as

459 recited Luc:Lano '8

- conviction, sentence and prlson record :Lt noted that Luc1ano was
: ”deportable to Italy.' The next to. last paragraph of the message would

have far—reachmg repercusswns

Upon the entry of the Um.ted States n.nto [World
War II], Luciano's aid was sought by the Armed
~Services in mducmg others to provide .
information concerning possible enemy attack.
* It appears that he cooperated in'such effort,

- : > of the mformatlon N
: -;procured is not clear R

Tueiano was paroled and released into the custody of the Inmlgratlon and s
‘ Naturallzatlon Serv1ce for deportatlon. His ship, the S S Laura :
, Keene was to set sall for Italy on Sunday, February 11, 1946 460

- Newpaper reporters attemptlng Lo J.nterv:Lew Luc1ano aboard Shlp, on -



: l"ebruury 9, were blockcd by a line of lont,shoremen unu..d W.LLll ballnb .
hooks ) Mlchacl Mlnlchlno, an employee of the company thaL had charg,c of
fthe‘pier,‘ Unlvel.,alTermlnal Stevedorlng Company,: would: later dcny that
‘he had seen Albert ». AnaStasla that day In addition to being a ranking ‘
Mafla member, Anastasia ran a local of the Internatlonal longshoremen s
Association. It was routine, Mn.nlchlno sald,‘ not to permit people on a

‘ ‘lworklng pler‘ The neWspapenuen did not interyiew Luciano : but a
going-away party was held 1or h1m and a select group of hlS frlends that
| fa:.ternoon and evening. Among others Fra:nk Costello attended The 5
meal, cons:.stlng of lobster spaghettl and w:Lne was duly consumed and
the conversation among old friends 1asted ll‘ltO the nlght. On the |
follow:.ng morning, at 8:50 a.m., Luciano set sall lor ltaly, never to
‘rcturn to Amcrlca agaln.-lf61 : :

| The rumors of Luc1ano 8. semces to the government in World War II

| broke J.nto prlnt wheni, in February 1947 Walter Wlnchell the colu:mn.st
wrote that Luc1e1no was gon.ng to be awarded the Congressmnal Medal of
Hornor. 462 . The A]:my Navy, and the Offlce of Strateglc Services, the
‘prccursor oi the Central Intelllgence Agency, each formally denled that
‘,‘Luc1ano had made any contrlbut;\.on to the war effort A retlred Naval
1ntelllgence offlcer Cormunder Charlcs Radcllffc Haffender was quoted "

as saying there was substance to the story, but when he was callcd

before the Kefauver committee on March 15, 1951, at the timé it mqulred

~into the questlon, he changed hls story, saymg Luc:.ano had made no
‘31gnlflcant contrlbutlon q  The mllltary services relterated to the
Kefauver conmlttee thelr pub].lC denlals But Lhe TUnors would not be
quleted Then in 1971, Meyer Lansky, who was thought to have played a.

iy role 1n Luc:.ano s patrlot:Lc serv:.ccs," told 11‘1 an 1nterVLew Wth Lhe



pre‘ss in‘lsr‘ael“, his version of ,the story. Lansky, who was under
indictment on charges. related to sk‘imning the profits of a Las Vegas ‘

cas:ino was flghtlng to renuln in Isracl and av01d standln;:, trlal

| Lansky sa:.d 46k

When Italy entered the Second World War there
‘was a feclmg that some Italians are not ‘
patriotic enough. The Intelligence Branch of
~ the American Navy was afraid that those
ltalians worklng on- the ‘docks or. Italian
. fishermen using their boats, might collaborate
with the enemy..,.Mr. Hogan [the New York =
- prosecutor who, succeeded Dewey] called the . .
layer [for)...uw. mo...to [slee if he might be = -
. “helpful, ... [Frank Costello and 1] made'a '
- white lie and we decided that we will tell. o
[Luciano] that if he will be helpful,. .
mlght help to get...out,...[H]e sent some words
to his men, [Luc1ano] was much respched in:
‘ Lhe labor unions. ... : o

-Lansky also suggested that he and Luc:Lano were of ass:.stance in the -
- ‘fallled invasion of SlCl].y, helplng to gather J.ntelllgence from SlClllanS
‘llvmg in thc Unlted States. | ‘
- There is good reason to believe Lansky‘s verslon, desplte the :
| off1c1al denlals Dewey, mcensed over the attack on hlS mtegr:.ty, H
' ‘ordered the New York Conmss:.on on Investlgatlon to conduct an mqulry
lnto Luc1ano s release that was, at the tJ.me, kept confldentxal :Ln
S order to secure the cooperatlon of the Navy. In 1977 however, after

465

Dewey s death his estate released the relevant papers It had been ‘

| a thorough mvestlgatlon from January 28 to September 17, 1954 57

| wn.tnesses-—Naval olflcers ‘state off1c1als and racketeers--fllled 2,883
pages of tesL1mony transcrlpt 466 In addltlon, the cormu.ss:.on had
access to w1retap records from D1str1ct Attorney Frank Hogan s ofilce,
smce Hogan had kept the operat:Lon under survelllance leery of what

appeared to h;m ‘to be’ the Navy s _nan.ve readmess to work with



P

Luc:.ano s help.

racketeers.46‘7 The wiretaps confirmed that the Navy had enlisted the

cooperation of the IVIz'xf‘ia in mich the way LanSky had outlined‘ it to the

‘ p'rcss in Israel. Fearful of sabotage and espionage along New York's
| sprawllng waterfront and adv1sed by Joseph Lanza, a Mafla member who
ruled the Fulton Frsh Market work force, that there was but one man who

could "snap the whip in the enLlrt underworld ! the Navy decided to seek -

468 Luclano agreecl to htlp through hl.b organlzed crime

network by gather:x.ng mtelllgence and’ malntalnmg control ol the docks

He also ass1sted in gatherlng mtelllgence and makmg contact with Maf:La
‘ i'lgures overseas in anthlpath'ﬂ of- ‘the mvasion of Sic1ly Conmander
: Paul A. Alflerl who landed in Slc11y, was asked by the New York ‘

‘Corrmlsslon 1f his contacts in S:Lc:Lly were merrbers of. the Mafla. He

replled "Well they would never admit such, but from my mvestlgatlve

..469

experlencc_ in New York C:Lty, I knew that they were. He added that

‘he had developed the contacts out of the luc:.ano prOJ ect and that they :

“stood him in good stead

As best the New York Comm.ss:.on could deternune the Mafla flgures

‘ ‘were motlvated purely by patrlotlsm -- there was no qud pro quo no .

e preftrentlal treatment granted 1n return Lanza, for example who was :“

‘ under lndlctment for extortlon when he agreed to cooperate was

470

| prosecuted by Hogan, convn.cted and sent to prlson. o As for Luc:Lano,”ﬂ

| the U. S goverm1ent did all it could to keep h:Lm conflned “once he had

| been deported lt used its good offices w1th the post-war Itallan ‘

gOVernment whlch bdfrt:u i iano from Rome, Mllan, ‘and the. 1sland of

SlClly, and 1t thwarted a move by Luc:Lano to establlsh a base of

‘ ;operatlons in Cuba, adv:Lsmg Pres:Ldent Ramon Grau San Martln that all :

shlpments of medlcme would be embargoed as long as Luc:.ano rema:.ned 1n

hlS country 471 “



Lucmno ath.LLd in Naples, takmg, a modcst but c_omfortablc_
~ apartnent at 464 Vla Tosso. Whlle ic was w:Ldely bellc_ved LhdL he lrved

in 1uxury uutll his death of an apparent he_drt aLta.ck at thc. CapodJ.(,hono:

472

| Alrport near Naples on January 26, 1962, anoLher version of h.LS exlle |

iy seemed close to. the truth Agnelo DeCarlo and several friends

‘renembered Lor Lh(_ bBI473

1n October 1962

”Now wait a m:muu., " someone sald "I hapPen to -
know that...[Luciano} didn't need for nothmg

"Not in the last couple of years, but you don t

- know before that," DeCarlo said. = ./ ‘
W "Wito [Genuc-f 's the man that made 1t S0 he
didn't need for nothing.  Vito got 1t for: h1m." .
~ "That's right," someone said. :

"But that was only the last four or :[J.ve o
years," DeCarlo said. .
 "Wito is the type that Tooks' aiter people r

_someone added. 'He had to check to see what it was
“all about. He found out. [Luc:l.ano] owed grocery ’
'bills, butcher bills, everythlng. e
“When he left to go over,...they. cut hlm off
and gave him ten thousand dollars,' DeCarlo said.
. "Then after that he got on the pad for two a month -
- after that _]ust before ‘he died, he was getting
three."

L] . . . . e . .

"It was... [Luc:.ano] that straightened -
everything out and it was...[Luciano] that got
everybody together,' came another comment. '
- "This thing would never have turned out the way
- it is today if it wasn't for..,[Luciano]," - ‘
‘ "Charlle and V1to," someone said.

g.  Vito Genovese f

(1) Backgromd = s
i Vﬂ-n (:p 4 "’lmo near Naples onNovember 21,“,

- 1897, ‘and came to the Unlted States with his parents at Lhe age of 15,
. settling in the Borough of Queens, where his father establl.,hed smdll

(478 He soon became too much for his famlly to :

: contractmg busmess
“handle (hlS flrst arrest at age 20 was for carry:mg a gun, for whlch

he spent 60 days in _]all), so he was sent to llve w1Lh rela,trves on. 8
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Mulbcrry ere.ct m the heart of Little Italy on Manhattan's Lowcr East
3 51de. whelc hc met Luclano and a number of young toughs wrth whotn he

) ’would assoc1ate dur:.ng a career in crlme In thelr younger days, .
Luc1ano and Genovcse teamed uwp for glass shatterlng,'_' a petty theft
method in wh1ch they would heave a rock through a show window of a

i Jewelry sLorc and speed away wu_h as much loot as they could carry
Gradually, Gcnow.sc moved out of pctty crime into the rackets. 11(_ was
J.nvolved w.Lth Luclano J.n prosL.LtuLJ.on, he had a hand J.n Lhc Itallan
lottery, and by the m:l.ddle of the 19203 he was a rn.s:Lng flgure 1n

‘ organlzed crime. \ ' T - |

Accordlng to Valach:L Genovese was a. man whose bent was more

blorentlne than Neapolltan "If you went to Vito," he sald "and told'
hlm about some guy who was domg wrong, he would have ‘this guy kllled -

and then he would have you kllled for tell:mg on the guy. "475‘ And hls‘ ‘

476 Genovese s

penchant for v1olence was not. lmu.ted to the rackets
fl’rSt w1re dled apparently of natural causes.A His eye then turned to ‘
Anna Petillo, his fourth cousin, who was 12 years younger than he

There was only one obstacle to h.'LS des1re--her husband Gerard
‘Vernotlco New York Pollce records show that Vernotlco 29 was found
dead at 12 12 p. m, ‘on March 16 1932 garroted along w1th AnLonlo I.onzo,‘j

‘ who it seemed was a w1tness to Vernotlco s slaymg Accordmg to

Valachl Genovese had ordered Vernotlco kJ.lled 4rr Genovesé and Anna

Petn.llo were marrled 12 days 1ater J.n the Mlm1c1pal bullamg

(2) _'I_Tle;_l_t_:gl._l_a*t E‘xﬂn | ‘
| Not al]. of Genovese s plans worked so smoothly 478\ 'IlWO" years“‘
:later he set up a rlgged card game and money machme swmdle out of

 which he made around $150 000 Ferdinand Bocc1a who had llned up thc"” :



victim, pressed Genovese for his share. InStead"of_ paying off, Cenovese-

hired rnest Rupolo and William Gallo to kill Boccia. /3 ‘Rupol.o was

also upposc.d to kill Gallo afLer BOCCld ‘had been Laken carc of

480 - Genovese actually had Boccia murdered by other

‘Accordmg to Valachl,
klllers but Rupolo attempted on September 9 1934 to k111 Gallo who,

in Lurn, ‘identified Rupolo as his assallant. Rupolo was then trled

- ‘convu,Led and sentenced to nine ‘o 20 years “for the Gallo assault

Bventually, the mvestlgatlon of the Bocc1a murder focused on Genovese, ‘
‘and he was mdlLLed. Seei~a no viable altenwtlye, Genovese fled to
Ttaly n 1937, 483 IR DN :

| Durmg elght years of self-:mposed exile, Genovese llved well He
and Anna had trdvclled to Italy 1n 1933 on a delayed weddmg trip, and
they took w1th them a letter of mtroductlon to Achille Plsam. the
secretary of the Fasclst Party, enabl:.ng Genovese to make contacts 1n

482

the government According to Valachn. when Genovese returned to

Italy in 1937 he took $750 000 whlch was supplemented from tlme to

time by Anna who would come to v131t w1th her husband's share of racket‘

483 Apparently, S

prOiltS in $50, 000 $60,000 and $100,000 mcrements
| ‘Genovese used the money, not only to 11ve lavishly, but- to lngratlate

thself w:.th leaders of the Fasclst reglme Accordlng to Anna he

“ . contrlbuted $250 000 to the construct:l.on of a F sc1st Party headquarters"

in Nola 484 There was also evidence that Genovese arranged to have

: Carm:l.ne Galante murder Carlo 'I‘resca, the edltor of an antl—-Fast.st

3 485 .

publlcatlon in New York Il Martello on January 11 194 Mussollnr

“hlmself cxpresscd gratltude to Genovese by con.terrlng on hlm the Lrtlc,
486 . ' B ‘

: conmendator de Re, a c1v111an honor



others was returned for the Bocc1a murder

In '1944; the autho"rities in New York resumed their interest in the
Boccia murder when Rupolo was released from prison on parole and got
mixed up :m another shooting. 48‘] In an'effort to avoid going back to

prison, Rupolo told the Brooklyn Police that Genovese had been : ,

- responsible for the Bocc1a murder naming Peter LaTempa a cigar store

salesman, as a witness who could verlfy his story, as corroboratlon is a
prerequisite for conviction under New York law. Based on the test:unony
of Rupolo and Lalempa, a new 1nd1ctment against Genovese and three
488 | |
. As the tide of battle turned leadlng to the surrender of Italy 1n ‘
S(,ptember 1943, Genovese did a qulck turnabout and s1gned on as 'an

489

interpreter for the Allied MlllLary Government at Nola,~ He could not -

resist a temptatlon to revert to hls old professmn, however, and he was

.arrested on August 27, 1944 by Orange C chkey, a special agent for

MlllLary Intelllgence for runmning a black market syndicate. 490 Whlle

| Genovese was in chkey» s custody, he offered him a: $250 000 bribe, whn.ch '

chkey rc.fused Then, when chkey learned from a routine check w1th the -

FBI of the outstandlng murder mdlctment in Brooklyn, he made

‘ arrangements to bring Genovese back to the United States to stand trial.

491 .

Genovese pressed his demands on chkey "Now, Look, you are yom‘x‘g,

“he told Dickey, who was 24.,‘ "[T]here are things you don t understand

This is the way it works. Take the money. . Nobody cares what you do.

gt

“ Why should you'?" When Dickey refused Genovese turned ugly chkeyﬂ L

would Genovese warned ref*'r'et hlS actions. Suddenly, Genovese's

attn.tude changed and he told chkey, "You are domg me the blggest |

- favor anyone has ever done, to me. You are taklng me home Genovese‘

knew somethmg that Dickey did not LaTempa was belng held in -
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protective custody at the Raymond Street Jail in Brooklyn. LaTempa
suffered from gallstones, and on January 15, 1945, he took a -

,prescription for pcun The city toxicologist‘ later reported that he had
been gJ.vc,n a dosage of poison potent enough "to k:.ll eight horses.' 492‘
Genovese. was returned to the Um.ted States on June 1 1945, but without
LaTempa's corroboratmg testlmony he could not be convicted of the -

Boccia slaying, and he was re‘leased from custody in the summer of 1946._ “

493

Assrstant DlStrlCt Attorney Julius Helfand told the court on June 11,

1946:

Other w1tnesses Who could have suppl:Led the
necessary corroboration were likewise not ,
available because they were missing or refused
to talk and tell what they knew of this crime
because of their fear of Genovese and the other
bosses of the underworld, or [because they
know]  full well that to ‘talk would mean thelr
death. ,

Rupolo who was. released from prison in 1949 was apparently
"forgiven'" for Leetlfylng agamst Genovese,l'gl’ since he had done ‘hl‘S;‘
‘jail time on the Gallo assault in e,llence», but on August 27 , ‘1‘964, ‘h‘i‘s
tightly bound corpse broke iloose from concrete weights and ‘came to the
‘v : sulface of Jamaica Bay.qgs‘ Rupolo had been stabbed ll times and shot 6
tJ.mes though apparently his murdu: was unrelated to hls test:lmony j
against Genovese. He had had a run-in w1th members of the PI'Odel
family, -who were tried for his killing, but acqultted ._496

3) buccessmn to Luc:Lano

CIn November 1946 Luc:.ano hlb passport in order made a surprlse )

‘ appearance in Havana and placed Ldllb to: New York, Ch].cago Detroit and -

New Orleans to announce an mxportant meetlng 497 All the top Mafia

.'flgure.b came: Genovese Costello Anasta31a, Accardo Marcello even

498

| ‘Lansky, a power though noL really a member It was the occasion for
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Luciano to pass the power to Genovese, although the 'succession did not
come to the attention of the authorities until 1949, when Costello, who
had been acLJ.ng boss. of thL family wh:Lle Genovesc was in ltaly and in
prison, hosted a dimmer at. the Copacabana in Manhattan. John F.

Shanley, Deputy Chief Inspector of the New York Pollce Department

499

‘ told the McClellan c,onmJ.Ltee '

VltO was met at the door by Costello and he was
- ushered in and he sat at the best place and
* this spread:through the city in no tlme, that
~Vito had emerged i
But Genovese was not Satlsfled Accordmg to Valaohl he was ang,ry

that others while he was. J.n Italy, had been allowed "to sew up

: ovorythlng n500

lL would take tlme but Genovc.be wae detc,rmlned to take |
action af,alnst a number of hlS assoc1ates mcludmg Costello in an |
effort to enhance hlS p031tlon. First, however, he had a domestic

- problem to settle | " S

' (4) The Return

(1) A Divorce

v While Genovese was in Italy, Anna had run the Itallan lottery for
| “him, ‘wh:Lle living in luxury at 29; Washington Square West in Manhattan
one floor above the aparmient of Eleanor ROos‘evelt 501 When Genovese

‘returned to the Unlted States he and Anna moved: to a $75 000 mansion on'

| Skyline Drlve ]II‘Atldl‘lth nghlands, N.J. , on whlch, Anna sald,, Genovese

they "llved vu:y hlgh, ' as Anna would late‘r testify, their marriage ‘Was

hardly ideal. 503

ACLOL\L.;.;Q:, to Anna, Genovese beat her to the pomL LhaL
* she feared for her life, and he was mvolved with other Women . In ‘ |
December 1952 Anna f:Lled for d:Lvorce :Ln Freehold N. J the Monnnuth

County seat.504 Anna s testlmony at the hearlng caused a sensatlon and



it provided an unusual insight into the lifestyle‘ of an American

: yang:,bt.cm whose fortune the Bureau of Narcotics would ceLnnaLc in 1960

to be $30 mlll:Lon.505

Accordlng to Anm ‘Genovese took in SZO 000 to

- $30 ,‘00‘0‘ a weelk from the Italian l‘ot‘tery.‘ "I know,..." she said, 506
"because I myself ran [it].. .. Their house, she added, "had 24-carat
‘ gold and platinum dishes. Our sllverware was the best money could

; buy."‘507 | Their ‘personal wardrobe‘s‘ were equally impress‘ive, ‘consi‘dering
1952 prices--a $4, 500 mink coat, $250 suits and $60 ‘shoes. 508 Genovese
~also had funds 1n hld:mg—-at least $500 000 in one safedeposu Lox in
Swrtzerland 5 09 Yet between 1952 and 1956 Genovese declared between
$7,000 and $15,000 in taxable annual income.”’ Though he denied all
this wealth, the court ordered him to pay $300 a week allmony and $1, 500‘ .
court costs.511 Thereafter, Genovese reverted to the ways of his early o
Mafla ancestors foregomg the opulent style that was a hallmark of
| latter-day Amerlcan gangsters. He rented a $100-a-month bungalow at 68 -
West Highland Avenue in Atlantlc H].ghlands he drove a two-year-old
'Ford; and he reduced his wardrobe to not more than 10 sults, none ‘of
wnich cost more than“.?:lOO“.512 On the dusty top_‘ of a dresser m his
‘b‘edroom stood ch‘eap‘plastic statues of saints. His children and eight
grandchlldren visited him frequently, and he personally cooked spaghett:. |
for them, 513 He toldSl' his nelghbors he had to move "to pay the
PLo

al:imony " He tol his frlends, "'Forget the hlgh 11v1ng T It'll put \

you in jail if you are not careful.”

Valachi re‘calleds 6

the divorce proceedl’rlgs: "Nobody coul'cl | |
understand why Vito didn 't do anything" about her." Apparentl'y,f | Genovese‘
© still had affection for Amna. "[W]lhen we.. .were in [the Federalprison»

at] Atl’anta,‘. . .he would sometimes ‘talk; about her, and I would eee the
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- havrng his own problems

tears rolling down his cneeio," Valachi‘ .c:vaid.sl7 "1 eouldn't believe
it." Anna's associates were:not 50 lforttmate. On June 19, ‘1953,‘ when
 Anna was abOut to be called ‘beforek a New JerVSey grand jury, Steven
Franse, her partner in tht 82 Club, ‘a Greenw1ch V:Lllage m_ght tlub _was
found strangled 518 It was, Valachl mdlcated 519 a warnlng to Anna to:
- keep quiet, and_ she took“the hint." She told the grand j jury that she
knen‘ 110tni11g, and if she ever did, she had forgotten it. ke

(i) A Rival | _.

Frank Costello who Genovese considered h:Ls pr1nc1pal rlval was‘
520 He had been conv::.cted of contempt of
Congress as a.result of hlS performance as a w1tness before the Kefauver
committee. His appeals exhausted he started serving an 18-month term E
on August 22, 1952, but with time off for good behavior he was released
on October 29, 1953. In April 19543 Costello was back in court on an

income tax evasion charge;521

Internal Revenue agents had carefully

| compared his expendltures with his declared income and found a $51,095
dlscrepency over a four year perlod With the test:mony of 144 :
witnesses and 500 docwnents, the government was ,able‘ to show an

| unexplained J'.ncrease in Costello's net worth; 3 The verdict was‘ne\‘zer in
doubt; and after extensive appeals, Costello went back to prlson‘ on May
14; ‘1956.5‘22 He brought a new‘ 1Mer intov his case, ‘hoWever‘--the noted

defense‘ counsel, Edward Bennett Williams of Washington, who ‘entered a-

new appeal and got Costello out onball, after he had served only 11 |

months of his five-year term‘.’5‘2_3 ‘Inmediate'ly, Costello returned to his

normal routine; mornlngs hoiding court at the Waldorf—Astoria; |

afternoons at the Biltmore steam room; and evenings dining out.s24
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(1ii) The Costello Attempt

On May 2, 1957, Costello ate dinner at the. fashionable Méntmttan
restaurant,; L':A‘iglon.szs At .about 11 p.m., he returned to the Majestic
Apar'l:ments at 11.5 Cent‘ral Park West; where he maintained an apartrnent.
As he entered the foyer;‘ a fat, tlabby—lookingnian in.a dark suit with
his hat pulled down shuffled past him. His hand came out of his pocket.
526. )

It held agun "This is for you, Frank, " he jrelled - He th(.n flred

one shot pomt blank- at CostelJ.o S head and fled. Wounded but not

1. 527 As ‘he ]ay in

| serlously, kCostello was rushed to Roosevelt Hosplta
~ bed, New York detectlves m..:ntorled the. contents of his pockets They
; iound $3, 200 in cash and a cryptlc note | "Gross Cas:Lno Win as of
4-27- 5/——$651 284, u528 DlStI’lCt Attorney Frank Hogan S offlce w1Lh the ;
htlp of the Nevada Gambllng Control Board and Aaron Kohn of the New |
Orleans Metropolltan Crime Commission, determined that the figure
| matched the house‘ take at the New Troplcana Hotel in Las Vegas. 5‘29
Costello apparently had a hidden interest ina Nevada cas:Lno desplte
the supposedly strlct over31ght by the state of Nevada of the ownership
of lts casinos. Costello declmed to explaln the note,. nor was he
helpful as to the identity of h.'LS would—be—assassm "I didn't see :
nuthin'," he said. 530 Asked why anyone would want to kill him, he

replied, "I haven't an enemy in the worl‘d‘."531 His assassin ,was,

however, identified from a desc‘:ription the doorman p’rovided;' he was

Vincent Gigante, a soldier in the Genovese family, Valachi 'later |
‘confirm‘ed that Gigante had been given' the contract on CoStello by

Genovese. He had practlced for the hlt Valachl sa:Ld in a Greenw1ch

| | Vlllage basement though :Lt apparently dld llttle good 532

e - Nevertheless Costello testJ.fled at Glgante s trlal that he had never
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seen the man’before, ar? =  ante was acquitted.‘533

Costello tock the
hint and let it be“known‘that he was retiring from the rackets. The
‘ Lmal ruling on his tax case was handed down in October 19‘58; :Lt went
against Costello, desplte the legal work. of the famed Edward Bennet_t

. 534

‘Williams. He returned to prison and was not released‘mtil June |

1961, The govemment then made an’ eJ:fort to denaturalize and deport

535

hlm A spokesman for the Italian govermnent aptly observed

Italy should not be expected to carry the
burden of a man who was born in Italy, llved
here only a short time, and then spent most of
his life in the United States. It's not blood
that makes a man a criminal; it's society, and
we definitely do not want to pay for such men. _
 The Supreme.Court intervened in February 1961, and Costello was not
" deported. : ,
On February 7, 1973, while sitting in his Central Park West

apartment, Costello suffered a nﬂ.ld“heart attack. He was hospitalized |

at Doctors Hospital on East End Avenue and 87th Street. Apparently,
Costello thought he would recover, for he sent ‘word through a friend
that he would let Peter Maas, the writer, prepare his biography. At
7: 30 a.m. on February 18 however he suffered a fatal coronary

(1v) The Anasta31a Murder ‘

As explanatlon for the assault on Costello to the rest of the

mderworld Genovese let 1t be known that Costello had been talking to

rHr'l

3
D
it

‘E

accept, 536 No one was safe, ’An.astasia a‘rgued (Af Genovése could order

Costello s execution withoiut the prior approval of the natlonal
.‘coumlss:l.on 237 Anastasm s fears were well- founded
At about 10 15 on the mornmg of October 25, 1957 Anastas:.a,

“ accompam.ed by two bodyguards strolled mto the barber shop of the
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Park-Sheraton Hotel at Seventh Avenue and 56th Street in Manhattan.538

He seated himself in chair mmber four, loosened his tie and closed his
eyes for the last time. As his barber, Joseph Bocchino, covered hiso
face with a hot towel, the bodyguards disappeared, and two other men |
walked in from the hotel leb‘b}r, strode up behind chair number four and )
fired .32 and .38 caliber bullets into ‘Anastasia's head and body, ‘
literally blasting hlm out of the chair. The hlgh executloner of
Murder, Inc. had hlmself been executed
Several mdependent soqrces purported to give inside information .

' about the Anastasia ‘tmrder.‘ Sidney 'Slvater, who operateda B-girl bar‘on
- East 5‘5th Street for Joseph Gallo, an organized crime figure, told |
| District Attorney Frank Hogan's office that shortly‘after it occurred,
the murder became a runnlng topic oj: conversation for Gallo and four of
his henchmen. "From now on Sldney," Slater quoted Gallo as hav:.ng sald

"'you can Just call the five of us the barbershop quintet. ”539

Vincent
Teresa a soldn.er in the Mafia famlly of Raymond Patriarca of “
Providence, told ‘Thomas Remmer, his blographer that while Gallo set up
| the murder, the actual killers were Jmported from Patrlarca terrltory
and that Gallo had received the contract from Anthony Strollo, i

‘Genovese's underboss. 240

According to Teresa, both Carlo Gambino, -
: Anastasia's underboss, and Carmme Imbardozzi, an Anastasia soldier,

‘had been involved in the conspiracy A slightly different version was

prov1ded by Peter Dlapoulos one of Gallo's bodyguards He told an

" author, Steven Linakis ,541

that the contract came through Joseph Profac1
to the Gallos (Joseph Gallo and h1s brothers), and they were "made "
that is, formally accepted into La Cosa Nostra, as a result of t:he hJ.t
‘Flnally, accordlng to Valach:l. the m.u:der was prmc1pally a Genovese-
Gambino conspiracy for the sake of power 542 -
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None of the versions was fmdamentally mconsistent with another,
and they all were in agreement that Genovese was ultunately responsible
for Anastasm s death. "It was evident, however that they all reflected .
partia‘l*fand superficial explanatlon of a :complex event. Valachi' s
account, in particular, had to be seen as incomplete and distorted by an -
' anti-Genovese bias.v To be sure Genovese's'thotivation could have been |
read as a s1mple thlrst for power, but the mvolvement of other major
: flgures .o Patrlarca and apparently, Santo Trafflcante Jr -—mdlcated
'that the murder of Anastas1a had the support of others W1th1.n the
organlzatlon and was rooted :Ln reasons that ‘went beyond the personal \
ambitions of Genovese and Ganbino. Those reasons, would be learned
however, :Lf for no other reason than Genovese would be called on to
Justn.fy to the heads of the other Mafla fanu.lles the klllmg of
‘Anastasia. Anastas1a s complalnt after all was more pertlnent than
ever: no one was safe ‘un‘less Genovese was. required to follow proper
procedure | | |

(v) The Apalachm Meeting

According to Robert Kermedy, when he testlf:l.ed before the McClellan ‘
committee in September 1963 the prmc1pal purpose of the Apalachm
meeting in Novenber 1957 was to permlt Genovese to explaln to the other
‘ 1eaders of La Cosa Nostra the assault on Costello and the nurder of ‘

Anaet‘a i, 543

maatrine. in Chicaoa
B

L= UII.J-\'GBU.

"Vlto wanted to go to Chlcago Stefano Magadd:.no talked him into gomg

to Apalachln Vito never stopped beefing about 1t " Valach:l. told the

comm.ttee 544 Genovese's case agamst Anastasia could not be based

~ merely on personal ame.tlon " There had to be reasons that would o =

- . carmand general support w1th1n La Cosa Nostra Accordmg to Valachl 545




Anastasia was killed because ‘he had been selling Cosa Nostra memberships
to unfit applicants for up to $40, 000 when the "books were open" in
. 1954, .after having been closed since 1931. This hardly seemed
sufficient to warrant an 1 unauthorized execution iof a family bOss,‘ and it
was a good illustration of Valachi's limited understanding of the
Anastasia murder. Far more significant, it appeared, was Anastasia's
attempt to move in on the gambllng operations 1n Cuba, which belonged,
in large measure, to Santo Trafficante. In fact there apparently was a-
showdown meeting in Anastasia s suite at the Warw1ck Hotel on October
24, 1957 'I‘rafficante ‘who was registered in the ‘hotel as ''B. Hill "
checked out an hour or two after Anastasia was glmned ‘down in the barber.

546 Even Anastasia must have

shop a few blocks away the next morning.
‘realized that there‘was too much at stake in Havana for it to be given
up w:.thout a fight |

(Vl) Havana Gamblmg

In 1957, there were two ways to reach Havana from the United States |

547

~-=by car or by air. By car, the traveller first felt the Cuban

at:nosphere at Key West, a bad translation, say the Cubans, of Ca y |

Hueso which means ""bone key " There while Stlll on U. S. soil, a

Cuban customs mspector thoroughly went over the car. "There is a

revolution in Cuba, ' he would say. "No guns; no axrunmtionl"“

148

exploswes Then, the car was carefully driven aboard a ferry that

‘ 1ooked like a wartime LST for the trip to Havana - By air, the time was

less than f1ve hours from New York and 1nexpens1ve—-$180 80 round trip

549

first class $137 tourist Flight time from Miami was onlya about an

, hour and the round trip was $36 first class. By sea, the first glmlpse

of Cuba was the 350-year—old Castillo de los Tres: Reyes del Morro, or
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Morro Castle, imposing from where it stood on a point to the left of the
narrow entrance to Havana Harbor. By air, the traveller s first
‘close-up viev}, after scanni.ng the white beaches and the city itself, was
RanchO‘Bderos International Airport, later renamed for Jose Marti, the
hero of the revolution against Spain. | |

| The visitor to the Cuba of Fulgencio Batista y Zaldivar, the
onetime colonel who eventually made himself a president, was etruck by
the. salub‘rious climate, a mean annual temperature of 76 degrees, “ and tne‘
beauty of Havana, although for those who looked beyond the s:.ghtseemg
routes, there was gr].m poverty. Havana had three prmc:.pal sectlons
then: the old city, the densely settled subdivisions, and the

subu:rb‘s.550 The old narrow streets of the business sectllon of the city

:cormected with the Avenida del Puerto, whlch, with a width‘ varying from
ib “ ‘50 to l25 feet, merged at the Prado (properly called the Pase de Marti)
J’nto the Malecon, or sea wall, a wide boulevard which skirted‘ the sea
and eity, furnlshmg a colorful route extending well eut into the |

P | ‘westemn suburbs. At the point where the Prado intersected the Malecon,

’ the genteel shabblness of once magnlflcent homes contlnued westward |
“until the newer and more fashionable Vedado sectlon appeared. On a

'bluff where the city proper joined the Vedado, with the long sweep o‘f‘

‘the Malecon on one hand and the irpnmrient to the battleship, Maine, and

the Pardue del Maine on the other,‘ stood the magnificent Hotel Nacional

de Cuba, built in the late 1920s, with its deep-carpeted gaming room,

the Casino Parisien. B‘eyend Vedado We‘re the then newer and mnre .

pretentibus suburbs, including Marianao. Marianao had its fine homes ,‘
its 'country clubs‘, ‘the' Yacht Club, Priental Park Race Track and the

Tropicana,‘ wh:Lch was one of the largest and most elaborate nlght clubs ’
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in the world;551 - There was another club of comparable size and splendor
--the Sans Souci. Each featured spectacular stage presentations and
full- scale casino ganbllng, with expens1ve chandellers brocade
draperies, and a mmk‘stole clientele.  The estlmated value to Cuba of
tourism associated w1th the‘ high life of the casmos in 1958, the last.
year before the success of the revolution, was $60 m:Llllon The ugly
reality beh:md the creatlon of these cas:Lnos and others Just as lav1$h
was an 1mportant eplsode in the annals of organlzed crime.

| In 1937, Meyer Lansky had accordmg to Hank Messmk acqulred the
gamblmg concessmn in the Hotel Nacional. The war however,

mtermpted busmess as Messmk noted in Silent Syndlcate,ssz quotmg

“ Lansky:: “"We stopped when the war broke out because after that there
weren't ;anv‘boa;ts,'... [alnd at that time you didn't have enough'planes "
"You can't live,""‘ Lansky added "from the Cuban people themselves 33
When Batista returned to power in 1952, Lansky and his partners in crlme "
were not far behind. On June 29, 1962, Angelo DeCarlo wiétfully
remembered for an FBI bug how it had been under Batista: "[T]he mob had
a piece of every joi.nt down there " he said. "There wasn't one joint

'554 Knowmg the“value of legalized

they didn't have a p:Lece of.'
gambling to. a goverrment mllmg to exploit it, Batlsta had changed the
Cuban laws to attract the gamblmg J.ndustry and to create: for hunself a

‘lucratlve source of 1111c1t J.ncome In 1955, casmo pamb] ing was

permltted in any nlghtclub or hotel worth $1 mllllon or more. 555 The
Cuban government agreed to match investment money or. fmd Cuban f

- organizations that would‘.556

The license fee would cost only $25 000
plus 20 per cent of the profits. The word in the \mderworld“was that

the licenses in reality cost $250,000 under the table to Batista and his
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friends.557 Import duties, usually as high as 70 per cent, were waived

on‘buildingnnterials, and pit bosses, ‘stickmen, and dealers were made
eligible fort two-year‘ instead of \s‘iX—month‘visas.SSS New casino hotel k -
ccxrplexes sprang up. Lansky built the Hotel Havana Riviera on the

Malecon for $14 million,ss‘gwat least $6 million of which was provided by

‘goverrment—controlled‘barﬂcs; Dino and Eddie Cellini, both organized =~
N | 560

cri_me figures from Ohio ran the casino. Most of the $24 million for

the 630 room, 30 story Havana Hllt_on came from pensmn and welfare funds

561

| kof Cuba's Cooks and Bartenders Unlon Beyond Havana, at Varo Daro |

Beach the Hotel Internatlonal was bU.llt In addltlon, oldscasmos were o

- taken over by organlzed cr1me flgures Jake Lansky, Meyer's brother, ;
managed the gamblmg operations at the Hotel Naclonale, whose prmclpal
bowners were, in addltlon to Meyer Lansky, three syndlcate gamblers from
Cleveland Morris Dalitz, Sam Tucker. and Thomas J. McG:Lnty Ernest

d563 the Hotel Nac1onal as the

HemJ.ngway s daughter Marla describe
. "place for gamblmg" ‘in Batlsta s Cuba. It had she sald 364
| Plenty of bars a staff that never changed and

- always remenbered you, ‘good music, first class ‘

entertainment, and that great terrace upstalrs [

~ looking out to the gardens with thelr palms

the Malecon, the sea and the sky
Santo Trafficante, Jr owned substantlal mterests in the San

Souci, a nightclub and casino where fellow—racketeer John Roselll had a

managenent role; the Hotel Capr1 1n Wthh Charles Tourme of;he :

Genovese famlly also had a share and where George Raft the movie star ‘
was a frequent v1s1tor, the old Hotel Comnodoro, and the spankmg new. .

Havana H].lton 56?

As for the Troplcana where the lav1sh casmo was as. .
Il'llCh a tourlst attractlon as the dancmg—glrl extravaganza it was

managed by Martin and Pedro Fox for Bdtlsta s brother—ln—law Roberto
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Fernandez y Miranda, who also‘had ‘a monopoly on the slot machines
throughout Cuba.566 | |
'In terms of criminal activity, there was nx‘)re to the casino

operations in Havana ‘than bribery for the purpose of obtaining licenses
The exact dimens:.ons of the skim, that is, the theft of casino profits
to av01d taxes, was not documented, but it could be at least partially
inferred from one incident. In September 1958 Jake Lansky arrived in
Miam1 from Cuba, where Customs thoroughly searched him, a departure from

its usual routine, and found $200 000 in cash and $50,000 in checks |
Lansky said the money was for depos:.t at the Bank of Miami That
explanation was appropriate ‘enough for the checks, but the usual

procedure was, aerank Messick noted in Silent Syndicate‘,‘ for the cash

to flow the other way to replenish the bank at the casino,‘ since patrons
wanted to be paid off in dollars, not pesos. The in.ference was :
mescapable. the $200,000 represented skim. 367, In a report issued for
1958, the Cuban National Council of Economy noted that while 21, 000
Cubans were employed in gambling, 5 000 lived by begging, and another ,

11,500 1lived by or on prostitution ? 68

Havana, in short was a
full- -service vice capital owned and run by the mob, Whose pr1nc1pal
representative there was Santo Trafficante, Jr. ‘ |

Santo Trafficante, Jr‘ born‘in 'l‘axrpa, Fla., on Novenber 14, 1914

was the namesake of a Mafia leader who ‘had come fram SlCllV in 1904 and

| was described by the Kefauver conmlttee as "a reputed leader in Tampa

for more then 20 years. "569

A sign that Tampa was a big-timeMafla city
was the presence of two of the elder ’I‘ra.fficante s associates Joseph.
Baglichi and Ignazm Italiano, at a meeting at the Hotel Statler in

‘Cleveland on Decanber 5, 1928 They were arrested in a. police raid ‘
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along with 21 other prominent gangsters from across the country,
including Pasquale Lolordo of Chicago, the president of the Unione
Siciliana, and his associate, Giuseppa Giunta (Lolordo and Giunta were
later murdered by Al Capone personally), and three of Luciano's
lieutenants from New York, Joseph Magliocco, Joseph Profaci and Vincent

Mangano. When Santo Trafficante, Sr., died on August 11, 195-’4570

Santo,
Jr., one of six sons, succeeded to the leadership of the Tampa organized
crime family, whose principal activities were narcotics trafficking and
gambling, both casino gambling and bolita, a Cuban version of

371 ye had been well-schooled. He had run the bolita for his

numbers.
father and had extended his own operation to Havana, where he acquired
the Sans Souci from Gabriel Mamnarino, an underworld figure from
Pittsburgh.572 Trafficante's status in organized crime was clearly
recognized on June 4, 1955, at the marriage of Joseph Profaci's
daughter, Carmella, to Anthony Tocco, the son of William Tocco, a Mafia
leader in Detroit.573 The reception, at the Hotel Commodore in
Manhattan, gave law enforcement an opportunity to observe the deference
paid to Trafficante. Trafficante had, however, evidently cloaked his
interests well. The Tampa police told the McClellan committee on
October 15, 1963, that they knew of '"mo legitimate businesses owned or

]."574 "His house, automobile, and all his other

w75

controlled by [him

. possessions," they said, '"[were] held in the name of others.'" The

Tampa police also described for the McClellan committee the record of
gangland violence in Tampa since 1928.576 Of the 23 known slayings,
only one had resulted in a conviction. In contrast, from 1958 through
1962, 228 other murders occurred, only four of which were not solved.

Not everyone agreed with the picture of Trafficante that was painted for
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the McClellan committee. His wife of 25 years, Josephln(, told a Tanpa -
Tribune reporter on October 16, 1963, that the testimony about orgam.zed
crime in Tampa was ''trash." Pressed on related matters, however, she
conceded that her husband had '‘made ‘quite a bit of money‘ while he was in

‘ Havana."577

Allegedly retired, Trafficante himself, who divided his
time between a large, cornfortable home at 2505 Brj.stol Avenue, in Tampa,
aod a more Imdest concrete block bungalow at 523 N.E. 7lst Street in
M:Laml was unavallable for comment.

When Castro's revolutlon triumphed in 1959 the mob lost ‘a maJor
sotlrce of its revenue. In Castro's view, gambling was not in keepmg
" with the ideals of the revolution. Initially, he closed the caSinos,‘ as

n3/8 Then, faced with

part of what '_l‘gne_; called a "purification campaign.
the unemployment of Cuban casino employees he permitted them to reopen,
if they would make good on seven weeks back pay. It was Castro's plan
to permlt the casinos to operate under mobster management for 60 days,
until clean ownershlp could be established. But the tourist trade dried
up, and honest casino owners could not be‘found._ Time quoted aganbler '
 who addressed Castro's dilemma: "Only garnblers can run casinos,' he
said. "You can't get a priest or a garage mechanic."579 |

(5) Narcotics | |

Another item on the agenda at Apalachin, apparently, was the

contmumg involvement of La Cosa Nostra in the narcotlcs traffic. 580

Accordmg to Valachl Frank Costello during the Luc1ano Genovese '

interregnum in 1948, forbade‘members from engaging in 1t.581 Between
the Costello edict and the Apalachin meeting, Congress had also passed
legislation to meet the narcotics problem. The Boggs Act of 1951,

sponsored by Representative Hale Boggs of Louisiana, provided for
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‘mandatory penalties after a first conviction The Boggs-Daniels Act of
1956, sponsored by Boggs and Senator Price Daniel of- Texas provided for

- stiff mandatory penaltles for all narcotics convictions. 582

This
legislation was of great concern to La Cosa Nostra, and one conclusion
reached at the Apalachm meetmg, or shortly thereafter was that’ |
: menbers would be forbldden from dlrect J.nvolvement in narcotlcs trafflc, " :

" although flnanclng and Jmportatlon were permlssz.ble 283"

| In other words,
deal:Lng was to be "franchlsed" to non-MafJ.a groups--for example blacks
| andkPuerto Ricans. Other, more drastlc measures--klllmg known : |
o narcotics agents-;were con51dered and rejected. But as Valachi noted
narcotlcs trafflcklng was too lucratlve for self-pollc:l.ng by the

584

underworld to work Bureau of Narcotlcs Commissioner Henry L

Giordano told the McClellancomnlttee in July 1964 of the consequences :

385 Slnce 1956

of .the fallure to mlplement the ' no narcotlcs rule
Glordano testlfled the Bureau had using undercover techniques,
‘ developed 20 major consplracy cases against 206 promlnent orgam.zed

' crlme offenders Nlneteen per cent of the Genovese famlly, 40 percent

| ‘of the Lucchese famlly and 20 percent of the Gambl.no famlly, or at least T

o of. those 1dent1f1ed before the corrmlttee were conv1cted on narcotlcs

 charges between 1956 and 1964.7%

Vito Genovese hlmself was among those convictedf.58‘7

His 1959

narcotlcs nroqem1ﬁnn rpsul rod from tt

o narcotlcs sale to an undercover officer.

- Nelson Silva Cantellops a Puerto R1can dealer m Upper Manhattan for a
| 3 8‘8‘ Faced w1th a poss:.ble life

: term, Cantellops agreed to, testlfy agamst 16 co—consplrators Genovese
among them, who stood trlal for the importation, sale, and dellvery of

narcotics. - The trial lasted three months in Manhattan Federal court.
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The testimcmy filled 6,700 pages of transcripts Cantellops, thdugh a
mlnor flgure in the rlng, was the prmc:Lpal witness agalnst Genovese.
“ 'He was on the stand for 19 gruelmg days Judge Alexander BJ.ck had to

order from the courtroom hecklers who made threatenlng gestures at

Cantellops He could not do anythmg about the ‘midnight calls to his "
W'.Lf : '"We'll get Cantellops.  We'll get you n' the k:Lds too. 83
Desplte the harassment and gulded by the careful questloning of
’ P | Ass:.stant U. S. Attorney Arthur H. Chrlsty, Cantellops 1dent1f1ed
- ‘Genovese as- the man who had dlrected the ring's activities. The Jury
‘belleved Cantellops and Genovese was sentenced to 20 years “‘Genovese o
. . ‘ ‘later told a fellow immate at Leavenworth it was "a bum‘rap."‘ "I
| wouldn't have minded 1f they got me on mcome tax evasmn because that :

190

would be fair.' Ralph Salerno the organized crime expert agreed

v | termlng Cantellops s testl.mony "almost unbelievable. w591

Genovese

| challenged\h:.sconv:.ctmn, securmg the services of Edward‘Bevn‘nett’

J Williams, but it was af‘firr‘ned on appeal.‘ Having been traris‘lferred from
the Federal prison at Leavenworth Genovese died on February 14,

‘1969 292 ps for Cantellops he was slam in a barroom brawl 1n 1965 593
J. The Organized Crime Program: 1957-1963

Wlthm days of the Apalachm meetmg, the FBI establlshed what 1t

“ termed its Top Hoodlum Program Selected field offlces around the b

kcountry were requ:.red to collect mtelllgence on the Apalachln

5%

attendees Under the Kennedys the effort was expanded and
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"electronlc surveillance was made the mamstay of the program - On

June 29, 1962, the FBI sent to the Deparunent of Justlce a sumnary
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report entitled, "The Criminal Commission,' which documented the
structure of organized crime nationwide.  From there on, the report was
updated evey six months.

1. The Commission

The FBI identified the commissione.or coumission, established by
Luciano in the 1930s, as the highest rulmg body of La Cosa Nostra,
| whi.ch was composed exclusively of indiﬁdlnls of Italian birth or
extractlon The powers of the comm.sslon--lts authorlty, for example, |
to OVerrule md1v1dual fam:.ly bosses--was dlscussed w1th:Ln earshot of

the FBL on September 21, 1964, by Sam DeCavalcante and Joseph Zlcarelll N

596

a member of the Bonnanno family. The ~DeCava1cante-Zlcare111

conversatlon is 111ustrat1ve of the mtelllgence obtained by the FBI in
the survelllance program on the internal pOllthS of La Cosa Nostra _

‘ DeCavalcante The commission was formed by
people--all bosses--who have given the -

' commission the right to supersede any boss.
Joe [Bonammo] knows that! He'made the rules!

[H]e tried to move in California. ‘I'he

commission chased him out of California. ' ..
They were trying to take over DeSunone s [Los

Angeles] outfit.

DeCavalcante explained to Zlcarelll the conrmlssmn s power over

Bonanno by c1t1ng precedent 397+

" The commission went in there and took the
family over. When [Joseph] Profaci died [June
5, 19621, Joe Magliocco [Profaci's underboss]
took over as boss. They threw him right out!

—%ho—the hell are you to take over a borgata?"
....And Signor Bonnanno knows this. When we

 had trouble in our outfit, they came right in,
""You people belong to the commission until this
is straightened out.' They done the same thmg
in Pittsburgh, they made the boss John.. .uh..

Zlcarelh LaRocca

- DeCavalcante: LaRocca...step down. =
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Zicarelli: He's no more boss?
DeCavalcante: [I]t's all stralghtened out now. But
Joe Bonanno was in on that deal. Theymade :

LaRocca take orders from the. commission until.
" everything was stralghtened out.

In 1963,°%8

the membershlp of the Comm.ssmn mcluded Gerardo

Catena (the underboss who took over for V:Lto Genovese when he went to
" prlson) , Thomas Lucchese Carlo Gambino and. Joseph Bonanno of New York‘ o
“'Clty, as well as Sam Glancana of Chlcago Joseph Zerilli of Detr01t
- Stefano Magadlnno of Buffalo and Angelo Bruno of Phlladelphla The

\ meubers of the conmlssmn were called reppresentantJ. or bosses The e

bosses settled dlsputes between members in an __gu_l_r_r_m___ or 31t down
Angelo Bruno rev1ewed the practice for Sam DeCavalcante 1n Febmary 11,
1962:°%% | ‘

Bruno Sam, look Sam, Lets say this thlng fa

- disputed gamblmg debt] goes to ar __gu_m_gn__do
Wthh I don t want 1t to go %

‘DeCavalcante I don't elther

Bruno: I don t want it to go you understand If it
: goes to ar do, I have to represent [the :
alleged dEEtori L?»3’r'iether I want to or not.
Now if we go to their argtu_ngndo you
- understand, and your representandos
‘ [DeCavalcante was not a boss 1n 1963] is there

and I'm there and lets say a few other
representandos are there

2, Famllles

‘Ind1v1dual groups were called fam111es of a borgata or bmgad A

boss of a fam:Lly was also called a capo. Under hJ.m was an underboss or
" sottocam the second in conmand A lateral position; usually an elder

statesman or adVJ.sor avallable for consultatlon to any menber, was a ‘

i cons:.gllerl or consullerl or a counselor ‘The termlnology was

e illustrated by a conver atlon that was overheard on August 31 1964
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between DeCavalcante and Joseph Sferra, a caporegima in the DeCavalcante
‘family and a business agent of L.ooal‘ 394, Laborers International Union,
Elizabeth, N.J.: L |

DeCavalcante: 1It's about Joe Bonanno's borgata
- The Commission don t l:Lke ‘the way he comportmg
 himself.

Sferra: The way he condu(.tmg hlmself you mean?
DeCavalcante Well, he made his son consigliere --
- and it's been reported the son, that he don't
» show up [when the commission asked to see him. ]
3 ‘Reg‘ime ‘ | |
Each famlly was d1v1ded 1nto subgroups or reg ime which were headed

by capodec:.ne or caporegune or captan.ns On June 4 1965 600

. ‘ E DeCavalcante told Louis Larasso, a caporegima, that he was removmg
| . Joseph Sferra “rom everything." ‘

Larasso: Are you taklng h1m off ca@reg ) too" :
DeCavalcante: Yeah ‘

‘Capodecma llterally means head of 10 Apparently, in the begmm.ng
that was the mtended number for each subgroup
b Soldlers B ‘
_ Ind1v1dual members of each subgroup were . known as soldat1 or
- ‘ SOldlerS or buttonmen Sam DeCavalcante Anthony B01ardo and Angelo}

DeCarlo enllghtened the FBI even more in another conversatlon sometlme
’ " in the early 1960s: 601

B01ardo My father said you must be made [1nducted
S 1nto La Cosa Nostra] 25 ‘years ago. -

B | SR DeCavalcante No. Twenty years Abcut the same
R S tlmeasyou S i

| DeCarlo Around 1945,

B01ardo “You were made w1th the "Blade" [Charles
: Tou:rme] weren't you" y ‘ :

fDeCavalcante .[1) was' made before the Blade
‘ Two or three years before the Blade ..Jerry
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’ }

- metropolltan area.

[Catena] .was made six months before me.
.When" they made me they made me in Italian.
They all spoke Italian.

5, nbershlp |
The membershlp of La Cosa Nostra in 1963 was estlmated to be :

between 4,000 and 5, OOO w1th 50 per cent of 1t based J.n the New York

602 603

In all _ there were thought to be 24 fam:Llles

In New York C:Lty, there were flve famllles Genovese (600 members) ;o

| ‘Lucchese (150 menbers), Gamblno (1 000 members) Bonanno (400 members), |
and Profac:L (200 n‘enbers) In Phlladelphla one famlly Bruno (200

members) . In Chlcago ‘one fam:Lly Glancana (300 men‘bers) In;.Buffalo,‘
one fairﬁ,ly. ‘Magaddlno (300 memb,ers) . In Detr01t one famlly Zer:.lh.

(250 members). In Newark, N.J., one family: _DeCavalcante (40 menbers)

In Milwaukee one family- Frank ’Bal:‘i.‘strieri"‘(SO members). In San J':ose,f“‘

one fam:lly Joseph Cerrlto (30 members) In Kansas City, one family:

B '\Nlcholas C1vella (75 menbers) In Denver, one family Jones Colletti -
‘(40 members) ~In San..Franc1sco, one fanl;l.ly, James Lanza (123 menbers).
| In P1ttsburgh, onefamlly “Sebastian John LaRocca (50 members)‘. In 1os

‘Angeles one famlly Frank DeSimone (75 members) | In New Orleans one

famlly Carlos Marcello: (50 menbers) In New England one famlly
Raymond Patrlarca (150 members) In Cleveland one famlly John
Scal:Lsh (150 members) vIn St. Lou:Ls ~one famlly Anthony Glordano (35

members) In Scranton Pa 4 one famlly Russell Bufallno (50 menbers)l”

- In Tampa, one famll}’ Santo Trafflcante (75 members) m;Dallas,? oné ’
‘ famlly Joseph Clvello (25 meubers) | 9 SO0

6. Status“

_ The various families were not equal in wealth, power, or status S

Some were small and moreﬁor less ineffective. Others were 1arge1‘y
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‘Road mob was merged into La Cosa Nostra

satellites of more important families. The Milwaukee family was, for

 example, dominated by the Chicago family. On the other hand, some

‘fam:LlJ.es had a measure of independence from the commission, as Joseph

Colunbo was to explain to famlly members on December 4, 1968, agam as

the FBIL vllstened. New Orleans was, he said; the t:Lrst Cosa Nostra

v‘fam‘ily mthe Um'.ted States,‘ it was set,up by members from Sic1ly As

such it had spec:.al pr1v11eges It did not have to submit to the

"“connu.ssn.on on varlous matters mcludmg membershlp approval

In 1963, it was an undezuable fact that the natlonal structure
forged by Luciano in 1931 had meant, throughout most of the country and i
even for the less important groups leadershlp stab:.llty, and because of
that stability, the amassmg of wealth and power New York, w1th its |
five farm.lles and violent struggle for control was the exceptlon not.

the rule. In Cleveland leadershlp had passed eas:Lly from Frank

604 605

Mllano, who retlred to Mex:.co to John Scallsh, as the Mayfleld

606 But the best example of

‘power consolldatlon w1th a un.nmn.m of bloodlettmg was set by the

607

Zerllll famlly J.n Detroit. Joseph Zerilli and W:Llllam Tocceo, his

brother-l.n—law both of whose famllles Were from the Terrasn.m. Provmce

- of SlClly, formed an alllance with Joseph Profac:L followmg World War I |
. It was cemented by marrlages between Profac1 s daughters and Zerilll s

~ son, Anthony and Tocco™s SO v atsonamed-Anthony. Zeri il " f

known as the East Slde Gang, was mvolved ina var:Lety of legal and

‘lllegal actlvrtles J.ncludmg bootleggmg A Jew:Lsh group, the Pm:ple

: Gang operated in the northwestern part of the c:u:y, at f:Lrst preymg on
o Jemsh shopkeepers (hence they were tamted or "purple“) but :

subsequently turm,ng to labor racketeermg and then to rum runm.ng



‘the end of 1930, the Purple Gang had been run out of town, and since
Zerilli was able to consolldate hlS power over the varlous Slc111an and ‘
| Itallan fact:Lons a state of relatlve peace was achleved The effect of
the peace brought on by Zerlll:L s control was demonstratedf’08
statlstlcally in 1963 to the McClellan conmlttee from 1917 to 1930,
there were 135 gangland slaylngs in Detr01t th_le from 1931 to 1962
there were only 38 As Prohibit on ended the Zerllll famlly moved 1nto‘
ganbllng, pr:Lmarlly the nurbers racket ‘and in 1931 Zer1111 took hlS ‘

place on the natlonal Corrm1$smn.

7v._ The Kennedy Admlnlstratlon

Durlng the years of the Kennedy Ad[m.n:\.stratlon, orgam.zed cr1me ;
flgures did v01ce many. complamts some. qu1te threatenlng, agalnst law
enforcement officers, FBI agents in partlcular 609 0ccas:.onally,
Edgar Hoover hlmself was the target of a mobster s wrath The real
anger, however——the most’ Vltuperatlve language to be plcked up on the
- bugs--was reserved for the Kennedys in partlcular Attorney General
~ Robert F. Kennedy Men who had been largely secure in their positions

‘ of power and wealth were flndlng themselves :anestlgated mdlcted and - . |

L conv1cted as. they never had before For almost 30 years—-smce the

| racket-bustlng days of Thomas Dewey——they had been v1rtually mm.me to |
the processes of law. |

a. The Pre31dent

On February 9 1962 Angelo Bruno and W1lllam Welsburg, a Bruno
‘ ‘assoclate dlscussed the Kennedys in a lengthy conversatlon that |
reflected frustratlon and bltterness but also cautlon on the part of
| the Mafla leadershlp 610‘ “ | »
Welsburg ‘See what Kennedy done. Wlt:h Kennedy, a
, guy: should take a knlfe llke one of
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them other guys, and stab and flll the f r,
where he is now. Soanody should kill the

f r, I mean it. 7This'is true. Honest to
God. Tt's about time to go. But T tell you
something. I hope I get a week's notice. I'll
kill. Right in the White House. Somebody's
got to. get r1d of this £  r.- ‘

611
Bruno, however, counseled caution: " -

Bruno: Look Willie, do you see thére was a klng,
do you understand And he found out that:
everybody was saying that he was a bad king.
This is an old Italian story. So, there was an-
old wise woman about. 140 years old. So, he’ 5
figured. 'Let me go talk to the old wise woman.
She knows everythmg So he went to the old-
wise woman. So he says to her. I came here

"~ because I want your opinion. He says, do you
think I'm a bad king. She says, no, I think
you are a good king. He says, well how come
everybody says I'm.a bad king? She says
because they are stupid. . They don't know. He :
says well how come, why do you say - I'm a EOOd
king. Well she bdld I knew your great
grandfather. He was a bad king. I knew your
grandfather.  He was worse, I knew your " -
father. He was worse than them. You, you are
worse than all of then, but your son, if you
die, your son is going to be worse than you, -
So it's better to be with you. (All laugh) So
Brownell [former Attorney General] was bad. He
was no f ‘g good. He was thlS and that ‘

Weisburg: Do you know whaL this man is going to do'?
He aln 't gomg to leave nobody alone.

: Bruno: I know he ain't. But you see, everybody in
‘ there was bad. The other guy was good because
: ‘ the other guy was worse. Do you understand?
1 ; Brownell came. He was no good He was worse
‘ , ‘ ~than the guy before. '

5 - Welsburg ‘Not 1ike this one.

.Bruno{ Not 11ke this one. This one is worse
Right? If something happens to this guy.
(Laughb )

" Weisburg: - Let me tell you sorr‘niething. The FBI
‘always hated the IRS. Always. .The IRS never
- checked with the Treasury men. They went R
. separate ways. They wouldn't give each other
information. They wanted credit themselves.
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He made it with local authorities. He made it
rmg—around-thc-rosy, pal
- Bruno: Oh yeah. This guy is an accountant see

So now, he had to do someth:mg worse. So what?
He started to think, what-can I do more than

- the other guy. The other guy made an
anti- racketeermg law, gambling laws, he did
‘this and he did. that, What can I do, he says,
I know what I can do. Anybody that has a o
record that is police property, when he gets
pinched, no bail. ' [Bruno then compares the

. Italian process of not allowing bail and’

‘ :.ncarceratmg :Lnd1v1duals until proven
imnocent. ] :

Welsburg It's Stlll Amerlca though _

‘ »Bruno':" So it's Stlll Amerlca They are trylng to
pass a Federal law that you can't take the .
fifth (amendment) When they grant you
umunlty you can't take the fifth. -« . =

Welsburg They are not going’ to pass that law.

‘ ."Bruno ; But they ml.ght ; ‘
Slowly, however, the attitude of caut:Lon changed On May 2 1962
Michael Clemente a camregnna in the Genovese famlly, was heard to
> say:612r | |
Bob Kennedy won't stop ‘today untll he puts us
~all in jail all over the country. Until ‘the

Commnission meets and puts its' foot down thlngs
w111 be at a standstlll. S

As ev1dence of the bulldmg pressure there was an unheard—of
'development—-an outbreak of hOStlllty between the Maf:x.a and the FBI
| b. The Lonbardozz:. Funeral ' o |

:Lonbardozm a caggreg in the famlly of Carlo Gamblno was burled

’from Ixrmaculate Heart of Mary Church ln Brooklyn 613 Law enforcement
»offlcers covered the ‘wake and requlem mass for mtelllgence purposes
As the funeral cortege entered the church several young men who were |

. among the mourners, assaulted Spec1al Agent John P Foley, who had a
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- camera.’ Foley was badly beaten and hlS service revolver was stolen 61}4‘ .

The assault caused deep conc_ern at the FBI On Aprll 30 1963

| ‘Assoc:Late D:Lrector Courtney Evans wrote to. Assoc1ate Director Alan

‘ Beln‘ont that in hlS oplnlon general penm.ssmn to retallate against
law enforcement offlcers had not yet been glven by the organlzed crime
leadershlp He noted however that Sam Glancana was watch:mg the

: reactlon to the 1nc1dent and would be gulded accordlngly "615 As

for FBI agents at the street level there was no- J.ndlcatlon 1n the flles Y

‘ that they were seekmg permlssz.on to avenge the assault on Foley

d:l.rectly, but they d1d begln a ser:.es of mterv:.ads de51gned

apparently, to J.ntlmldate members of t:he Ganbino organlzatlon and on
one. occasion a member of the Lombardozz:. group was . beaten up and dumped
l : in an ash can, In May 1963, two of Ganblno s men Mlchael Scandifia, a 3
) -member ‘and Peter Ferrara a caporegma, were overheard by a bug that
‘had been installed under order from the New Y\'ork‘ County Court, FBI-
a‘gents had interviewed Ferrara | and J.ntlmated that they woiuld interview
his daughter a Cathollc nun, unless approprlate amends were made for

the Foley assault 616 |

- Scandlfla They don t. want to give you no...in
other words they are telling you they dn't
1 want to embarrass you. In other words, they:
won't go to the convent.  Well, I would say,
-right now they are giving you the zing. You
want us to go to the convent? You want us to

embarrass you" Well then see that the rlght
“thing 1s done. ‘

| Ferrara Yeah

Of far more 31gnlflcance however was the reactlon of varlous :

famlly bosses to acts of phys1cal retallatlon that appa.rently were taken e

by the FBI agents On May 20, 1963 Angelo Bruno dlscussed the 1.nc1dent v

w1th several men at hlS Penn Jersey vendlng company in Phlladelphla He . i




quoted one FBL agent as having asked an associate of Carmine
LombardOZZi 617 ‘ |

Did you change the laws in your family, that
you could hit FBI men, punch and kick them?
Well, this is the test and if you change the

. laws and now you are going to hit FBI men,
every time we pick up one of your people we are
going to break their head for them.

| Bruno then related that they had in fact picked up one man: ,618

They almost killed him, the FBI. They don't do.
that you know. But they picked up one of his
fellows and they -crippled him. They said,
""This is an example. Now the next time anybody
laysahandonanFBIman thatsjusta
warning There is nothing else we. got to tell
you.

Similarly, on June 6, 1963 Stefano Magaddino discussed the incident

with several of his men at his: funeral home in Niagara Falls 619 .

Here, we...are situated with this , ‘
Administration .. We got from the President
down—-againstus. ... But we got to resist,
Today. You see this table? - (Magaddino can be
heard hitting the table.) You have to do
something material. Give someone the shaft

'I'hey know everybody's name ‘They know who
“is boss. They know who the commission consists
of R | b ‘ ‘

. They beat up Carmine plenty. When his
father died....When they beat up that FBI.

So after the beating .[the FBI] said to him,

"We are even now. If you’o hers continue to do

" the same thing again, we will change our ‘

meu,nous withyou pe plet

Ce Joseph Valachi

On June 22, 1962 Joseph Valachi then a prisoner in the Federal

| Penitentiary in Atlanta, seized a two-foot length of iron pipe rushed a

fellow inmate John Saupp, and beat him to death. 620" Valachi it turned' :

- out, believed that the man he had killed was Josehp DiPalermo who had
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_on the structure of organized crime in Amerlca

‘example Angelo DeCarlo had a dlscussmn w1th a marl named Barney

brethren

\ been, Valachl thought 01dered by Vito Genovese then in prlson w1th
; ValachJ. to kill him.

621‘ The ‘murder prec1p1tated ValachJ. s break w:.th |

| La Coas Nostra and the chain of events that led to h1s publ:.c testlmony |

622 Valachl s dec:.s:.on

to cooperate was not made publlc at the time, yet it was not long before

”‘menbers of the Mafia were dlscussmg it, On Aprll 23, 1963 for

623

~Barney:. [Tlhe thing they talk about today ‘
‘Somebody must talk because they could never
know these things. They know who's boss, .
~ underboss, the commission, the caporegimas
- [sic] They talk like that--amlco nos [friend
of ours] .... And you can't do nothmg about
it. :

DeCarlo And oh the other guy. In New York
What's his name. That was in the car w1th
V1to | ‘

Barney Joe Cago (Valachl s nlckname)

DeCarlo I hear he's talklng 11ke a bastard .
- He rmst have known somethlng about thls thlng”

Barney He knows about. thlngs from 35 years ago

' Once Valachi had begun to testlfy, the anger mounted On Septenber 17
T ‘1963 Magaddlno conmented "'We passed Laws that thls guy has got to
die.

"624 On October 24, 1963 however, an unldentlfled male, 1n a

) conversatlon with the wife of a Bruno assoc1ate sumned 1t all up for his

625

me nearlng isall pOLlElca.L 1n3t1gatea by
Robert Kennedy They re murdermg the Itallan
The reactlons of orgam.zed crime flgures were not 11m1ted to.

express:.ons of anger agalnst Valach1 or Robert Kennedy Members ].n New ,

: York developed a strategy to discredit Valachl s testmnny by suggestmg e

" he was 1nsane C1t1_ng a hlstory of mental lllness in hlS famlly
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Efforts were also made to plant other unfavorable stories with

626 including a Pulitzer Prize-winning

compromised members of the press,
reporter, who had been set up with a prostitute. At the conclusion of
the hearings, FBI Director Hoover got right to the point in a phone call

to Senator McClellan. The hearings had, Hoover said, ''shook...[the mob]

62
up. 7

d. Carlos Marcello

(1) Rise to Power

Carlos Marcello, the Cosa Nostra boss in New Orleans, was familiar
with congressional investigations. He had been a witness before the
Kefauver committee in 1951, as well as before the McClellan committee in
1959, when its investigation of labor racketeering was directed by Chief

Counsel Robert F. Kennedy.628

Marcello beat a contempt charge that grew
out of his Kefauver appearance; his claim of possible self-incrimination
was not challenged in court by the McClellan committee. Undoubtedly,
Marcello had learned to live with the adverse publicity generated by
such investigations. The advent of the Kemnedy Adm:inistratioq in 1961,
however, threatened much more. |

Marcello was erroneously identified by the Kefauver comnittee as

the head of organized crime in New Orleans.629

630

In fact, the leader in

New Orleans in 1951 was Sam Carolla, who had, in 1922, succeeded

Charles Montranga, the boss who survived the 1891 lynching that followed

;:he Mafia murder of Police Chief David C. Hemnessey. Carolla, an
eight-year-old Sicilian immigrant in 1904, at 22 was one of Montranga's
key lieutenants in the operation of the French Market in New Orleans.
With the coming of Prohibition in 1919, Carolla turned to rum running,

but in 1923, the year following his elevation to boss, he was convicted

129



' in federal court of alcohol theft and sentermed to two years in prison.
Returning to New Orleans in 1925 he made an effort over the next five
| years to consolidate his power, personally shotgunning, in 1930, his

chief rival for control . of the illicit 1iquor traffic William

| Bailey 631

provide the defendants With a rigged alibi Carolla and Frank Tedaro,

In 1931 despite efforts of New Orleans police office'rs to

one of his _c_a‘p_gr_'_egglg were tried and convicted for wounding a federal

632 Sentenced to two years, Carolla

agent Cecil Moore, 1n a gun fight.”
. entered prlson in 1932 and was released in 1934 Meamntule Frank
Costello and Senator Huey P. Long had arranged for Costello to move his
slot machines to Louisiana after Mayor-elect F:Lorello La Guardia had

vowed to have them removed from New York City : Carolla not only gave
“his blessing to the enterprise but he also lent to it the serv1ces of a k
young soldJ.er who hunself had Just been released from Angola State

Prison after serving four years for. "masternundlng" a grocery store |
robbery by two teena{gers.63‘4l ‘
" climb to the top. ‘ ‘
. 1947 was a s1gm.f1cant year, for both Carolla and Marcello It was_

| "the year Carolla, along with Costello and Meyer Lansky, expanded the o

At 22, Carlos Marcello was begimning his

' gamblmg operation to mclude a race wire service and several plush .

635

: casinos, as well as slot machines : Marcello represented the New

Orleans_fanu.ly_m_theﬁEMed enterprise It was also the vear the

- goverrment succeeded m deportmg Carolla to Sic:l.ly, despite efforts by

. a Loulsiana Congressman, James Morrison, to have private immgration

636

- bills passed to grant Carolla citizenship Syndicated colmm.st Drew

Pearson exposed the scheme, and the blllS were defeated Although

" Carolla returned 1llegally to the United States on two occasrons (he

. dJ.ed in New Orleans in 1972) hlS power passed to Marcello v
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(2) Wealth | |
By 1963 Carlos Marcello was, one of the wealthlest men in
‘ I..ouls:Lana, as well as the head of the New Orleans organlzed cr:me

famlly 637

| Hls ventures accordlng to the Metropolltan Crlme

| Coum:Lssmn, were grossmg many mllllons annually $500 m:Llllon from ;
| 1llegal gamblmg, $100 mJ.lllon from 1llegal act1v1t1es in over 1, 500 a
syndlcate-comected bars, $8 rm.lllon from profess1onal burglarles and
N'hold-ups, $6, mllllon from prostltutlon, and $400 m:Llllon from dJ.verse ‘
| "legltmlate mvestment in the flelds of transportatlon, flnamce i
63‘8

'jhousmg and serv:Lce Marcello claJ.med he only earned a salary of

‘about $1, 600 a month" as a. tomato salesman, although he d;Ld ackrmledge “

‘maklng certam "land investments.' He explamed the reports of hlS

| great wealth to cr1me reporter M:Lchael Dorman‘639 v

: “People take one little p:Lece of true
¢ information, twist it around, add a lot of

~+ bullshit and come up with charges that don' t

everi resemble the truth - i

“"In 1967 however Llfe estlmated hlS personal worth at $40 mJ.lllon
i Beyond hlS mterest in numerous :Lllegal endeavors he owned motels a.
‘f,Juke box and vendlng machlne company, a s:.ghtseemg bus lme and a |
: 6, 500 acre $22 mJ.ll:Lon estate Churchlll Farms Just out51de New |
’Orleans in Jefferson Parlsh Much of what Marcello owned however he -

“ concealed by puttlng the Property in the names of close relatlves Hls,

»Clt\

I son Joseph for example owned The Town and Country Motel i hls fss
;brother Peter a camreg in hlS La Cosa Nostra famlly, held a strlp- ‘
tease Jomt the Sho—Bar located on. Bourbon Street in the French san
Quarter 641
trouble w1th the authorltles as he d1d by sendmg h1s brother Joseph

) : the fanuly underboss to the Apalachln meetmg 1n 1957 642

It was typlcal of Marcello to act through others to av01d~"“f- S



‘;“entered .but.. [was] being held in strictest confidence

| dumped there Without luggage and With little cash

i when his presence in Guatemala caused a political scandal PreSident

: Marcello, a portly five-foot-two fainted three times

 action to deport.. Marcello. . [whose]‘ final order.. .[had] been

"647 Marcello

| “dld not 1earn of the order until April 4 1961 when he came in to the :

INS office in New Orleans for his regular quarterly appointment as an
‘alien 648 He was arrested handcuffed and SLrens blaring, taken to the,

| MOisant International Airport where a United States Border Patrol

649

aircraft was waiting with its engines warmed up. Marcello later

said "you would have thought it was the President coming in instead of
w650

me gomg out. Y Marcello was floWn 1 200 miles to Guatemala City and

651 He quickly

‘ ,‘ regained his composure hwever, and soon was mstalled in a plush suite co

at the Bilt:nore Hotel, as his brothers flew in cash and clothes 652 : k‘Butfj

8 “Miguel Ydigoras Fuentes ordered him expelled 653 Along with a lawyer
who had come to help him Michael Marmm of Shreveport La., Marcello

was mceremonimzsly flown to an out-of-the-way Village in the Jungle of

El Salvador where they were left stranded SalVadorian soldiers jailed S
and interrogated Marcello and Maroun for five days then put them on a e

_» bus and took them 20 miles into the mountains where they were again

left to fend for themselves 654 - Eight hours and 17 miles later they

‘ reached a village, they were hardly prepared for the mmmtam hike as

suits and alligator shoes and

655 In the

: Village, they hired michachos to lead them to an airport but became

fearful that their guides had robbery and uurder in mind so they took

the first opportunity to flee into the Jungle 656 Dunng the downhill

‘ flight Marcello fell and broke two ribs Eventually, they found their -
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‘way to a small coastal town. ! Frotnthere; according to'Marcello they
flew by comnercial airl:l.ne to 'Miami, where Marcello illegally re-entered
‘the United States | A conversation subsequently picked up on a w1retap B
indicated that he was in fact flown back in a Dominican Republic Air |
Force plane On June 3, 1961 Marcello s 1awyers acknowledged that he
' had returned to the United States was m hid:mg but he could be
produced in court if necessary. 657 o
. Om April 5 1961, Attorney General Kennedy, publicly acknowledged -
| | that Marcello had been sunmarily flown out of the country and took |
B responsibility for the deportation contendmg it 'was in Strlct |
'”accordance with the law 658 Kennedy ‘was quoted 'as saying he was "very
| happy Carlos Marcello .. [was] no longer w1th us," bue added that if he
had been on. the scene and personally handlmg the matter he 'would have 2
| used dlfferent steps "659 In fact whlle he knew that the deportation
was gomg to take place, Kennedy was apparently not aware beforehand of‘ ‘
the marmeyr of the deportation, smce it had been the responsibility of
General Swmg 0 Marcello s ouster to Guatemala was upheld in

- subsequent legal proceedmgs Nevertheless Marcello was deeply

e | offended He subsequently appeared in executi.ve session before the

‘I-lcmse Senate Coum1ttee on Assassmations on January 11, 1978 661

Generally, hi.s answers were in monosyllables but when the sub_]ect of
‘ the atmos’ here in the hear chanber became ‘

tense An emotionless man _showed fire in his eyes and resentment in the
| tone of h:Ls voice ‘He am.matedly told the Comm.ttee ”[T]wo marshals )
‘ put thehandcuffs onmeandthey toldme that Iwas beingkldnappedand
f bei.ng brought to Guatemala and in, thirty minutes.. I was in the o
| plane\ [T]hey dunped me off 1n Guatemala, and 1 asked them let me use .

1



‘the phone to call my wife let me get my clothes somethlng they would |
" hear about.. .They just snatched me, and that is it actually kidnapped ke

me!"662 Where Marcello fixed the responsibility for his deportation was

madeexplicit "[Kennedy] said he would see that 1 be deported Just |
as soon as he got in office Well he got. in office January 20 and

663 Marcello made an effort to deny.

“Apr:Ll the 4th he deported me .
: however, that he held a grudge toward Kennedy "[H]e Just done what he

thought was right I guess," he said notmg that he st:.ll thought lt

Ll : ,was "unfair "664

i ‘States in connection with the false Guatemalan birth certlficate

(4) Trial | LR ‘ L
Marcello s troubles with the Kennedy Adm:.nistration were only Just ;
| beginnmg w1th hlS forced march through Central America On Aprll 10
| 1961 six days after the deportation, the Internal Revenue Serv1ce filed -
g $835 396 tax llen against him and hls wife. 665 On June 8, 1961, six

"‘days after his attorneys announced he had returned a federal grand Jury B

o in New Orleans indicted h1m for illegal entry 666] Four months later,
o Attorney General Kennedy himself announced that the Federal grand Jury
in New Orleans had mdicted h1m for conspiracy to defraud the United i
66’7' |
‘Marcello meamvhlle, had sued to have a 1938 drug conv1ction set as1de,

- ‘«*he had been accused at the time of bemg a meuber of "the biggest

o the United States all the more tenuous smce ‘he needed to have hlS
convmction set a31de to block another deportation.6‘7oe |
4 On Noveuber 4 1963 Marcello went on tr1a1 m New Orleans on

| ;criminal charges in connection w1th the false Guatemalan b:.rth
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671

certificate; he was acquitted on November 22, 1963. News of

President Kennedy's assassination reached the courtroom only shortly
before the verdict was returned. On Octcber 6, 1964, Marcello was

indicted for jury bribing in comnection with the November 1963

verdict.672

The indictment also charged obstruction of justice, in that
Marcello had plotted the murder of the principal witness against him,
Carl Noll. Subsequently, Marcello was acquitted of the bribery charge,
and the obstruction of justice charge was dropped when Noll refused to
testify against him.673

e. Sam Giancana

On October 10, 1963, Sam Giancana, the family boss in Chicago, was
overheard by the FBI in conversation with Charles English, an associate,

674 Valachi could not, they

at the Armory Lounge in Forest Park, Ill.
thought, hurt the Chicago organization, but he was doing great harm to
the New York members. Like Marcello, however, Giancana was by no means
free of pressure from the Kennedy Administration. In fact, Giancana was
one of the principal targets of the organized crime drive because of his
position in Chicago, a position that had been won over a long period by
an aggressive nature and raw violence.

(1) Background

It was 1905 when Antonio Giancana, 24, arrived at Polk Street

—-Statiom; €hicago,—witheut-his 19-year-old wife, Lena, who was not to

6.675 He had been a

come to the United States until the end of 190
street peddler in the Sicilian town of Castelvetrano; he would be a
street peddler in Chicago. In Sicily, there had been poverty, but at
least the air was clean, and the sun bright and warm. Chicago was dirty

with soot and smoke, the sky was gray, and it was often cold, damp, and
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windy. The area of tenements into which the new urmlgrants crowded was .
| ultimately to be, called thtle Italy or L1tt1e Slcn.ly, though sometlmes ;
LJ.ttle Hell 'I'he Valley, or The Patch 676 Antonlo and Lena at flrSt

- lived in a walk—up flat at 223 South Aberdeen, an area west of Chlcago s

I.oop that in 1906 was heavrly Ir:.sh 677

At that tnne few Itallans
'llved west of Halsted Street, they were concentrated between Taylor to
the south and Mather to the north On. May 24, 1908 Lena gave blrth to

‘her flrst son,. who was: named Salvatore and shortly thereafter, the

‘ famlly moved to 1127 West Van Buren Street also an Irlsh area at the

tJ.me but one whlch was to become an Itallan nelghborhood as it ,

expanded northward‘from Taylor, the main street of The Patch.6 78 ‘By

1925, ‘ "Salv-atore‘ ‘then knovbn as '""Sam'' or "Mooney",f' lived at' 1422 West
Taylor Street and was a member of a strc_et gang that called themselves

‘ "',42' 079 lee Valach1 in New York G1ancana in Ch:Lcago took pride‘f

in his ablllty as a "whee]man HlS flrst arrest and conv:.ctlon came in

Septenber of that year--for auto theft 680;[ Before he was 20, he had

"been arreste.d and rearrested in three murder mvestlgatlons one of
which was for the klllmg of an. eyew1tness m a. pendmg robbery case |
aga:.nst G].ancana another for the k1111ng of Octavius Granady, a black

| ‘who sought electlon as a comitteeman in LL_ttle Italy s 20th Ward.6§.1ﬁ

By 196‘3 Giancana had been arrested 60 tJmes and“he had serVed tlme,

682 |

i ,of a clothmg store

- not. mﬂv fm- auto theft, but for burglary and moonshmmg

In November 1928 Glancana was arrested for an attempted burglary

683‘ Caught red-handed he pled gullty and was

sentenced to. one to f1ve years in the state penltentlary at. Jollet He‘

2. 684

lwas ‘not released unt:Ll Chrlstmas Eve 193 It was then that he came

: to the attention of a slow-talkmg Neapolltan named Fellce DeLuc1a who - :
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'had acqu1red the name Paul "The Walter" R;Lcca from his work at the Bella :
: Napoll Cafe 850 South Halsted t_he base of operatlons of Joseph
Esposn.to‘ one of Chicago's most notorlous and powerful beer rumners. 685

- Delucia had also worked for the Genna brothers (Sam, Angelo Peter,
Anthony and James “all vicious klllers and bootleggers who were allled |
w1th Al Capone) andfmally for Capone-hlmself . It was to DeLucia that

“the mantle of leadership fell when Capone went to prison on May 4, 1932,

T "conflrmed in an Aprll meetmg w1th Charles Luc1ano in the Congress Hotel" .

T 1.n Chlcago When Glancana became DeLuc1a s chauffeur, it was the L
: beglrmmg of hJ.s rlse to the top - | |
‘Giancana's career was momentarlly mterrupted when, in ‘May 1939, | he
recelved a four-year term'in the Federal prn son at Leavenworth Kansas
| for moonshinirlg 686 He had been caught in a barn in Elgm, lllm01s,
‘~w1th 8 800 gallons of mash L, OOO gallons of alcohol and 1, OOO gallons
':of noncolored SplrltS Glancana had been in Leavenworth for only two. |
: months when he was transferred to the Federal fac111ty at Terre Haute,
Ind].ana There he was tested psychologlcally, scormg 74 verbal and 93
s on—verbal It was also there he went to school--not to obtaln "book
learnlng‘", but to be J_ntroduced to the world of pollcy H1s teacher was ‘
Edward Jones, a black racketeer who had run polJ.cy in Chlcago but who

“: had ‘been sentenced to 22 months for income ‘tax evasion. ‘For Glancana,

‘1t was a whole new v1sta—-not nlckel and d].me but mvolvmg a cash |

flow ofthousands of dollars When he was released from prlson on ‘
vDecember 12 1942 he ‘had lea:med hlS lessons well 687 k |

~With a cr].m:l.nal record and a fam:Lly (he had: marr:.ed 1n 1933 and by
g 1 1942 had two chlldren ’Antomette and Bonlta Luc1lle) , Glancana had

‘ lq.ttle to fear from _the;draft.6,‘88‘ Neyertheless, he reglstered at Board “ g



‘ antl—social trends

 extortion in. the famous motlon p:.cture J.ndustry case in 1943

“ k‘peace would be $2 mllllon

M. Schenck ‘the chalrrmn“of’ h

T s Jr—.

39, 2312 West Harrison Stree't ~and w‘asinterviewed The interviewer
~ wrote on G:x.ancana s A—F exemptlon form that ""he was a const1tut10na1

'psychopath w1th an madequate personallty manlfested by strong

'689, He returned to his old pursults but his .

mentor DeLuc:.a, was hunself 1n prLson in 1944 havmg been conv:.cted of -

690

(2) Motlon Plcture Extortlon Trlal

Prohlblt on had come to’ an end and the old Capone organlzatlon was 2

look:mg for new flelds of endeavor and S0, the Capone mob moved in on :‘:

S the Internatlonal Alllance of Theatrlcal Stage Eknployees Wlllle Bioff o

a small time panderer thlel' and extortlonlst had developed a

S relatlonshlp w1th George E Browne the bus:mess agent of Local 2 ot

691

IATSE Wlth the backmg of the Capone organuatlon Browne was

J.nstalled as pres1dent of the unlon ina corrupt electlon 1n 1934 'IWo .-
; years later the group made thelr darmg move agalnst t:he bllllon dollar :
movie mdustry Bloff told Nlcholas M Schenck, the Pres:.dent of I_oews :

: the mdustry s representatlve to the unlon that the prlce for labor

692 'I‘he Hollywood glants such companles as

| 'I‘wentleth Century Fox, RKO, Warner Brothers M(M and Loews thought it

693

over and dec1ded to pay 'I‘he extortlon scheme was uncovered

however, in connectlon with' the 1ncome tax evas:.on prosecutlon of Joseph

tieth Century Fox. 694

:Schenck testlf:.ed agalnst Bloff and Browne who in turn Jmpllcated the
;Chlcago Mafla f:.gures mcludmg DeLuc:.a, as well as Frank Nlttl Nlck o E
‘ w‘;Clrcella Louis Compagna and John Roselll o |

Durmg his extensxve cross exammatlon 1n the extortlon tr:.al

'whlch was held in New York Bloff testlfled that once when thmgs dld ,

o139



. not look good he talked about qulttmg the rackets 695 He was told‘ ‘he

” sa:Ld that anybody who reSLgned from the syndlcate re51gned from life as
“well "That's why I never res:.gned " he told the court and jury. 696
«:‘Wlllle Bioff's fears were, in fact fully JuStlfled On Novenber 4,
31955 Just as the parole terms of his former assoc:Lates ran out, he left
“his Phoenlx -Arizona home 8ot mto his car and stepped on the starter.
The car, rigged with dynam:Lte exploded; he was killed J.nstantly 697,
” Nevertheless even though violence was used to int:um.date other
v‘ ) w:.tnesses m the mot:Lon plcture prosecutlon, includ:.ng defendants who

B m:.ght have been thinkmg about cooperatmg w1th the government--on )

- February 2, 1943 Clrcella s girlfrlend Estelle Carey, was: tled to a

“: chalr m her apartment doused w1th gasolme and set af:.re698

~-the |
| defendants were found gullty of extortlon on Decaxber 31 1943 and were“
i sentenced to ten years at Leavenworth (all except Nlttl who had o
conmitted su1c1~.de) ' In splte of reconme.ndatwns agamst early release o
by both the prosecutor and Judge they were paroled on 'August~ 13, 1947.

699

‘hav1ng served the bare one-thJ.rd mlnmum of their sentences Murray

| ‘Hunphreys a Chlcago mob flgure mastermmded the release, as. he

- mdlcated in an’ overheard conversatlon on October 16 19645 : Attorney

General Tom Clark had been, he Sald ‘"100 Peroent for dolng favors,'r' but
‘ 3 after the parole scandal broke you couldn t get through for nothmg :
9 o : ‘Hun'phreys elaborated on‘ ‘the’ ].X.‘
o - The guy [Maury HugheS] who went to hm

[Attomey General Clark] was an ex-~law partﬁﬁr
[from Dallas], and then the scandal broke

"The Kefauver cormu.ttee 1n 1ts fmal report termed the grantmg of

o ‘parole to the motlon plcture mdustry extortionlsts 'a shockmg abuse of .

70

i fpower W and The Chlcago Trlbune when Clark Was nommated for the e

w0



role'" in the release of the. gangsters -

| ‘house’ at 1147 South Wenonah Avenue

| ,operatlons in Chlcago s Black Belt

: Supreme Court in 1952 c_alled him ' unflt " c1t1ng "hls consuierable

702

J.,(3) Policy Takcover |

When Giancana got out of prlson he turned to Edward Jones hlS

| wformer fellow 1nmate, asklng for a bankroll Wlth it--and the’ proceeds

of varlous 1ll:|.c1t enterprlses, lncludlng the counterfeltmg of gas ‘and

- food ratlonlng stamps—-Glancana moved out of The Patch to the Chlcago

. suburb of Oak Park where he bought a yellow—brlck red tlle—rooted

703 In May 1946 Glancana showed hls

: 704

k gratltude to Jones by englneerlng hlS abductlon on a Chlcago street

Five days: later Jones was lef t unharmed standlng on the corner of 62nd

and Loomls Streets adheswe tape covermg his eyes and cotton in hlS g

ears. There was talk of hlgh ransom, but it apparently d1d not mvolve

~.money. Glancana had made hlmself a partner in the black pollcy racket

and Jones retlred to his estate 1.n Mex1co Glancana proceeded in the

‘ ;followmg months to lead the syndicate' s takeover of the ma_]or pollcy

705' It was part of a general move. in

’\the 1940s by the old Capone gang to consolldate 1ts control of all ‘
: gamblmg m Ch:Lcago It was a perlod marked by bonbmgs kldnappmgs,

-and ambushes with hlgh casualtles for all of the warrmg factlons The

syndlcate itself lost more than a dozen people In the énd, the horse

rooms, race w1re serv1ce casmos and pollcy wheels came under the _

dom:matlon of the syndlcate Wthh had successfully transferred 1ts

: monopoly from bootleg alcohol to 1llega1 gamblmg As for Glancana, hls\
. rising status in the syndlcate was symbollzed by hls new JOb as Anthony ,:‘,.-i :
| : Accardo s chauffeur | [ |
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‘;ysl;Sicilian inmigrant parents. |

(4) Anthon Accardo

Antonino Leonardo Accardo was born in Chicago on. April 28 1906, of
706

| His father, Francesco was a

\ self-employed shoemaker at 560 !5 Harrison Street in the Patch On May
| | 31, 1923 when the l7-year-old Accardo was conv1cted of disorderly |
conduct h:Ls father s address was 11sted as 1353 Grand Averue, an |
. address on Chicago 8 near West Side, but not in 'I‘he Patch Lnke his

“ father 8 move ‘to a better neighborhood Accardo s rise to the top of the
Capone gang was the result of hard work In the early years Accardo

had the reputation of a gm'nnan “he was a suspect in the 1929 St

Valentine s Day Massacre, and in 1930 he was arrested though acqultted .
¥ on a g charge in connectlon w:Lth the mirder of Julius Rosenbeim, ‘
suspected mformant His lawyer was Roland W. L:Lbonati, a state o
| 1egislator who would go on to represent the interests of the Ch:Lcago N
. undervorld in the U. s. Congress 707 | alEe ool
By the 1940s, Accardo ‘had become the manager of a nunber of

‘ “fganblmg establisl'ments the most. notorious of which was the Owl Club in
_i"‘Calumet City, a Chlcago suburb that was v:.rtually owned by the
: ‘:syndicate 708 Followmg the' suicide of Frank Nlttl in 1943 and the
" ‘ ‘inprisonment of Felice DeLucia in 1944 Accardo took over the syndicate
" which prospered under his 1eadersh1p Accardo did'well “too. In 1950 3

at 915 Franklm Street River Forest :

709 Bmlt :.n 1930 for an est1mated

 Illinois, a suburb cf‘chicago

‘$500 000 the house had a stone exterior, six large bedrooms six o

L bathroans, two bowlmg alleys a billiard room’ a:nd an J.ndoor swmming

. ‘pool and garden, the mterior woodwork was hand carved the origmal

| kfixtures in three of the bathrooms were gold-plated and one bathtub was L

= 12



~cut out of a solid block of Mex1can onyx at a cost of $10 000, 710 Small |
; wonder that Accardo began to have trouble w1th the Internal Revenue
‘Serv1c.e. A series of audits cuhmnated on‘ Aprll 25, 1960, with an m-‘
dictment for tax evasion for the years 1956, 1957, and 19‘58 His

‘ conv1ctlon was reversed on’ appeal on January 5 1962 by a two-to—one

711

vote of the Court of Appeals for the' Seventh C1rcu1t Whlle FBI

electronlc survelllance J.ndz.cated the appeal was flxed 1t was not

. ,ver:.fled by subsequent mvestlgatlons 7?2 Wltnesses who testlfled :Ln

713

"Accardo s defense were,’ however conv1cted of per_]ury A retrlal was

ordered by Attorney General Kennedy, but on October 3, 1962 Accardo was7

acqu1tted of tax evasion. H'.LS tax troubles dld force Accardo to ret1re ‘

however and to pass ‘the leadersh1p to’ Sam Glancana AR

(5 Trouble in Ias Vegas

f1° )))\1lar 1u;_¢ '8 cl organlz,ed crlme flgures often reduce them to
= thelr most cocrmon characterlstlc-—vmlence, they are made to appear ‘
: anlmal llke and llttle more Nothmg could be further from the truth

’L1ke many of hILS fellow leaders in the ranks of the syndicate, Glancana
had about hlm, for all hlS viciousness, as W1111am Brashler observed :Ln .
The Don, ''a begullmg, llltmg charm "715
- to envelop those around h:m into a coven of underst:andmg, and speak o
w1th them as one who understood and cared be it about affalrs mundane

716 _artlcularly effectlve w1th women

S »,He had been more or less falthful before .the death of hlS w1fe

Angelme in Aprll 1954 717 but from then on he was ever on the make,
e ‘pursumg waltresses secretarles dancers hat check glrls w1ves of
:assoc1ates-—all she had to have was ‘a pretty face and nlce flgure {j‘ ut

1.t was dlfferent w:.th Phyllls McGulre the youngest and prettlest of the‘fﬁ

3143']‘.,;’ e o

He was, Brashler noted "able ‘



‘ McGuire S:Lsters one. of the most popular sn.ngmg trios of the late
1950's. ’I‘hey met in Las Vegas. 718 .
: The Chlcago syndlcate got. J.nterested m Las Veg,as in the late

719 It had been declared ‘an open c1ty, that 1s not the domaln of

‘ 19505
any one Mafla famlly, and by the end of 1960 both Glancana and Acoardo
had hldden mterests in- a number of casmos h].dden because crlm:mals

720 Glancana had an,

- were banned from casmo ownershlp by Nevada law
| J.nterest in the Desert Inn and the Stardust both nomlnally owned by.
Morrls Dalltz and it was at the Desert Inn somet:une in 1960 ‘that he
flrst met Phyllls McGu:Lre She was havmg a. good time at the gamlng
tables but had run up a debt ‘of over ‘$100 000. He said he would take

care of her markers, whlch he did by tellmg Dalltz "to eat it. "721

It
was the begmnmg of a close relatlonshlp ' In 1961 Phyllls leased the
Green Gables Ranch four miles outs1de of - Las Vegas m Paradlse Valley

. Glancana made 1t hlS Nevada headquarters exerc1smg control over hlS
casino mterests from there 722‘ ' | ‘ ‘

' As time went on, Giancana's troubles stemnlng from the pub11c1ty
created by h1s relatlonshlp w1.th McGulre got more serious. In 1963,
Frank Slnatra a close frlend of Glancana, owned 50 per cent of the e
Cal—Neva Lodge a resort and cas:Lno on the Nevada 51de of Lake Tahoe 723
Giancana had often bragged that through Smatra ‘he owned a share of
CaleNeva; and‘ S:Lnatra seemmg Paul D! Amato‘ ’a

-~ New Jersey gangster, to protect Glancana s mterest 24

-Sam and Phyllls “ |
were frequent guests at the place staymg 1n a cozy chalet that -
'ad_]omed the ma:Ln hotel but v1s1ts on two success:.ve weekends 1n July
‘stirred up enough pub11c1ty to attract the attentlon of the Nevada State
Gammg Conmlssmn I 5 Called to account for Glancana s share of

14 o



‘vfh‘lncome 1ncreased from $216.3 malllon in 1961 to $330° million by 1965

ownershlp, Smatra was deflant at f:.rst but by October he could see no
i alternatlve to d1vest1ng thself of hlS $3 mllllon mterest 1n Cal-Neva
: “las well as nine per cent of The Sands in Las Vegas Wthh was worth E
f$39o 000./% o | |
The Cal—Neva mc1dent was 1llustrat1ve of the larger mterests that “
uorganlzed cr1me flgures had at stake in Nevada partlcularly in Las
: Vegas Jet -air travel the v1tallty of the economy and a grow1ng
oreputatlon as the entertaument capltal of the world made Las Vegas 1n :

the 1960s a rlch source of 1ll:Lc:Lt prof:Lts Publlcly-reported gam:ng |

yBut both the FBI buggmg program and IRS phys:Lcal survelllance
‘,‘conducted :1n connectlon w1th Attorney General Kennedy's organlzed crlme
- drlve revealed that subst a1t1al sums were not belng reported to the
gamlng authorltles In March 1962 for example $200 000 was skmmed
o from the Desert Inn alone th.le in January 1963 a total of $280 000
‘\was skmmed from the Fremont Sands Flam:mgo and Horseshoe, the minimum
estlmated 1llegal annual take from 1960 to 1964 was $10 million. 728(‘The‘-

'v:_:“'sklm money was carrled out: of the country to the Internatlonal Banque of‘

21

,Credlt in Geneva, or. to the Bank of World Conmerce in Nassau, or it was

:dlstrlbuted to varlous mob leaders in the Um.ted States 729 A h].dden

| share of a casmo was prlced in- the underworld market at $52, 500 and

the d1v1dend hovered around $l 000 to $1 500 a month—-about a 25 per

‘cent annual return 730 As Angelo DeCarlo put it, when the FBI bug was

‘ bon:7‘31 | |
o ’ "You get a thousand a month for a pomt
- and sometimes you get fifteen hundred.'”

"'You got to win a hundred thousand
someone broke in, ‘ L

s



, ""Steal a hundred thousand not win it,".
" DeCarlo corrected. 'You don‘t get nothmg out
of the winnings. ‘The onl;y thmg you get is a -
plece of what they steal
The govemnent was threatem.ng the investment, however w1th the
‘Attorney General s organlzed c.rlme program I‘BI strength m Nevada was .
’“tnpled the IRS opened a hO—agent offrce 1n Las Vegas 8z It was -
‘,,‘,’potentlally the worst flnanc1al dlsaster for the mob since Castro closed |
'the Havana casmos J.n 1959 Angelo DeCarlo spoke of these concerns when
; he sa:.d "There s a. lot of money lnvested 1n Las Vegas a lotta people X :
| got money If anythmg goes wrong "733

(6) Polltlcal Corruptlon Roland L1bonat1

Popular imaginatlon notw1thstandmg, organ:l.zed crime in Ch:.cago did

’not or:.ginate w1th prohlbn.t nn ' ’I‘he clty was founded in 1837 and : "

g reputed w1thm a decade as a, center of v1ce and corruptlon.nl’ After
" the famous 1871 flre the saloons and brothels were clustered on
| ‘Dea.rborn Street near 22nd in an, area known as the ‘South S].de Levee

| Pol:Lt:Lcally, it was the First Ward whn.ch also cons:.sted of t:he
coumerc:.al distrlct or Loop, and at the turn of the century the ward
| I bosSes were Mlchael 'Hmky Dlnk" Kenna and John "Bathhouse" Coughl:.n

735

the Lords of the Levee Therr power was mmense for there was

: little distmctlon between the Kenna Coughlin poln.tlcal machme and the
forcea that con rolled Liq ‘_' _ga l ] ,‘ and prostltutlon--they were one
"‘ and the same. 7,36 It was from these roots that the Capone orgam.zatwn

i grew James "Blg J Colosmn the flrst Ghlcago cr1me boss, was a

plmp ‘and'a restauranteur, h:Ls headquarters Colosnno s Cafe, was at 212 R

: “Scuth Wabash 737

= :,urmedlate predecessor and a Colosxmo bodyguard that the organlzation

got. into the llllClt beer: and llquor traff:.c 738 Wh].le the faces ", s

It was only under hls successor, John Torrlo Capone s



‘changed. from generatlon to generatlon, the fact of the alllance between
pO].lthS and crlme m Chlcago seemlngly rema:.ned the same.

Torrlo s pr1nc1pal headquarters was The "Four Deuces," which was

739

- located in a bulldmg at 2222 South’ Wabash Avenue It was: a place,

four storles hlgh, devoted to llquor, chance and ll].lClt sex Capone 5
headquarters was at the Lexmgton Hotel wh:Lch was located one street to

740

the east ‘on South M:Lchlgan Capone occupled the entlre fourth >

: floor most of the' thlrd and parts of the rest of the bulldlng Each

i tof these bulldlngs lay in. the Flrst Ward - Known as the "Lords of the |

Levee," Kenna and Coughlm collected votes and trlbute from every racket
or v:.ce operatlon in the ward Coughlm did not d1e untll 1938 Kenna
 lived until 1946 when he died at the age of 88. By the time of their.
. deaths however they had become mare flgureheads for Jake Guz:.k the

741

FCapone syndlcate overlord in the Flrst Ward Gus Alex succeeded e

Gu21k on Guzxk's death :m 1956 74,2 A year after Kenna s death the

P Flrst Ward was merged w:.th chie 20th whlch had been separated from lt by_
| ‘the south branch of the Chlcago Rlver “The Patch was at the center of
fthe 20th Ward The pollt1c1ans from the redlstrlcted ward and ad_] acent

“ hoodlum-dommated Jurlsdlctlons came to be knom as the West 51de Block

the character of Wthh was typlfled by the polltlcal career of one of |
743 N

1ts notorl.ous 1eaders Roland leonatl

€ : Legi. 2 in ‘1931 “’leonatl‘ was )
| photographed that sprlng w1th Capone and Jack "Machme Gun" McGum at a

| Chlcago Cubs baseball game Asked for h1s conment by the press, he sald

744

e he was. pro " When Capone asked hlm to speak to: h1s ‘son. In later

: "years he sald of hlS relat:\.onshlp w1th Capone "He treated me w1th f

||745

‘ respect and I never, dld anythmg not to merlt hlS respect 'ﬁe ‘; Vi



, L also sald of Delucia ancl Accardo that they were "charltable" ‘and

patrlotlc fellows 746

leonatl s 22—year stmt in the State Leglsla-
ture (six years as a Rtpubllcan representatlve and 16 years ‘as a :

Democratlc senator) was characterlzed by unswervmg loyalty t6 his - |

hoodlum friends as the Kefauver comnlttee noted 747 In 1957 he was

A ‘rewarded w1th a nommation to COngress from the Seventh Dlstrlct of

Illmou.s he won w1.th 89 per cent of the votes M?f How ‘he got those

" “*votes was h:.nted at 1n a conversatlon he had with two associates on

October 23 1962 that was overheard by the FB]ZJL‘_9 leonati sald he did i

~ not even k:now the naxre of h1s opponent :Ln the upcommg electlon--lt: was W

“he sald "laughable" to have 0pposxtlon in hls dlStI‘lCt.??? leonat:.

then remarked "Last tlme you guys bu:th me up to 98 000 votes and

s the other gy to 23 000 "75 1 leonatl was appomted to the Jud1c1ary

Cotmuttee of the House whlch had _]urlSdlCtJ.On over ant:,—crnme : | 5
168151at10n sought by the Kennedy Admmlstratlon, and 1n that same con- '
o versatlon on October 23 1962 he took: credlt where credlt was due "IV

killed," he sald "s:Lx of [Kennedy s] b:.lls ’Ihat wlretap b:t.ll,the in-

,"t:.mldatmg mformers blll...;. R 2 _
| - In January 1963, Glancana ordered leonatl to step down "for
reasons of poor health Ovid DeMans in Captlve Clty, wrote that

"G:Lancana acted because Mayor R;Lchard J \ Daley had been mformed by

Attorney General Kenne’:y-‘ hz “ ked‘ rto VV,Congress Kennedy

‘ ‘would personally see to 1t that he went to Jall "753 leonatl, s
- successor was Frank Annunzm a former Flrst Ward comnltteeman and a. ’
o *ﬂpartner of two syndlcate flgures in. an msurance busmess 75[{ When he R
i ran for the House 1n 1964 Annunzw sald he thought that Amerlcans of

: Itallan ancestry had been unfalrly llnked with the cr}.me syndlcate

ous
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hoodLums : "1 feel our lmage has been treated mfalrly The FBL in

a report not made publ].c comnented in 1964 "Annunz:.o w111 follow :

| [the] dictatels] of {the] Mob. n756

“One of leonatl s last acts in Congress was: the mtroductlon of

| legxslatlon that would ‘have made it a crme for:federal agent_s\to keep‘

gangsters under surveillance.' At the time he told a Chicago television

‘ newscaster° "Yes ;L know Giancana [M]y blll would cover hlm n/d7 The
,_reason for L1bonat1 leglslatlon was Glancana s react:.on to stepped-up

'FBI surve:.llance startmg in 1963

| (7-)‘ Phys1cal Survelllance

FBI agents who had kept Glancana under surve:.llance since he was

named a prmc1pal target of the Attorney General s organlzed cr].me ‘

N program in 1961 dec1ded in the late sprlng of 1963 to change ‘

758

| tactlcs. - Up untll then, Giancana. had not been under close physrcal

survelllance On the:.r oW, - although w1th approval from Washmgton, the

agents dec1ded to institute “lockstep phys:.cal survelllance--a 24 hour

: tall no matter where he was- or whom he was, w1th As Brashler wrote in

E TheDon.

‘ Wlth his temper: ‘and his volatlle o
moodlness they saw a chance to disrupt the
‘man's routine, his private affairs, his very
equlllbrlum to such an extent: that they werg59
certain it would cause hJ.m to make mlstakes ‘

was more effectlve than expected Glancana

became 1solated it was no 1onger pos31ble for him to’ conduct
760

| ‘ meetlngs o Other orgamzed cr:une flgures shunned th In partlcular

the survelllance apparently aborted a plan by Glancana approved by the

. E Corrmlssmn over the obJect:Lons of a Florlda mob flgure Charles Tourme

“to take over the gambllng casmos in the Dom:m.can Republlc.7;61 Because -



~an unprecedented step

had been "harrassed humlllated [and] embarrassed

of the survelllance the fmal me_etmg with Domlm can Republ].c officials

could not be held. As Charles }:.ngllsh a Glam.ana dSSO(‘ldte put it:

"The guy.. [had] trouble even havmg a date n762

At flrst Glancana trled to elude the agents dlsplaylng all of h:.s

old skllls as a wheelman 763

Once he raced through a car wash as
attendants who knew hzm stepped as1de and che_ered "Go Mo, Go!" But |
the agents were on the other slde walt_mg for him. He was followed on .
the golf course crowded by the agents who were better golfers and who
occas:.onally drove into hlS foursome or held off and sm.ckered th.le
G:Lancana flustered four-putted Desperate Glancana dec1ded to take
764 With the help‘ of h:.s son—ln—law, Anthony
Tisci,; a lawyer on L1bonat1 s congress:.onal staff he sought to enjoin
the agents conduct as a v10lat10n of hlS civil rights. Glancana h].red
a prlvate detectlve who made survelllance f].lms of the FBI "Take thlS
slde [of mel," an agent taunted ‘ "'I‘hls is my best 31de Then I'11 take

1'765‘

a plcture of you and put a nice nunber under 1t Glancana also:

adopted the routme of a leg:.t:mate busmessman even going to church
~ one Sunday An asslstant pastor at St. Bernadme s told a newspaper ‘

‘reporter that Glancana s last v131t had been three years before, for hlS‘

766 On June 27, Glancana filed su1t clalmmg he

daughter s graduatlon
His

attorney descrlbed the dec1s:.on to put Glancana under survelllance as.

‘ stltutlonal law

- did set a date for a hearmg in July

"’the work of some New Frontier lawyer who forgot h1s lessons m con— o

"768

769 Glancana hlmself was the star

w1tness show:.ng and narratlng a f1ve-m1nute color mov:.e of the FBI

"Them are the p].ctures, he sald speakmg in raspy, barely audlble

| 150

The Federal ‘court at first refused to act but it



tones. 770 "Those four guys are playing right behind us. One of thése

"771 Glancana ldentlflPd (Wlll].am) Roemer as an FBI

../72

fellas is Roemer
agent he sa:Ld he met ' at O'Hare Alrport. nine months ago. Media

- attentlon was also glven to TlSCl ‘who contended to the press that hlS

g representatlon of Glancana in court did not conflict with his dutles to

773 The Department of Justlce dec1ded to defend ‘

COngressman leonatl
the case by taklng the p031t10n that the court had no power to super-

| ‘V'.Lse a survelllance, consequently, no cross examlnatlon was made of
‘Glancana, no ev1dence was put m, and when Martm W. Johnson, spec1al
agent in charge of the Chlcago FBl off:Lce was called to testlfy,

" “ refused to answer 13 spec1f1c questions on the dlrect order of Attorney

774

General Kernedy. The court refused. to sign an order submltted by

Glancana s lawyers whlch would one goverment off1c1al noted have
"prevented Vlrtually any vlnvestlgatlon by any pollce agency "775
But to the de‘ep ‘chagrln of the Depart:ment of Justlce and the FBI, the
“court entered a lum.ted order and held Johnson in contempt for: fallure T
to testlfy, flnmg h:.m $500 the court s order prov:Lded that the FBI

: .could not have more than one car .parked within a block‘ of Giancana's o
hane, only one car could”hey used to ‘fvollow‘ him, andthat there had to be
" at least one foursome between Glancana and the Vag'ents“when they followed

776

him onthe_go‘lf course. Stunned, the government, at the direction of

77 -

‘ Attomey—General—Kennedy, appealed. On Julv 26, 1963, the Circuit

.- Court of Appeals after hearmg 90 mmutes of argument stayed the in-
'Junctlon pendmg full appeal The court observed: '

[The FBI agents] are a part of the executive
department. ..and they are not subject to
supervision or direction by courts as to how
they shallﬁgrform the dutles mlposed by law
- .upon than « T i ‘
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The stay was made permanent on June 30, 1964 although Johnson's

contempt citation was afflrmed 7

Gilancana lost more than he won by
go:.ng to court, since the publicity generated by the suit turned his
$50,000 mansion into a tourist attraction "I never saw anything Llike -
last nlght " said Norma Boerema who lived across the alley from the
Glancana home. "There were 150 to 200 cars...circling aromd.,.;"780
" Other mob figures were heard to grunble that Giancana had lost khis ef-
fectiveness as a result of the pub11c1ty 781 |

‘(8) The. Pres:.dent s Assassmatlon

: When word of the Kennedy assassmatlon came, Sam Glancana was at
the Armory Lounge w1th Keely Smlth the profess:.onal smger and a
1ongt1.me frlend and Charles Engllsh an assoc1ate Robert Kennedy
‘ “would "not have the power he prev10usly had," Giancana observed

- hopefully, though he turned out. to be rlght 782

Three days later,
Giancana and Engllsh were again w1th1.n range of an FBI device, as they
watched a telev:.s:.on replay of the Pres:.dent s funeral the day before.
‘English started to sing, 'When the ca:.ssons go rolling along,.. ' and
, conmented that Lee"Harvey Oswald was supposed to have been_'lan

t. "783 '""He was .a marksman who knew

anarchist" and"'a Marxist Comnum.s
how to shoot " Glancana replled addmg that with Oswald dead they

| would not be able to know 1f he had "other contacts or what "784

K.: The Organlzed Cr1me Program: _1963 to :Tod_ay

1. Declme and ReV:Lval

It has been forcefully argued that the mob- had a hand in the |

President's z:tssassmatlon.785

ReaSOnable people can differ on the
- question‘.g That they were one of “the principal beneficiaries of the

assassination is not open to question. Not only didthe statistics of
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the organized crime program that measured performance fall',“786 but in
July of 1965, at the request of then Attorney General Ramsey Clark,
President Johnson banned all use of electronic bsurv,eillance‘ teclmiques, '

except in natlonal securlty matters.787

Never again’did the FBI or any
other Federal mvestlgatlve agency have  such comprehens:.ve detailed and |
accurate mformatlon on organlzed crune Too many people however, had
: come to reallze the m:portance of the Federal effort agamst organ].zed

crime.. A study group of liberal Republlcans publlshed a sharply

‘crltlcal analys1s of the decllnlng program,78‘8 and efforts were made to
rev1ve it. 783" " The program s area field offlces were renamed "Str1ke
1790 791

The President’' s Crime Comm.ssmn

Forces." in 1967 called for its

strengthenmg, and recorrmended a leglslatlve program in the area that
mcluded grand Jury reform mmunlty authorlzatlon per_]ury and contempt

reform w1retap authorl.zatlon, and a call for new efforts to blend

792

| crmn_nal and c1v11 remedles Slmllarly, a House conmlttee studled

the organlzed crime program in: 1968 and called for 1ts strengthenlng 193

-Over the strenuous ob_] ectlons of Attorney General Clark and Pres1dent

794

Johnson, too, Congress enacted in 1968 the w1retap leglslatlon called ‘

795

for by the Cr1me Comnlssmn ertmg 1.n 11976, the Nat].onal eretap

‘-CCXI'm:LSSlOI‘l created by the 1968 Act, observed
' Since 1968 the use of court-authorlzed

~ electronic surveillance to gather evidence of
crimes involving organized criminals has con-.

firmed the belief that syndicated criminals
continue to pose a major problem to our soc1ety
- and that electronic surveillance is often an
effective means of uncovering and provmg the
‘existence of organized criminal conspiracies.
Organized crlmmals we have seen, seek to
carry out any 1ucrat1ve illegal endeavor from
ganbling to marcotics distribution to ma_]or
fraud schemes, and they seek to cover their
~activities through the intimidation of victims '
and accompllces and the corruptlon of publlc



-officials. Electronic surveillance, directed
at these major criminal endeavors under care-
ful Title III procedural controls, has been
able to assist in the prosecution of this
activity while minimizing the threat to the
prlvacy of persons pursuing legitimate

activities. ... The Commission notes,
however, that surveillance alone promises
little. Together with adequately trained and
motivated law enforcement persommel, sufficient
in munmber, carefully drafted substantive and N
procedural legislation, and appropriate support
from the other segments of the criminal justice
system, the cc;ggts and corrections, much may be

‘dccompllshcd

Flnally, in 1970, m the Orgam.zed Crlme Control Act, 797 , most of the
rest . of the Crime Commission's 1eglslat:\.ve program was enacted.

2. Operation Today -

Today, Federal Strike Forces are operating m 14 cities, with 12
suboff:'Lces.79‘8 Organlzed crime is a major priority of the Department of
~Justice. Over all, the ‘I‘?‘edere*l government ‘spends $100 thillion a year in
its ‘organized crime control prograitn.?gg William H. Wehster, ‘the
]jirector of‘ the FBI, has toid the Congress that 'the Bureau's effortvs in
| its organized crime prog'ram representing 22 per cent of its f:\’.eld egent
- time, are resultmg in about 632 convictions per year 405 of Whlch are

800

in the racketeermg classification.%%? Webster also indicated that 107 g

. among these convicted '‘were either associates or members of the 1argest

organized crime groups operatmg in thlo country "801 What is known

5 d ,.

act of the =

- varlous organlzed crime groups, mcludmg the natlonal syndlcate, on -
v101ence official corruptlon, the traditional flelds of criminal

endeavor (narcotlcs gamblmg, loansharklng, and the theft and fencing
of stolen property) , or the natlon S legltlmate economy (through such

| act:.v:.tles as arson-for-proflt c1garette bootleggmg, or the mvas:.on
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- and take—over of unions) is dependent upon the work of a small handful
of investigative reporters and perlodlc congress:.onal hearlngs

- Accordingly, it is to these subJects that these materials now turm, as
| there has been no comprehenswe effort to essay these individual areas

since the work of the Pres:Ldent s Crlme Comm.ssmn in 1967
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A, Introduction

Tradltionallv, our mation and ourwsociety have been characterized
by violence--the ‘fight for independence the Indian wars‘ slavery and
the secess:.on of the South, agrarlan reform, the emergence of organued‘ |

labor the ClVll rlghts movement, and confllcts based on religious and

: ‘ethnlc animosities or even pOllthS The violence that has

characterlzcd the development of our Lmderworld therefore ought not to
- come as a surprlse to anyone who knows our hlstory or is famlllar with
the dark under51de of our natlonal llfe today Nevertheless the role
and J.mpact of VLOlence in the underworld ought not be. overstated
minimized, or m:.sunderstood. Placed in context,‘ it is seen llke a
natural outgrowth of the character of organlzed crime ltself
: Orgam.zed crnme mcludlng the natlonal syndJ.cate as well as other |

groups continues ‘to be extremely violent. The Deparmnent of Justlce
estJ.mates that there were 200 gangland slaylngs in 1979 a mlnute
o portlon of the total (20, 000) hom1c1des that occurred that year, but

. 31gnlf1cant for the brutallty that they manifested as a way of life for

the orgamzed‘ underworld. 1

~Indeed, Vlolence of all kmds frequently :
murder is used ds a means of malntalnmg the organlzatlon and msurlng
~its success. Vlolence is in fact considered to be a ratlonal solutlon

to many of the problem.s faced by “the organizat‘ion, of crime. For the

less sophlstlcated groups v10lence however may be used more

Mfrequently and less selectlvely than by older groups such as La Cosa
Nostra.. La Cosa Nostra 1:or example t:yplcally uses: lmrder only when o
other alternatlves WJ.ll not work reallz:mg, among other thlngs that
‘wholesale Vlolence will attract mtenswe law enforcement

1.nve:"st1‘ga‘t1orr.2 Nevertheless, tlmely murders remal.n a method of



conduct:.ng its busmess Most La Cosa Nostra families in fact go

through perlods of heavy and seemmgly unrestramed vmlence.
i Understandmg v:Lolence is one key to understandmg the essential

character of organized crime..

B Traditlonal Patterns of Violence

In the early days of ltS syndlcatlon organlzed crime nurdered

‘ms1ders and competltors w1th reckless abandon. Between 919 and 1934,
o organlzed crime :m Chlcago for example averaged 48 gangland nurders
“ per year 3 Dlon O Ban:Lon, a leadcr of one Chlcago group, was kllled it

is said, merely for refusmg to' cancel another gangster s ganblmg

debt.l' Accordlng to some wrlters the J_nfamous Masserla-Maranzano war

‘ “11'1 New York, which led to the formatlon of the. natlonw1de syndlcate ‘was

. ended by the kllllng of roughly 40 SlClllan gang leaders in ‘a three-day

period in 1931. 2 Gradually, however as organlzed crime became

syndlcated gangsters began to use murder more selectlvely as a tool of

- their trade The mobsters began to reallze that excessive v101ence was

one of the crucial thlngs that attracted public attentlon and law
enforcement pressure. Accordmgly, a consc1ous dec1s:|.on was taken by‘ )

the principal group to attempt to avoid unnecessary ‘violence. A modern,

; ratlonal use of v101ence was the result

1. Controls over Vlolence6

‘La'Cosa Nostra as a Well-established and highly structured

organization, has strong lnternal and external controls over v101ence
La Cosa Nostra s organlzatlonal structure enables it to control the use

of v101ence by its members. Slgnlflcant in this regard is the role of

- the family boss who is usually agalnst wholesale v101ence Where the

“ boss is strong, he must approve all krllmgs by members, Wthh‘ -
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facilitates a rational use of murder. Where there is ro strong leader,
and in the newer organized crime groups with less mature leadership,
killings are likely to be less well thought out.

The family boss controls a system that is in fact relatively ef-

fective in limiting violence between members of his family. Soldiers

are expected to settle differences without violence. If they cannot
agree they are supposed to request a c.app_reglma to arb:Ltrate 1f the
capo cannot resolve the d:Lsputc the soldler is supposed to request the

cons:Lgllere underboss or boss to dec:Lde If the boss makes a dec151on"

| on the matter, it is supposedly fmal. A member who refuses to follow

the boss's decision will be punished by the organization,' a‘pmiSMt :
ranging from a slap in the face to m;rder, dependmg on the ‘gravity of
the offender's misdeed. | ' |

| If members of different families become involved in a dispute, the
boss or consigliere of each fainily“my meet“‘in a s:'Ltdown‘, the underworld
form of bindihg arbitration; Si.tmllarly dntrafaxnily murder is kept as
1mpart1al as poss:Lble ~Murders are ordered only if lt is for the good’
of the famlly ‘What reasons are sufi:Lc:Lent to demand death vary with:

the famlly and boss, but they lnclude :Lnformmg on the famlly or another

' member d:Lsobeymg the boss, and not: sharlng with the organlzatlon a.

proper share of the. proflts from' 1llegal ventures. If a kllllng is

_ordered within the family, the members usually accept, it, if ‘the boss is

- strong, partly because of the boss's position of authority, but partly

because they know the boss could order ‘the same fate for them.
Various techn:Lques are also used by organlzed cr1me to help control

the use of violence agamst non—merrbers including money and a

: thoroughly developed and well—cult:Lvated instillment of fear m the ‘
publ].c |
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No one’ seems to know for sure how much pOllth&l corruptlon ezu.sts, |
but everyone agrees that organlzed crlme could not flourlsh llke 1.t does
‘w:l.thout substantlal cormptn.on /- Organ:.zed crime’ Vast flnanclal
resources enable it to buy many publlc off1c1als Accordlngly, ‘
corrputn.on allows orgam.zed crnre to operate more. ea 1ly ‘than otherwise

and with less need for VJ.olence. Instead of threats and actual force,
j . intensive pollce 1nvest1gat1.on may be avo:Lded through brlbery
‘ Money, or more generally, economlc power enables organlzed crime o

to have 1ts way w1th other crmu.nals and with many legltmate g

busmesses and labor um.ons Crum.nals w:Lth successful operatlons can

be brought under the organlzatlon s control by offermg protectlon
fmancmg, and exclus:.ve terrltory Legltunate busmessmen can be
' \controlled in several different ways J.ncludmg threats of labor |

'problems caused by organlzed trlme—bought labor leaders Methods such

. as these. allow organlzed crime to exerc1se a great deal of Jnfluence “

 without resortmg to v101ence Money also helps limit v:Lolence ina
»more mdlrect way One of orgam.zed crime's goals 1s proflt and 1.t |
understands well that most people or busmesses can be mllked for
somethlng 'I'hus mstead of a beatlng or klllmg a customer ‘a
Vloanshark rmght force h1m to rob a bank steal securltles or embezzle, :

as dead people cannot contrlbute to the mob! s tlll

: %’he—mst_egeegwg alternat ive. to actual vn.olence however is fear

of violence. Because of orgamzed crlme s well—known propens1ty for ‘
‘v101ence the resultmg fear of v1olence actually reduces the need for -
ylts use ‘In short people are generally SO mtimldated by mobsters that'
‘force is not necessary to: encourage them to do whatever the mob deSLres h

'of them Thus when a loanshark tells a customer that 1f he 1s late 1n
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payment a;,am he w1.ll be dcad the c_ustom(.r does ‘not wait to see if the
loanshark really means it. And thc res taurant owner pays the

extortlonlst rather than see if the c.xtortlonlst w111 actually bomb his

'restaurant leew:Lse the store ‘owner buys the mob's products mstead

of rlsklng the consequences. - There are well-publrc:.zed instances of

“what happens to those who do not go: along with the mob, and one threat

carried through goes . a long way toward preservmg the mob s
credibillty |

2. Klnds of Vlolence

When necessary, organlzed crime uses v:l_olence in a calculated way
Force is used as a ratlonal solutlon to four types of organlzed crime
problems: 1) busme‘ss 2) securlty, 3) warfare, and 4) competltlon.s

a. Busmess , : e |

First, busmess v101ence can be def].ned as the type of v:Lolence
that occurs in the normal course of an 1llegal endeavor, such as a
loanshark usmg force to collect an overdue payment This type of
violence is separate from the competltlve v101ence that occurs when
d:Lfferent groups vie: for the same racket or terrltory In the busmess |
context, however, v101ence seems to be used relatlvely llttle, 1t is, in
short, not generally good for busmess The most common type of
business v101ence is loanshark v:Lolence ‘as in loansharkmg the threat

of v101ence is necessary to 1nsure repayment of the loan, , for whlch

there is no tradltlonal collateral CAE t1mes v101ence must : therefore

 be used to demonstrate that nonpayment or. habltual late payment will not

9.

be tolerated. But other forts ‘of :'punlshment mcludmg mterestrate

penaltles or busmess takeovers ~are usually adequate sanctlons. Here,

: too v101ence is not always the best pollcy
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Neither‘gambling‘nor narcotics are typified‘by a‘high degree of
business violence. Both endeavors involve continuous relationships. As .
such the use of violence is not a major factor in maintaining the
illicitvrelationship.~ Obviously narcotics trafficking has its violent

aspects, chiefly competitive‘or\security violence and secondary violence

by addicts, but in its "business'' aspects narcotics racketeering is not

excessiyely Violent 10‘

Ironically, buSiness Violence may play a larger role in the

underworld's actiVities in the le itimete econ Labor racketeer 5
8 omy ing

for example,’ involves;Violence : Payoffs ‘and kickbacks from employers‘

are extortedlthrough threats of‘Violence, Other forms of Labor .
racketeering may be made easier with the help of ‘the threat of _

Violence.11 Usually, too“violence will play a‘role‘in organized

crime's gaining control of legitnnate bUSinesses ~ Once in control it

may be necessary tor mobsters to use Violence to drive competitors out
of business, force their products on buyers or sweeten deals

Events in Kansas City from 1972 through 1977 aptly illustrate the
| | | | 12

“7me'S willingness to use force in its‘business-dealings During this

period, the Kansas City Cosa Nostra family tried to move its go-go bars \
and pornography shops into a newly—redeveloped area: called the River

Q. | | e T
| ‘The:Riyer Quay was‘an_old‘riverfront areabof'Kansas\City, whichdin“

L

e

kthe early‘1970'sﬂwas redeveloped into a fashionable‘shopping and tourist .

center. In order to insure a family—oriented‘area,:the developers,‘
rigorously screened prospective lessees ‘
In 1972 Fred Harvey Bonadonna obtained a lease and opened a -

reStaurant‘in the River Quay. The restaurant 1nnediately gained |

162



success, and ‘Bonadonna became. influential among area businessmen. Fred
, Bonadonna, a fully legitimate busineSStnan, wasthe son of a soldier in
‘the Nlcholas Clvella crime family.

" When the mob became interested m the area in 1974 the River Quay
mcluded 68 dlfferent retall establlslrxments and it was a major Kansas
. City tourlst attraction. Urban renewal in the 'sex industry zone in |
Kansas Clty, however, requlred mob- connected ‘pornshops and go-go bars’ to B

: relocate Accordlngly, Joseph Camm.sano a mob figure, purchased a

: ‘bulldi.ng :m the RJ.ver Quay, mtendmg to relocate his go-go bars in the

: area Fred Bonadonna opposed the move and he d1d everyth:.ng in his ‘~‘~ '
power to stop Camnlsano ] busmess from openmg ‘Bonadonna was warned
by his father not to. oppose the mob, and the bar was fmally allowed to
open. | g |
Nevertheless, when other sex-relatéd businesses tri;ed to open in |
the area, Bonadonna and other legltlmate merchants adamantly opposed
them. As a result the busmesses were unable to obtain llcenses ‘
Bonadonna was agaln warned by hlS father that the mob would resort to
“anythlng to galn control of the River Quay bars Bonadonna then |
| relented but when Camnlsano began to promote g0-go glrls 1n one of hls
: bars--ln v1olatlon of an agreement w1th Bonadonna- Bonadonna complamed
to the mobsters At this point, Bonadoma s father warned hlm that

Joseph Conm:.sano and his powerful brother Wllllam Commisano cons:.dered

o Bonadonna ari enemy. Bonadonna s father cautloned hun to watch out for’
| ,known assassins, but Bonadorma contlnued to oppose the mobsters At one .
confrontatlon W1lllam Carrmlsano told Bonadonna that he (Wllll.am) would

klll anyone mcludlng anyone at c1ty hall, who opposed h1m
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In an attempt to soften the now hardened opposition to them, the

\‘]‘mob resorted to violence. First, in March 1976 Frcd'Bomzdoma's son
‘was brutally beaten with baseball bat’v‘ cht in June 1976, his faLher
was‘rmirdered. In Novuxber 1976, a close fru_nd of Bonadonna 5 was f ound
strangled, and on the same day, an unknown bomber was J.n_]u.red while ‘

attempting to connect ‘an“explos\:i.ve device to the car of‘ Bonadorma's
bodyguard. oo | |

Bonadonna hlmself was in such danger that he was forced to enter ‘

‘ the Federal W:Ltness Protection Program in March 1977 Even after |
i Bonadonna had left Kansas Clty, and the media began to expose the
purpose of the acts of violence, it cont:mued | In March 1977 a |
Bonadonna bu1ld.mg in the Rlver Quay was blown up, and in August 1977

another Bonadonna bodyguard was kllled by a bomb.
| Because of the v101ence the Rlver Quay 1tself was destroyed as an
attractlve downtown area, and it became a seedy, bombed-out porno
district. The dream of legltlmate businessmen was destroyed by the
mob's greed and its violent tact:\_cs.‘ Bonadonna himself was relocated
after teStifying against the C‘omnisanos, who were Gonvicted of
‘ extortion; but he can never return to Kansas C‘ity without rlsklng murder‘ |
by a vengeful mob. | |
| b. Security

Organized crime also uses \iiolence to maintain internal security

If a member or an associate is a securlty ‘threat, he nust be taken care .
of, and that may mclude murder Accordmg to Joseph Valachi, Willie
Morett:L for example was kllled because his mental mstablllty rendered

- him unable to behave ratlonally, he was, therefore a threat to

security. 13 Other racketeers will be d].scrplmed_or s:.lenced for

disobeying orders or being too mdependent.lé
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. he, too was apparently vrewed as a secur:x.ty threat

The beatmg or murder of an mfonnant is the most comnon type of
securlty v101ence 15 The v:.olence may not be l1m1ted to the potential
w1tness 16 John Fltzgerald an attorney who counseled hlS client to
.J.nform on the mob, had hlS leg blown off by a bon'b planted in his car;.
17
| Informants who have already done damage to the organlzatlon may
o ‘also be kllled for revenge and to dlscourage potentlal m.fonnants
George A Francorero who tw1ce gave damagmg testlmony in orgam.zed

18 doseph Barboza Whose testmony

~crime prosecutlom was shot in 1981.
helped conv1ct Raymond Patr:.arca, a New England boss was. subsequently
kllled after hn.s cover was blown and 1t became known that he had agreed

| to testify agan.n.‘ 19° Indeed 1.t lS fair to conclude that the mob s
continued success depends in large part on' its code of SJ.lence i is
understandably d].fflcult to convince a lower level organlzed crime o
"flgure to- testlfy agamst his bosses and breach th].s code Vlctnns”of

| orgam.zed crlme too know equally well what mlght occur if they testlfy
agalnst the mob As such V:Lolence protects the -organizatlon from .
ms1de and outs:.de threats. For example in the prosecutlon of Gary
‘Bowdach ‘a mob fn.gure, 15 counts of an md:.ctment had to be dropped ,
because 15 w1tnesses outrlght refused to testlfy because of the:.r fear “\‘

' of Bowdach.20

Securrty v1olence in fact created the need for the
tFederal Witness Protectlon Program, v ‘
dangerous to testlfy agamst orgam.zed crime.

“c. Warfare | |
Warfare external flghtmg or mternal rebelllon, occurs when an

md:.v:.dual or factlon w1thm a group attempts to make a change J.n the

. group 5 leadershlp In La Cosa Nostra, such attempts may also be made ,‘
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‘by other families and they, too may be categorized as a, form of |
warfare. Warfare can result from dissatisfaction with leadership,
. ‘encroachment on another faanily s racket or territory, or s1mply a :
’vacated leadership position. It may take the form of a small war, in

| which several gang menbers are killed or a smgle assassmation of a

leader 'I‘he assasSmation in the 1970s for example, of La Cosa Nostra o

i leader Sam Glancana illustrates the polnt Exanples of more extenswe
.warfare include the Masseria-Maranzano war: of ‘the 1930s or‘the Gallo -
‘Profacn. war?'2 and; the Bonnano war of the 19605..‘23‘ In more recent years, o

v the killings of Phlladelphia bosses Angelo Bruno and mup Testa and

numerous members of the. Bruno family, have been attr:.buted to both -

rebellion’ and warfare probably a takeaver attempt by New York T
 families. 2t -

The Rochester, New York organized crime family, however, has been

| 3 plagued by extended gang war in recent years and an exannnation of that L

| ) conflict will well demonstrate hcrw warfare begms and proceeds 25

'I‘he war can be traced to 1972 when Rochester boss Frank Valenti
was forced out by Sanuel Russotti Rene Piccarreto and Salvatore A
Gmgello who accused Valenti of skimm_ng organization money for h:Ls own
fuse.‘ Valenti passively retired when h].s only loyal _gg Domim.c ¥
, was assass:mated Russotti then became boss of the faxm.ly,
Rene P:Lccarreto the consi" ‘liere- and Salvatore‘ Wb 08

On: Jarmary 14 1977 Russotti Piccarreto and Gingello, along w:u:h
three other leaders were however, 1mprisoned for 25 years to life fOr .

s ,their roles m the nurder of a fellow mobster, a conv1ctlon that left a

' , tremendous void 1.n the Rochester family s leadership " The man left in
charge Thomas Dldlo was supposed to act as a puppet for Russotti. |



Dldio, however, refused to follow Russotti's orders he dld not prov:Lde
for the Jmprlsoned mobster S famllles, and he lowered the status of all
- members who were loyal to Russotti, P].ccarreto, or Gingello. In |
. addition ‘when a f\Jnd—rai'sirg 'event was held‘for the ’be"nef‘it ‘of the '

Jmprlsoned mobsters Dldlo allegedly skmned a large part of the mone)i

‘for hlmself These and other similar actlons by Dld:.o enraged Russottr :

: and his loyallsts and created great dlscontent in the fam:l.ly

In July 1977 Dldlo sensmg the dlssens:l.on withm the family,
~began to seek counsel from Frank ValentJ. thus brmgmg Valent1 back
- mto theconfllct About the same tlme Rnssott:. S group determlned to"

remove D:Ld].o from power | RN -

In September 1977, Dlle and two of his loyallsts were told that
they were through by several Russotti followers who then severely beat
Didio and his men. Dlle and h:x.s group then went mto hldmg and began
e to hold secret meetmgs at a Plttsford “New York restaurant

In December 1977 D1d10 s forces launched thelr retallatlon by

trymg to attach a: remote control bonb to a Russottl follower s car, but

Tl they were caught 1n the process A hlgh speed chase through Rochester

"‘ . resulted w:.th the two groups shooting w11dly at each other At one
"‘polnt» the bomb _flell off the car; 1t~was ,later dlscovered by a |
In January 1978 Dlle loyallsts ambus od :

Who dlsmantled it.
ing Russottl |
henchmen and rlddled 1t w1th bullets, but tm.raculously, no ‘one: was : -
kllled Meamwtule 1n January 1978 Russottl and his f].ve cohorts were
released from prlson after the:Lr conv1ct10ns were reversed because of

pol'rce perjury in the;Lr»trlal.
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d. Competition
Competitive violence is the v:.olence that occurs when one or more

gangs vie for control of a racket or-a terrltory. It is. l:.ttle

: dlffermt from the kind of \ v1olence in which the urban youth street

gangs ‘frequently engaged.g La “Cosa Nostra has used it to ,attain and

maintam its preemj.nence in organized crime. | For exampie :m Boston in.

the early 19603 La Cosa Nostra caug,ht the powerful Ir:Lsh gangs off

guard and in a war mvolvmg at least 50 tmrders took full control of

the ganblmg and loansharkmg rackets 26 Rlsmg organlzed crlme groups,' L

including Black and other ethnic organlzatlons are also using ‘

compet:.tlve v101ence to expand thelr operatlons . _

| Narcotlcs trafflck:mg however, is by far the most. violent of the

rackets today, and the v:Lolence connected with it is ch:\.efly competitlve ’; : |

in character Miami, is, for example, a center for narcotics T

traffickmg, and there is w1despread compet:.tlve violence between r:.val

27‘

gangs trying to gain control of the racket In Miami, they refer to § L l

: the rampant violence of the drug trafflckers as the phenomenm of the S . 4

"Cocame Cowboy " 8 ‘The v:Lolence is conparable in scale and feroc1ty to‘", Pl ‘ |

the v:l.olence of the competlng bootleggers in the 1920 29
Coloublan organlzed crime groups are powerful 1n cocame and " ‘

afflckmg, and as they have begun to sell d:.rectly to the I

,south Flor:.da market they have come mto‘ 33

Amerlcan trafflckers . 30

All the trafflckers are: flghtmg to hold on to |

a portlon of the terr:t.tory,31 the result has been an unprecedented ].evel ‘ ‘
¢ of v101ence I o ‘ | e | |
| In 1979 Dade County, whlch contains M:LaIIII, mvestlgated 189 - | L |

32

homlcldee, of‘whlch 42"were related toj,rna‘rcotlcs in some way. ”“Of 1
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o ,Colonbian alien’ hog-tied and. strangled m the trunk

these 42 police say at least: 20 but probably more, were d1rectly | o
| ‘ ;Wrelated to drug traffickmg 33 o
| The v1olence in Miami 1s brutal and totally unmhibited For
“ ‘example on April 23 1979 in broad daylight police discovered two :
' cars in a high speed chase w:Lth t:he occupants exchanging machine gun ‘
“fire. The police entered the chase and they were fired on as well
When one of the cars was finally pulled over, pollce found an illegal
34 Sixmlarly, on ’
the afternoon of May 29, 1979 a Cuban suspected of bemg a drug |
trafflcker was. driv:mg h1s car past a shoppmg center in a qu1et Dade

County” suburb Another car pulled alongside the Cuban, and an occupant ‘,

B "machmegnmned him to death Many of the bullets passed through nearby

35

. Vstore wmdows Likew1se on July 11 1979 in mldday, at least two

‘ mles drove up to a busy shopplng mall in a’ van converted mto a heav11y' o

armed war wagon. 'I'he ‘two. men ex:.ted the van, entered a llquor store, :

| ,‘ and fired at. least 100 rounds from mach:l.ne guns :|.nto the store and 1ts

occupants A maJor Colonbian drug dealer leader and h1s accomplice were R

‘jkilled and two mnocent v1ct1.ms were wounded As the machmg gm'rners

left the store they sprayed the parkmg lot: w1th more bullets 1n an A
attempt to keep w1tnesses away. 36 ot |

Slmllar 1nc1dents occur frequently m MJ.am:L as rival groups

37

struggle to control the mcredibly lucrative drug traffic , Most of

the m.lrders remam Lmsolved in 1arge part because many of the Colombian oo

“killers have no roots in the commnity and cannot be 1dent1f1ed 38 ’ In

‘addition, they manage to leave the country, 1n -one way or another 1f ;‘

, ‘they become suspects in a killmg.39 "
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C. Effects of Violence
Ironically, there is considerable evidence that the presence of a
powerful organlzed crime group may actually suppress certain crimes,

: mcludlng v101ent crime. 40

La Cosa Nostra is lmown to cultivate good
' fpublic relations, and one aspect of this policy tiay be protection for
neighborhoods . in which it lives and operetes ‘OrganiZed crime, in
short does not tolerate street crime. La Cosa Nostra is able to

acconphsh what legitlmate Llaw enforcement cannot because of the fear

‘and respect 1t evokes in other crlmmals In some urban areas, crime is R

tightly controlled and v1.olent crime rates are startlmgly low . As one
law enforcement expert: said -- |

Thexlkeep the streets a 1ot safer than the
cops do. ,

As effective as sorhe groups may be at suppressmg some forms of
v101ent crime, the overall effect is, however minimal. Cities known to
~ have powerrul orgamzed crime groups do not in fact have lwer'v‘iolent
crime rates than those that do not.*? Indeed, Florida aside, there is o

no dlscernible difference in the violent crime rates of maJor c1t1es
| with and without strong organlzed crime groups |

Organized crime is, on the other hand indlrectly respons:rble for a’

great deal of violent crlme 'I‘he addlct who must steal to support his

' hablt oft:en‘ uses 'every., At ‘one poi.nt, ‘the New York

City Police- Department estimated that 50 percent of all street crime was

comm.tted by addicts. 43

It 1s not known how many n:urders or assaults
. are coumi‘tted‘by people under the influence of drugs, offenses that |
might not have been conmitted‘jhad the offender been clear-headed'; ~Nor

- is it known how mach violent cr:.me co:rmitted by street gangs ahd other
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‘ successful and hlghly v1s1ble n‘obsters

FBI.

‘ Northeast

v ,mlraculous ly, he surv1ved

young. thugs can at least‘ :‘Ln part be attributed to youthful eirulation‘ of
b |

D Emergmg Patterns of Vlolence o

Wlth the large but lmportant exceptlon of the Florida- drug

| traff].c the chlef emphas:.s of the media's attentlon to organlzed :

| cr1me s v101ence has been La Cosa Nostra partlally because 1t is the

only natlonw1de syndlcate but also because more is kncmn about it thanv

‘ other orgam.zatlons ‘A brlef dlscussmn of ‘some of the other orgamzed.

crime groups and thelr v101ent tendenc1es is, therefore 1n order.

| ,l. Motorcycle Gangs -

Motorcycle gangs can be extranely v101ent They are apparently

) ready to kill anyone who gets in thelr way, mclud:.ng the sort of 1aw

‘ enforcement offlc:Lals who La Cosa Nostra has tradltlonally av01ded

Most blke groups are referred to as dangerous even psychopathlc by the’
‘ 45 The gangs Wlth the most v101ent tendenc1es J.nclude the Hell s
Angels 1n ‘the West, the Bandltos in the South and the Pagans in ‘the

46 The brutal character of the v1olence is dlfflcult to -

believe. One Pagan who attempted to qu1t the gang, was J.n_]ected w1th =

“sulfurlc acld stabbed dozens of t1mes and shot in the head

47~

Drug Tra.fflckers e

As prevxously noted the propen31ty of those groups now mvolved 1n :

lllll

: trafflc

48

drug trafflckmg for competltlve v101ence is well—establlshed Drug L ‘

trafflckers also use v101ence for reasons other than competltlon. There

are at least seven s1tuatlons that give rise to v101ence in the drug

(1) A rlpoff where a seller or buyer plans to g ,, |
“rob narcotlcs or money without an b

exchange, L
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two suspected drug ‘dealers in a dispute over payment.

(2) . Revenge or retaliation for a past drug
ripoff or homicide;

3) Money or drugs not dellvered by the
courier, source, or buyer, :

(4) A battle for ascendency within the group;

(5) Belief that the victim was cooperating

~ with a government agency as an informant

(Security);

(6) Elimination of witnesses to a cr:Lme ,
(Security); and

(7) Hijacking drugs.

3. The Dixie Mafia‘

The Dixic Mafia is a loose confcderatlon of burglars, bank robbers e

and other property—orlented cra_mlnals operatlng in the South, who have '

assoc1ated together, assisted each other, and on occas1on J.nteracted
with other organlzed crime groups.50 ‘The FBI terms thlS group fairly
v1olent.51 '

4._ The Israeli Mafia

The Israell Mafia con51sts of a group of Israe11 c:Ltlzens in los

Angeles, who began by v1c,t1_m121ng other Israel:Ls. They have now ex-=

panded the_lr activities into such crimes as drugs, extortion, and fraud.

‘Recently, they were responsible for a gruesome dismemberment murder of

52

5.7 Callfornla Latino Groups

There are a number of other organized crime groups in the country.
In Chinese comunities, there are local groups: called Tongs.56 In

Hawaii, there is a group known as the Yakuza, which is involved in

narcotics,. extortion, and murder._58 In additioh, there are Black -

‘organizations, sometimes c‘alled‘the Black mafia, invol\ied in the
~ narcotics and numbers rackets.58 All of these groups have varying

. propensities for violence.
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6. Other Organized Crime Groups

There are a number of other organized crime groups :m the country.
In Chinese! cozmlu;nities, there are local groups called 'l‘ongs.56 In .

Hawan there is a group known as the Yakuza, Wthh is 1nvolved in

57

narcotlcs, extortlon, and murder. In addltlon, there are Black

organlzatlons, sctretlmes called the ‘Black Maf‘ia, involved in the-

narcotics and numbers rackets‘.58

All of these‘groups have varying :
. propen31t1es for violence. . | | o ‘

= E. Law Enforcement Response

. Ultimately, the success of any law enforcement effort depends on .
‘the support of publlc opinion. Nevertheless, the publlc 1s seemlngly‘
~ unconcerned with the problem of organlzed crlme, ;anlud:Lng 1ts v1olent
aspects, often contrary to the be] ief of some flgures in organlzed crime
.1tself Victims of organlzed ch.me Vlolence are too often percelved ‘as
people who probably deserve what they got 59 Indeed, victims of
organized crime are frequently organlzed criminals themselves. Almost
all other victims are people who somehow bec,ame J.nvolved w1th organlzed
‘crm‘e Accordmgly, organlzed cr:Lme is generally not thought to be |
respons:Lble for the v1olence that v1ctJmlzes the average person » who has
,‘,no connectlons ‘with the mob. Soc1ety, too demands many of the goods

and serv1ce_, prov1ded by orga.nlzed crime, By using these goods and

‘serv1ces, 1ts members contrlbute to the power and growth of organlzed

crime. As organlzed crime contlnues to flourlsh SO w1ll 1ts use’ of
| v1olence and threats of ~v1olence. | |
These amblvalent attltudes toward organlzed ch.me make acts of
v1olence by organlzed crime. dlfflcult to. solve. In MlaITL'L, less than 30“

‘ percent of all drug—related mu.rders result in arrest and only half of

1740



those result in conviction.60‘ In Chicago, of 999 gangland rmrdéré
between 1919 and 1966, only 17 resulted in convmt:.ons by 1966 61
Vlolence 1tself is, .of course, a major reason why organlzed cr:.n‘e

flgu.res are so dlfflcult to prosecute, and the mob's vast f:manc1al

resources that enable it to brl‘be‘ publlc officials lessen successful

‘ . 62
prosecutions. -
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A Introduction |

L.'U(é the roleof organized crime ‘in violence, its ‘role in
corruption must nOt be either ﬁininii?e‘d or exaggerated. Instead, :Lt
must be. seen ‘in the larger (.ontext of off1c1al corruptlon generally,
th.ch is :Ltself not a phenomenon that only recently appeared w1th the
Watergate scandal of the 19705.: Offlcml corruptlon has in fact en]oyed
a long and vfull hl tory in the Unlted States at all levels of
government- F‘ederal‘ state and local Indeed several well—respected
carmentators have v1ewed 1t as :therent 1n the polltlcal system,1 or at
"least as a necessary ev1l 2 | ‘

No one really knows whether OfflClal corruptlon is on the rlse or
whether our soc:Lety has only become more acutely aware of it. 3 In the
early 1800s, for example, it was common practice for members of Congress
‘ and members of the executlve to. represent prlvate J.nterests in brlnglng -
| claJ.ms agalnst the government In fact same of the more enterprlslng
| off1c1als actually advertlsed for customers in major Washlngton “
newspapers. Everyone knew that J.nfluence was openly for sale and the.
J.nfluence peddlers had no need to show false humlllty or. subtleness.4

By the m.ld—m.neteenth century, however, the nation had begun to
develop a more critical att:Ltude toward OfflClal morallty.5 Between :
1853. and 1854 Amerlca adopted its first four confllct of mterest

- statutes aJ_med at endlng off1c1al representatlon of prlvate :Lnterests 6

sYet these statutes by no means ended the problem. In the 18605 and

705, rallroad manlpulators dlsbursed hundreds of thousands of dollars in

er.bes to eager congressmen 7 Congress, however, held no monopoly on

corruptlon._ Scandals developed out of the post-C1v1l Wa.r era that |
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’ Grant Ade.nlstratlon .

‘ Grant S V:Lce pres1dents, Henry Wllson and Schuyler Colfax

votes to conv1ct him:

soiled the reputatlon of ma]or figures m the Grant Adm:m:.stratlon.8
Henry Adams sunmed up the 51tuatlon best when he stated "One might -

search the whole_ llst of Congress, Judiciary and Executlve durlng the

twenty—flve years 1870-1895 and fJ.nd llttle but damaged reputatlon."9

kB

Watergate too, was not the flrst White House hum11atlon. ‘I‘he

Credlt Mobeller and the’ Teapot Dame scandals are on par w1th Watergate. ‘

Although not dlrectly touchJ.ng the Pre51dent like Watergate they became

codewords for offJ.cal corruptlon 1n thelr respectlve ade.nlstratlons. -

Credlt Moblller was the catchword for all the corruptlon of the

10 Oakes AJmes, a Massachusetts republlcan ’ headed ‘

~the Unlon Pacific's rallroad—mllklng Credlt Mobeller of Amerlca. To
‘ insure the venture,s success, A:uresplaced 200 shares of the compahy"s

P stock with hlS fellow congressmen: where he e}{plained to his associates‘, |

1 He also sold stock to both of |

12

"thevwill do ‘the most good to us."

Corruptlon in the Grant Admlnlstratlon ' moreover, was not limited

to the Credlt Moblller scandal In 1876 the United States Senate tr:l.ed‘

‘the mlpeachment of W. W. Belknap, Grant s Secreta.ry of War, for selllng

! tradlng postshlps in the Indian terrltorles.v The Senate fell short by 5‘, o

13 General Orv111e E Babcock secretaxy to Grant,’

was also trled on charges of block;mg :anestlgatlon of the Whlskey RJ.ng

scandal a scandal that 1nvolved dlstlllers and Internal Revenue

N

‘:th.skey taxes.

collectors r who fals1f1ed reoords to. defraud the federal government of .
14 ‘ '

Teapot Dome meant to the Ha.rdJ.ng Admlnlstratlon what Credlt

Moblller meant to the Grant Admlnlstratlon and Watergate to -
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" brothel and part speakeasy

the Nixon Administration.‘ In 1926, the first criminal trials of the

15

Teapot Dome Oll scandal began with a cast of characters that ;anluded,

Secretary of Interlor Albert B. Fall Attorney General Harry M.

Daugherty, Veteran Bureau Director Colonel Charles R. Forbes, and Jess

Smith, operator‘ of the famous "Little Green House," which was part
L6 KR ’ o

Secretary Fall secretly leased government 0il reserves at Elk

HlllS, Callform.a to Doheny and the Teapot Dome Wyomlng reserves to

“.SJ.nclaJ.r w:.thout any canpetltlve bldd:mg. In return, Doheny S son
; dellvered a black bag contalnlng $100 000 to Fall Slnclalr gave ‘

$233,000 in llberty bonds, $85 000 1n cash and a herd of cattle for

Fall 's ranch. Fall was conv1cted of rece1v1ng a brlbe flned $100,000
(Wthh he" never pald) ' and sentenced to a year in jail. 1
Daugherty and Smlth sold immunity from prosecution, government

appomtments, crlmlnal pardons, -and llquor perm.lts. Daugherty stood

trial for h;Ls 1nvolvement in bribery and attempt to defraud the

government . He was vau‘i‘tted, but forced by President Calv‘inﬁcoolidge
to res;Lgn 18 | - | “

Forbes sw1ndled the country out of more than $200 mJ.llJ.on,
deprJ.VJ.ng dlsabled veterans of bandages, beddlng, and drugs. Forbes

sold these prov;Ls;Lons at a: fractlon of theJ.r cost for a klckback- he was

sentenced to two years in the penltentlary Smlth shot hJ.mself, as dld :

'Forbes legal counsel as a result of “the Veteran S Bureau ‘scandal.’

19

The leon Admlnlstratlon, of course, had 1ts scandal Shortly

o before 2 a.m. on June 17, 1972 a securlty guard at the Watergate Offlce |

Bu:leJ.ng found the latch of a baserrent door opened Police found and .

 arrested f;Lve men 1ns:.de the offlces of the Delrocratlc_National )
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chrm‘i"ttee,20 an 1n01dent that led to 1nvest1gatlons and revelatlons that
- would make "Watergate" synonymous w:Lth corrupt off1c1al practices. The
Watergate scandal revealed not only that prJ.nc1pal aldes of the |
President had engaged in 1llegal polltlcal esplonage agalnst pollticalg
opponents,’ but also that the Pres‘ident hiinself had repeatedly lied to
the American publlc 1n h:Lc attempts to av01d bemg lmked to a series of
| dlsclosu.res about Jllegal and unethlcal act1v1t1es. |
The Watergate break-in 1tself was part of an 1ntelllgence—
| f“gatherlng, pOllthdl esplonage scheme englneered by G. Gordon ledy and
approved by former Attorney General John M:Ltchell rI'he scheme was
backed by funds from the Conrmlttee to. Re—elect the Pres:Ldent (C‘REE‘.P)
- The break—ln generated the cover—up consplracy, Wthh ;anluded the
‘payment of hush money to the burglars, the destructlon of ev1dence, and |
~an attempt to 1nh1b1t FBI mvestlgatlon of the matter.‘ Subsequent in-
vestlgatlon demonstrated that the President and his aides were mvolved ‘
in or had knowledge of these :Lllegal aCthltleS.22 |
Other abuses of official’ power. were- also uncovered as a result of
the Watergate investigation‘.- In 1969 the President, without a COurt
order, ordered domestic wiretaps of members of the med:La and Whlte House
aides in an attempt to dlscover leaks about the secret Cambodian |
bomb1ngs.23ﬁ He used the IRS to harass those who made his "enemles

24

list." The Whlte House proposed creatlon of the "plumbers ," an extra—

| legal, prJ.vate, ‘Wh:Lte House operatlon whlch was responsnble for the

rEllsberg ‘break—m.?‘,sl The President was also fmancrally enrlched by
his offlce, the GSA reported that the Un:Lted States spent $1.9 mllllon
" on the leon hares.26 - | | |

' on hugust 8, 1974, President Richard Nixon announced his
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defylng coxmuttee subpoenas for ev1dence.

resignation. Abou‘r a week earllc_r, the IIouse Judlc'lary C,cm'nlttee had

: approved three artlclos of 1mpeachrru1t, (,harglng N:onn w1th obstruttlon
of justlce in connectlon w:Lth the Watergate scandal, abuse of

| pre31dent1al powers, and attemptlng ‘to J.mpede the 1mpeachment process by :

27 leon, however, was not the,

| only' casualty J.n Watergate Many of hlS aldes and associates also went‘
to jall for thelr roles.‘ Among those sentenced to jail were leon S
\;‘ personal attorney and fund—ralser Herbert W. Kalnback as well ‘as former
‘CREEP offlclals Jeb Stuart Magruder, Frederlck C. LaRue, and Herbert L.‘

‘Porter‘. Whlte House aldes John W Dean, Charles W, Colson, Dw1ght L

Chapln, John D. Ehrllchman and former Whlte House Chief of Staff H R

Haldeman also went to jail. Former U. S Attorney General and dlrector

of CREEP John P. M.Ltchell was conv1cted for his role in Watergate 28.,

The Watergate scandal thus shocked a natlon and brought to the forefront L

the problem of off1c1al corruptlon, 1t also brought about a closer

| » publlc scrutiny of off1c1al conduct

Although corruptlon is hardly new, 1t nonetheless remalns a- serlousy o
29

: challenge ‘in-a free soc1ety.~ : Govermrent has became a major force :Ln

our: economy it regulates more than half of the gross natlonal product |

Cand it determlnes to some degree who Wlll get rlch.30 Accordlngly,
abuse of off1c1al p031tlon and power has become attractive to many’

S government off1c1als. In the past decade, the number of. publlc

joff1c1als and. thelr confederates who have been mdlcted by the Federal

31

il government on corruptlon-related charges has mcreased 1, 100% Durlng
fthe past ten years, 2, 850 Federal state, and local offlc;\.als have been
: ‘charged w1th federal offenses.32 The majorlty have been conv1cted 33

i "The gullty have included a VJ.ce Pre51dent of the Unlted States,
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governors, "Federal:judges, ‘and "members‘ of Congress.3‘4
B Whlle organlzed crime plays a s1gn1f1cant role in off1c1al
corruptlon, it cannot be credlted w1th all or even most OfflCldl
oorruptlon. In fact organlzed crime’ s mvolvement in corrupthn is
often exaggerated At the same tJme, lt is often used for polltlcal
purposes.35 The Mafla, for example , is hardly the pr:.nc1pal source of
econom1c crn_mes, that status belongs to connlvmg whlte collar
bus1nessmen. The klckbacks or other favors that some corporatlons glve |

o pollt1c1ans r1val anythlng the mob offers.3§

Official corruptlon, hcwever, 1s a means of surv1val for organlzed |
37

heav11y in the cultlvatlon ‘of polltlcal frlendshlps and favors,38,

Apparently, each crime famlly has at least one person who acts. “the

B corrupter“ of law enforcement off1c1als and polltlcal off1c1als.3,9 ‘To

surv:Lve, organlzed crlme S goal must be to J.nfluence, evade, or null:Lfy

‘the processes of govenment 10 Indeed, off1c1al corruptlon 1s so |

J.mportant to organlzed crlme that any effectlve battle agalnst organlzed
41 ‘

‘ crlme must mclude a front against off1c1al corruptlon.

B. Patterns of: ‘Corruptlon'

"l». Lﬁglslatlve ;

crlme For th:Ls reason organlzed crime famllles are w1lllng to 1nvest*” ‘

In 1894 Mark Twa:.n, w1th hlS usual cynical w1t, wrote- : "It could

| probably be shown w1th facts and flgures that there is no dlstlnctly _
Amerlcan crlmmal class except Congress.“42 In 1976 1t was speculated o
? ' that "Congress is probably cleaner than usual and in the rm.dst ofa

| 'major tran51tlon to a more open ' professlonal and effectlve body.',?43

£ “ Scandals 1n the past few years have rc,v1ved and nourlshed the old

\ cyn1c1sm toward the moral make—up of thlS natlon S leglslators and
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legislatures.

Legislative corruption offers many rewards; it also takes many

‘forms ‘ Often it is more effective,‘ as well as. more efficient,f to

.receive favorable leg1 slative treatment than to try to frustrate

enforcement of ‘existing laws.44 Probably the nost common-—and most

familiar——form of legislative ‘corruptlon is brlbery. chlslators have

45

acceptedﬁbribes‘ in' exchange for their votes ™~ or :i.nfluence46 or efforts‘ |

47

to: affect the outcame of crlmlnal proceed.mgs. At the federal level

an area of abuse that has recelved recent attentlon has been sollcn.tlng_ :

and acceptn.ng er.bes from alJ.ens in the United States, on whose behalf a

congressman may 1ntroduce a spec1al bill authorlz:mg c:I.tJ.zenshJ.p.48

Although such bills are rarely successful, the1r :Lntroductlon may.

significantly delay deportation pr‘oceedings.49’

Closely related 1o br:.bery, extortlon 1s another camon. form of
leglslatlve corruptlon. Legl.,lators have been accused of extortlng

money from persons or companles who could recelve preferentlal or

50

adverse treat:nent at their hands. Mlsapproprlatlon of publlc funds

has also occurred I_eglslators have been conv1cted of paddlng the

payroll and extortlng klckbacks from thelr s’caffs,51 as well as paddlng

52

the1r payrolls with - frlends and relatlves. They have also taken

klckbacks frcm the awards of federal grant funds.53 |

In addltlon, leglslators, have cast votes in favor of powerful

benefactors :Lnstead of their constltuents. _ Often A because such e

‘ confllcts of mterest, although not exactly ethlcal are ot 1llegal

the leglslature 1tself or the voters must take actlon to correct the
55

s:.tuatlon T Unfortunately, leglslatlve or Voter actlon cannot always

be depended upon, and even after conVJ.ctlon, leglslators have been
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l_
re-elected. 56

What began in the spring of 1977 as an undercover investigatioh of
art theft, securities forgery, and counterfeiting, grew by February 1980
into an exposure of one of the most far-reaching scandals in
congressional history. A small scale anti-fencing investigation
developed into the elaborate corruption probe--called Abscam—-that
eventually cost $800,000., involved more than 100 FBI agents in five
cities, and resulted in the exposure of eight national legislators and
at least two dozen lesser officials.58

The initial sting operation involved a professional confidence man
acting as an agent for a fictitious free-spending sheik. Supposedly,
the sheik was seeking to make all the money he could before his country
fell to religious zealots, as Iran had; he also desired permanent
sanctuary in the United States, which would require the introduction of

9

a private immigration bill.5 The FBI thus set a stage across which a

host of public officials would parade, who eagerly bargained away their
public trust for personal monetary gain.

One of the first public officials to became involved in Abscam was

60

the Mayor of Camden, New Jersey, Angelo Errichetti, = who also served as

a state senator in New Jersey. Errichetti proved himself a valuable

participant. Not only did his participation uncover the ease with which

61

one might buy a casino license, =~ but it was also responsible for the

delivery of a United States Senator to the Abscam team,62

3 about the

Errichetti told New Jersey Senator Harrison Williams6
benevolent sheik. After meeting with the Abscam team, the Senator was
convicted of agreeing to take shares in a titanium mine located in

Virginia in exchange for using his senate seniority to get defense
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" contracts for the mine and for introducing an ‘in,migration‘ bill on behalf

of the ‘s\heik’. 64

'V.Williams, a key man 1n goverrmxent and defense
contracts knew the Amerlcan government s need of tltanlum as well as
“the potentlal value of mvolvement w1th the mlne, ‘he also knew that he
‘was ccxmu.ttlng a federal offense in helplng the m1n1ng venture in’ return'
' for a share of the proflt. Nonetheless, Wllllams accepted phony stock

| certlflcates in exchange for: hlS cooperatlon-—ln front of hldden FBI “

: ”cameras.6‘) & ‘ ‘ |
Other congressmen eager to a551st the shelk :anluded M:Lchael

67 68

: “Myers, 66 Raymond Lederer and John Murtha, ‘ all from Pennsylvam.a.

The FBI filmed Myers and Iederer acceptlng $50, 000 for thelr prcmlses to‘ :
sponsor personal mmlgratlon bllls.ﬁg Murtha agreed on fllm to accept |
~and Spllt $50, 000 w1th other p011t1c1ans, although he never showed to “
‘ ‘collect.m | | | | | |
'I'he congress:.onal part1c1pants were not l:um.ted to Pennysylvanla ‘
oongressmen “ New Jersey Congressma.n Frank 'I‘hcmpson prcmlsed to help the )

shelk solve his mmJ.gratlon problem in exchange for $50 000, whlle New

e ~York Congressman John Murphy took a br:Lbe to 1nsure the passage of ‘

,J‘Federal 1eglslat:|.on that would make the she:.k's shlpplng J_ndustxy more

prof:u.table.?l : South Carollna Congressman John Jenrette,72 whlle

/"nervous,‘7‘3 was no less eager7‘4 than hlS colleagues to a1d the sheJ.k for

the offered $50 000

The last congress:Lonal part1c1pant in the Abscam scheme was Rlchardb’

75

Kelley from ‘Florlda Kelley dld not meet w1th the Abscam team alone.

: Gan CLIlZO, a member of the Bonanno mob of New York accanpanled Kelley

76

to the meet:mg. ‘ Kelley stuffed $25 000 in his pocket telllng an '

undercover agent, "I! m glad to be assoc:Lated w1th you. viea let s do
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notorlous exan‘ple of executlve corruptlon 1n recent years.

charge of falllng to report $29, 000 of ‘income.

it."77 ‘

Although there were 1ndlcat10ns that more publlc off1c1als may have

been w:Llllng to sell. thelr publlc trust,7

79

the Abscam 1nvest1gatlon was -
termlnated in February 1980. When pub11c1zed the FBI S stlng
oonflrmed the public's cynlcal attJ.tude that money can buy a
legislator's loyalty and’ mfluence. |
‘2 Executlve |

Corxuptlon of the ‘executive branch apparently exists at all levels ‘
of goverrurent. It does not matter whether the executlve actlvely ‘
part1c1pates in corrupt - act1v1t1es or sm1ply tu.rns hlS head for
oorruptlon can flourlsh through sins of ‘omission as well as
oormuss1on.8,0

At the Federal level the Nixon Adm;Ln:Lstratlon serves as the most

81 Not only

‘did-a Pre31dent res1gn under a cloud of susp1c1on, but also a Vlce

’PreSJ.dent re51gned while under indictment. - In 1973 Vice Pre51dent

Splro T. Agnew reslgned from offlce and pleaded nolo contendere to a
82

At the tlme, Agnew was

under mvestlgatlon for multlple charges .of alleged consplracy, o

fextortlon, and br:.bery, he was sentenced to three years of unsuperv1sed o

probatlon and \fmed $10,000. 83 In 1981, a Maryland Judge ruled that,

desplte years of denlals, Agnew took thousands of dollars of er.bes

"'can 't take 1t with them "

wh:Lle he was chernor of Maryland and Vlce Pre51dent.8‘% The judge ‘

ordered Mr. Agnew to repay - the state $l47 500 in klckbacks ; w1th

interest of $101 235, AttOrneys for the taxpayers in the case clamed

E that the de0151on served as'a rressage to pule.c OfflClalS that they

85:
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At the state le.vel another Marylander was J.nvolved in corrupt:\.on. ‘

» In 1975, Governor Marvm Mandel and flve assomates were J_ndlcted on

‘ mall fraud and racketeern.nq charges. The twenty-three count indictment .

alleged that Mandel accepted l1nanc1al interests in. two frlends' o

busmesses in exchange for 1nf1uenu. 'ing rac,etrack leglslatlon 86“ Mandel *

and hlS codefendants were found gurlty in 1977 87

. A nessage seemed to emerge from the Manc,.el case that misconduct by -
publlc offlc,lals that mlght have been tolerated in “the past would be
attacked Uoday by the press and prosecutors.88 Fornor Tennessee
‘Governor Ray Blanton, who was., accused of one count of Ct,nsplracy, one
voount of extortlon, and elght counts of ma:Ll fraud . dJ.d not hend the
message. In testJ.mony during Blanton s kickback trlal Jack Ham, a
liquor store owner and former Blanton supporter descrlbed an alleged
arrangement that requlred him to ‘return twenty percent of hlS proflts to
Blanton in exchange for an exclus1ve retall llquor llcense. Mr ~Ham
also sald that he pald about $23,000 toward retlrJ.ng a bank loan for
f Blanton.89 Former alcohollc beverage chalrman, S J. Klng, teStlfl&..
that comnl551on off1c1als Voted the way' the Blanton organlzatlon wanted
: them to vote on grantlng and trar\sferrlng of llquor llcenses as "the way :
-we could help frlends " One of the biggest controvers:Les of the Blanton; g

admlnlstratlon centered on hlS dec:Lsmn to pardon a murderer who was the ‘

~son of one of hlS leadmg patronage off1c1als. He also granted

% executlve clemency to 51 other prlson 1rmvates. » As Mr Blanton prepared -

to flm.sh his term of offloe p aldes and relatlves went from one state

"regulatory agency to another securn_ng llcenses for themselves.90 Mr,

‘ Blanbon is only the third governor to be trled on Federal cr:munal

charges 91 ‘
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Corruptlon lS the most. pervas1ve and least controlled at the local

92 The corruption of the . mayors 1n New Jersey prov1de a class:.c |

93

: level
example of old style blg-cn.ty corruptlon. “A Federal grand jury
indicted Hugh J. ‘Addonlzlo, Mayor of Newark ’ New Jersey s largest city, | .
| ‘andl4 others, including 10 ‘public offlcials and aMafi‘a leader, on |
| charges of sharlng $1.5 million in klckbacks extorted from contractors
do:Lng busmess W.'Lth the city. Qn July 22 1970, Addom.zlo was conv1cted 3
'and sentenced to 10 years in prlson and f:.ned $25 000 34
| About 10 years later, another New Jersey mayor brought New Jersey
| , back into the lJ.melJ.ght of off1c1al corruptlon. Angelo J Errlchettl, L
‘Mayor of Camden, New Jersey during the Abscam J.nvestlgatlon, offered or “
gave FBI agents hot d:Lamonds, guns and’ munltlons, ‘ forged C D.'s., |
loounterfelt money, stolen palntlngs, leas:Lng contracts, mun1c1pal
garbage contracts, unreglstered boats for dope runn:.ng, the use of Port
"Camden as a narcotlcs depot, AtlantJ.c C1ty zon:Lng changes, a llst of
thlrteen brlbable state and c1ty OfflClalS, as well as. the vice chalrman o
‘ of the State (,as:mo Control Comnlss:.on, the chalrman of the. New Jersey
‘ State Democratlc Corrmlttee, and dlrectly or J.ndlrectly flve Unlted

95

' States Congressmen and a Senator. ErrlchettJ. hJ.mself was subsequently;

convicted of brlbery
- Suburban corruptlon, a form of local corruptlon , is also a rapJ.dly

‘growmg pattern of OfflClal corruptlon 1n the executlve branch 9.

Professor John A Gardmer, of the Umversa.ty of Illmo:.s at Chlcago
; CJ.rcle, observes. -

. In recent years we've seen mass:.ve corruptlon in
_connection with suburban real estate...crossroads
towns [are]l haVJ.ng to make decisions in which large v
dollar amounts are at stake. The: temptatlon to cash
in on it 1sgsomet1mes more than the town s off1c1als
- can resist.”’ :
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The corruption‘ scandals in Baltimore County that éventually led to
Sper Agnew S res1gnatlon are a Lextbook example of the new- suburban
‘, oorruptlon.98 Baltimore County experienced rapid growth after World War
II, Wthh J.ncreased demands for publlc serv1ces, partlcularly hlghways.
‘ Suburban voters were w1llmg to pay handsomely to get to work and
contractors were w;Lll;Lng to do most anything to get a piece of the

actlon. ‘ 'I‘he absence of effectlve bidding regulatlons placed ‘a great :

deal of power over government contracts in the Baltlmore County

executlve.fg;g‘,f Both Splro Agnew and Marvm Mandel got the,lr starts as

Baltlmore County execut;wes.?oo,

Where there 1s extens;we developement act1v1ty and regulatory

‘dec151on maklng, corruptlon often follows,101 In Atlantlc Clty,

pattern of clo e relatlons between casino developers and local ’
‘ gover“nment off1c1als has emerged since gamle.ng was approved in 1976 102‘_
Other regu-latory agencres are often snmllarly vulnerable to corrupt

”practices.'103 quuor control boards are often J.nvolved in

corrupt:Lon.104 It is a common fact that llquor llcenses are sold by
.‘V'local pollt1c1ans and that operatmg v1olatlons are 1gnored in return

B for undercover payn'ents in the form of. canrpalgn contrlbutlons. As such

corrupt busmessmen as well as organlzed crime have a major stake 1n the =

~ regulating’ liquor retallJ.ng.l,Os

3. CrlmJ_nal Justice System

The ex:Lstence of organlzed crlme——or any other form of systematlc .
unlawful behav10r——depends on favorable treatment from the crlmlnal
vjustlce system 106‘ Each of t.he prlnc;Lpal components of the cr:unlnal l
justloe system——law enforcement prosecutlon, and courts——are closely |

ot mterrelated.- If one sector is effectlvely corrupted , it nulllfles and
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leads to the”corruptionJOf the‘other sectors.107 Nelther corrupt
bu51nessmen nor organlzed crlme has bought or needs to buy out the
entlrevsystem.{ Successful corruptlon of key 1nd1v1duals ln any j" o
‘component allows unlawful behav1or to contlnue v1rtually unabated 108
“Such corruptlon can take dlfferlng forms in key sectors of the crlmanal '
justlce system Prevent:ve corruptlon con51sts of efforts to corrupt |
‘lthe proccss of. law enforcement, thus obtalnlng perm1s51on to operate
unlawful act1v1t1es w1thout 1nterference., Ant1c1patory corruptlon is.
the corruptlon of judges, prosecutors, and key p011t1c1ans 1n
ant1c1patlon of: needed favors.‘ Interferlng corruptlon con51sts of
‘\‘attempts to hlnder or 1nterfere w1th the successful outcome of- the
crlmlnal justlce process. Interference occurs at all levels, durlng the
1n1t1al lnvestlgatlon, the executlon of ralds prosecutlon, |
‘uadjudlcatlon, the 1mp051t10n of: sentences, and the correctlon
process.’® |
Legal discretion*accorded to prosecutors'and judges'nakes themsxwﬁ
| favorlte targets of those seeklng favors through corruptlon.' Because
‘thls dlscretlon 1s seldom rev1ewable, detectlng 1ts abuse 1s dlfflcult.‘“‘
‘Dollar for dollar, however, the best buy 1n the protectlon ‘of crlmlnal
_‘act1v1t1es,1s-the prosecutor., He has the cru01al dec151on whether to

”prosecute or not 110 He can prov1de 1nnmn1ty from legal accountablllty."f'

bProsecutors nay be corrupted 1n an effort to buy protectlon from“

‘,prosecutlon,111 or to sabotage a case.l12 A prosecutor may also ald

’&‘organlzed crime by v1rtue of hlS own greed 13 It 1s, however, not
‘necessary for a prosecutor to be corrupt to be useful to organlzed

' crune In order to battle organlzed crlme effectlvely, the prosecutor

,,must afflrmatlvely and creatlvely use the 1egal tools avallable to
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to hinr-the grand jurf subpoena, the innmnityigrant, civil contempt, the
~selective threat of perjury‘prosecution, electronic.SUrveillance, etc.,
A less than dediéatedll4 or less than able prosecutori}5 can
1nadvertently assure organlzed Crime the same pro—

,tectlons a corrupt one could. Often, “the app01ntment of such a

prosecutor ls the‘aim}of organlzed‘Crlme‘s con51derable‘pollt1cal ‘
influence;

_Next to the corruptlon of the procecutor, the corruptlon of a judge‘

‘Vrproves to be‘most valuable to organlzed crlme Patterns of schedullng,
adjudlcatlon, and sentenc1ng all fall w1th1n the court's dlscretlon.

Trial judges may be pald116 or demand favorsl7

for favorable rullngs.
At the trlal 1tself, verdlcts nay be dlrected 1nstructlons may be:
tailored to produce ‘not gu1lty verdlcts, or. the process aborted by -

‘ 1mpos1ng only ncuunal fines where 1nprlsonment 1s 1nd1cated 18‘ After

?,ff,g N f‘ conviction, appellate judges, too, may be bought, 19 -
Not only is prosecutorlal or jud1c1al corruptlon difficult to
detect, but once detected 1t is dlfflcult to prosecute Conventlonal
‘heV1dence-gather1ng tools are often 1nsufflclent. As elected or:
‘vapp01nted off1c1als, judges and prosecutors are flgures of stature 1n
the ccnnmnlty. Since brlbery is a prlvate act between w1lllng
‘ participants, the’prosecutlon of a brlbery charge‘depends pr1nerily?on n

the testlmony of an accompllce, a w1tness whose credlblllty can be"

“easlly 1mpeached The 1nvolvement of organlzed crlme flgures guarantees‘

L ‘that any w1tnesses are llkely to be fearful of testlfylng.120

Nonetheless, s1gn1flcant 1ndlctments and conv1ctlons have been obtalned

if only for per]ury rather than for the substantlve offense.1211
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b. Investigative122 .

Law enforcement officers are on the front line of
society's war against crime. Perhaps that is why
there are so many casualties among thﬁ:,‘group -
not from bullets but fram corruptlon.

Corruption among investigative agencies has been a serious problem for
‘many years. Since be_fcre ‘the”turn of the century',‘ for exanple, major'
probes of police corruption in New York City have occurred on an ‘average
of one every twenty y’ears. OOrrupt”conditJ'ons exposed by one

mvestlgatlon seem substantlally unchanged when the next mvestlgatlon

comes along.124 Although not the only form of off1c1al corruptlon,

pollce corruptlon constltutes a substantlal portlon.125 The sheer

numbers of pollce plesent more opportunltles for corruptlon.l‘26 It is‘

also possible to corrupt a pollce officer in more overt ways than a |

127

judge or prosecutor. Pollce corruptlon presents a spec1al area of *

concern. When the law enforcement apparatus ofa ccxrmunlty is ta:Lnted,

‘ oorruptlon can flourlsh in the whole system 128 One of the most

Jmportant concerns, too, is the public attltude police corruption
- creates. To most people, the police officer is the'-law. An individual

officer's corruption, thérefore, may be interpreted as ‘corruption of the

entlre system 129

From the perspectlve of corruptlon, polJ.ce offlcers have been

classlfled :Lnto three groups.

" the meat eaters. The blrds ]ust fly up hlgh 'I‘hey

don't eat anything either: because they are honest or ‘
because they don't have any good opportunltles. ~You've

got to figure that half the force is in jobs...The Tactical
Police Force and the Safety Division, for example...where
there are little or no pickups. - The grass eaters, well :
they'll accept a cup of coffee or a free meal or a television
set wholesale fram a merchant, but they draw a line. The

meat eaters are different. They re out looklng. They're on
a -pad with gamblers, they deal in junk138r they 11 compromlse
a hcm;\.c1de mvestlgatlon for money. . ..
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The term " sollc1t1ng" descr:bes the aCthl’lS of the "meat—eaters," ‘
those offlcers who aggres:wely mJ.suse thelr pollce power for personal |
‘gain, The act1v1t1es of ‘such pollce offlcers are partlally condltloned
by the opportunltles thelr ass;.gnments present to them, that is,
_plalnclothesmen generally have m:)re opportunlty than ‘unlfonned police
and those entrusted with: control of vice generally’ have mo‘re | w
‘opportunities than those assigned to direct‘traffic.”’v Accordingly, the
ikn.nds and sources of ‘payoffs prov;Lde a convenlent orgam.zlng prlnc:Lpal
- v‘for exam:.nlng the practlces encompassed by the term .,ollcn.t:mg.
| "Pads" or "steady notes" are names glven to a regular payment of

131

money for v:Lolat;Lons of the laws A pad may be arranged under threat

v\;of a.rrest or complalnt ‘ Under same cncumstances ,a person startlng an.
1llegal operatlon will arrange beforehand to make payments 1n order to '
‘J.mprove his opportunltles for bargalnlng over the size of the |
' f_”tr1bute.132 Typlcally, pads are cooperatlve ventures that protect

, intentionally unlawful act1v1t1es.‘ Thus, canplalnts are few, and all‘ b

“'pa.rtlc:Lpants have a vested interest in ma.klng their conduct as hard to
trace as possn_ble. Pads are collected by a "bagman“ and pooled for ;
‘dlstrlbutlon to those in on the actlon., Cormmand offJ.cers sometlmes have

-a separate pad and when they part:Lc1pate in the general pad, it 'is’

133

‘ usually on a multlple share basn.s. ‘The . share per man or the amount

134

pa:Ld by a br:l_ber is known as: the "nut " Understandably ’ long-term ,

‘; fJxed-locatlon enterprlses are the most frequent sou.rce of pads.135

'Ihe numbers racket and other overt gambllng operatlons present a
clear opportunlty for this klnd of brlbery. 136 The Knapp Comnlssn.on
reported that the nut for protectlon of gambl:u.ng in some New York: C;Lty

dlStrlCtS ran as hlgh as $1500 per pollceman per month.- Reass:.grm‘ent = |
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of entlre plamclothes squads resultlng from corruption mvestlgatlons

: mdlcabes that the practlce was w1despread and perva51ve.138 In

- addlt:\.on gambllng pads often involve supervisory police personnel 139
\ The ‘pad 1n a gambl:mg operatlon pays for protectlon from all but
token police harrassment. The services bought mclude freedom from -
arrest by offlcers on the pad and preventlon of or warnlngs about
;\mpendlng ralds by. those not on the take.“"‘]'0 : When arrests under ‘
“ pressure of a quota are. needed the gambler often is allowed to select
Can underllng, w1th a relatlvely clear record or a pald-off addict as a. L
."stand 1n.“141‘ | : | “
Heavrly regulated lng.t:Lmate mdustrles are another lucratJ.ve
‘source of polJ.ce payoffs. The constructlon mdustry must deal w1th a
maze of regulatlons concernlng bulldlng techm.ques, spec1f1catlons of
practlces standards ‘and safety measures. : A large constructlon pro;ect‘ ‘
in New York CJ.ty, for example, may be requlred +to obtaln as many as 130
perm.lts to achleve technlcal compllance w1th all regulatlons, a task
Wthh is VJ.rtually :meossn.ble to: fulflll ‘I‘hose charged w1th
enforcement, :anludlng the pollce, have been pald for many years to
1gnore m;mor 1nfract10ns.142' The pads for polJ.ce, usually SOllClted
, under threat of harassrrent,1‘43 tend to be small since only minor

penaltles are 1mposed for bulldlng code v1olatlons.

Motels, hotels, restaurants, -and most J.mportantly, llquor stores :

‘and bars are llcensed prenu.ses subject to regulatlon and perlodlc |

o lJ.cense renewal . The dependence of these buslnesses on: the contlnuatlon'
‘of their llcense status has tradltlonally put them at the mercy of those‘.&
’persons charged Wlth enforcmg the regulatlons controllmg such - |

establlshments, mcludmg the pollce.mfl ; The;method of sollc;.tatlon
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| i 1;<5 conmon : 145 Lho policeman flndlng a techm.cal violation threatens to
ondanger Lhc operaLlon S 11C'€1’lu0 by flllng an off1c1al rcport The |
price for protcctlon from harassrrent is agreed upon and regular

: collectJ.ons are made. | Y'he monty pald protects 'chc, lJ.censed premlses -

~ from harassment » and in the case of bars , it may also pay for alterlng
pO.l.l(_C repor: ts of: ngth bctwoc‘n pa.t_rorls.lé6 .ane protectlon of - the
license 1 V.L'Ldl Lo contlnuatlon of the bus1ness, thc trlbutes dcmanded |
alc 1i kcly to be. large. ‘rlhe s1tuatJ.on is e}(acerbated by the frequent
use of bars by persons mvolved in other 1llegal conduct, ‘1nclud1ng

: prostltute . drug dealers, and petty fences.

Other busmcsses seeklng protectlon from enforcement of laws
‘ ‘affectlng them may also pay tribute. Where parklng rest:rlctlons are

strlct, restaurants, cab and trucklng compan::.es, and manufacturers may |

147

pay to have v1o_latlons overlooked Unllcensed bars may pay -in order

. to continue in operati"c‘)n.148 Pads may also be pald for non-enfor ement, .

149

" of Sabbath lawS and regulatl_ons concernlng peddlers. PrOStltut; Ori, e

” particularly in fixed locationssuch as brothels and massage parlors, is

also a source of regular payments 150

A "score" or "shakedown“ isa one—t:n.me payment that buys the

: freedom of a person sub]ect to arrest.lsl_ Partlcularly in narcotics

cases152 the payoffs can be startlngly large.153 Whlle 3

. narcotlcs—related brnbery has been tradltlonally regaxded as "dlrty"

| ‘money, chang.Lng mores and hlgh proflts '1re motlvatlng mcreasmg i
relaxatlon of Lhe tradltlonal ll’lh.LblLlOl’l against such brlbery 54‘_ Ing
y : addltJ.on, lenlcnt courts glV(_ polJ.ce a J.atlonallzatlon for prmeed:.ng

v1gllante—style to "punlsh" drug offendera.

T Motorlsts and tow—truck operators prov1de a steady source of small
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L ,Lcansharks and fences may b(_ scored at w:Lll

score* y Whon ‘a motorlst dopends on.a drlvers' 11c,onse for his

11vo]:hood and can .Lose it for too many traffic cﬂ.atlons, he may be

“Lunptod Lo offer a bribe for ovcrlookmg an 1nfract10n.155‘ ‘ﬂ‘ow tru‘ck

compcuucs often obtaln repair bus1ness from the owners of VOthleS they !

tow 'I‘herefore, tow1ng companles compete for: ‘th:ts opportunlty‘ to get_ ;

‘Lhe h:Lghly proLrLablo rcpalr bus1ness. - The polfce may  be ‘paid»to steer Ry

“buslncss to one c,ompany or another and to 1gnore the trafflc V:Lolatlons

comnul-ted on thc way Lo the scene. 156 | ‘
Pollcemen on the take may also score any other target of

. opportunlty that presents J.tself Gambllng p prostltutlon, bars, and

‘ cons‘tructlon,‘ sites may be scored 1f not protected by a pad.’ 157

158 A score is’ J_nherently a -
less cooperatlve venture than a pad ’ wh:Lch lmu.ts to sone degree the
pollcemen on the take. Complalnts are more frequent in ‘score cases than
in pad cases, particularly if the extorted party comes to belleve that |
“he could have avoided conv1ctlon after the payoff ‘ | |
B The 1llegal w:Lthhold;Lng of money or contraband selzed wh:Lle_ maklng
an arrest is closely related to the score. Normally, money and L
“contraband are’ held‘as eV:Ldence. Gambllng and narcotlcs arrests
‘ frequently mvolve conflscatlon of large sums of money and large

159 These mater:Lals are' sometimes w1thheld for.

personal use’ or for use in buylng J.nfornatlon from mfonnant’s.“o

quantltles of contraband .

; There

have been reports of pollcemcn—addlcts and pollcemen-pushers who obtaln ‘

‘drugs in thl.: manner.l6l“ “ | S " E
Pollce may use Lllegally w1thheld drugs for “paddlng" the quantlty -

:)of drugs found in the posses.slon of an arrested person ' thus upgradlng

the offense with th.c,h the persons arrested w1ll be chargcd A relaLod g
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phonomonor\ in Lhc plantlng of drugs on an :mnoccnt porson is known as

"Llaklng" :‘ "fmnlng w162

Padding. and flaklng are sometm\cs motivated
by ‘arrest quota ‘pre‘Ssur‘es, the decslre ‘to "get" someone whom the

pol 1cunan "knows" is gu:LJ ty ' or the dcslre to use the arrest leuatlon o

for a score or for extortlng 1n1:ormatlon. oA varlety of other abuses of
- police auLhor:LLy and powcr ey accompllsh sJ.nu.lar cnds. Illegal
E SRR oarches and wuctaps may be used to sa.t up a score or obtaln o

. mlormatlon. 163 Pcrjured appllcatlons for search warrants are. a corrmon”‘_‘»

: tOOl for obtalnlng :anr:Lmlnatlng ev1dence.l6‘,1 Pollcemen may extort
: ;Lnf ormatlon from. reluctant mformants. Rublnsteln s study of the ‘
Phlladelphla pollce department has’ led hJ.m to conclude that these o _‘
: ‘1lJ oqal Lorruleon—Lac:LllLatlng technlqucs are ‘an Lmavo:Ldable reallty ol o
vice law cnforcenLnL 165 - i
| (,orrupt pollc,e offlcers are sometlmes pald for serv:Lces they
| render, such as- selllng confldentlal mformatlon to unauthorlzed persons.166‘
) 'I'he mformatlon sold may be as harmless as a list of vehlcles held 1n

" .pollce pounds (whlch could be sold to a flnance company seeklng to

‘ rc,possess thc cars) or as unportant as Lhe time and locatlon oL a

planned rald or the fact that a partlcular lnleldU.al is under offlc:Lal ot

mvestlgatlon.l67 Pol:.cemen sometlmes protect ¢ actlvely or pass:Lvely,

168

planned 1llegal operatlons such as hljackmgs. Some pol:Lce accept

court-related payoffs. The money pald may buy a weakly wrlﬁten or

' technlcally deflc:Lent complalnt that Wlll result 1n a dlst.ssal.

‘Alternatlvely, eVJ dence or testlmony can be altered to assure

suppresslon of key ev1dence, reductlon of charges, or acqulttal 69 In 7
_ 1960 a New York Clty grand jury probed alteratlons of pollce

3 S | records.170,



One last area of active corruptlon must be notod When rcspondlng

to a bur glary report, corrupl- pollc,cmcn ‘have been reportcd to ctc* al
goods or merchandlsc,, thus compoundlng the theft.,l']} M Some offlcers will "
172

call in false l-eports to galn access 'Lo bulldlngs for ‘theft. Ina
similar, if ‘rrore“grisly ’vein, COrrupt policemen have been known . to
remove valuables Jlom the body ol a person who dies befor(. arr1v1ng at a i
hospltal“ If Lhe pcrson is known to have lived alone, hls apartment or
home may be looLcd by thc pollce.l73 |
'I'he patterns of corrupt behav:Lor just descrlbed are what is n‘ost

often called police corruptlon 'lhcse practlces are restrlcted in the “ ‘
view of most 1nvest1gators, ‘to a m:Lnorlty of the- n‘embers of any ‘
;particularyforc‘e.lm Other actlva_tles——arguably :anolV:Lng less +han

"corrupt“ behav:.or——lncluae e acceptance of gratultles oi:fered to a

pollceman by Vlrtue of his OfflClal capa01ty These practlces are best e

‘descrlbed as "acceptlng." 'Ihey are J.mportant because of the:Lr
- pervasweness and the resultant clJ.mate in Wthh a "code of 31lence"

among pollcemen develops ’ 175,

’Pollcemen‘who are themselves vulnerable
“are less llkely to expose other corrupt pollcemen for fear of ‘
endangering thelr own, pos1tlons. Accord:.ngly ’ 1t has been theorl?ed
that the pervasrveness of ' acceptlng encourages those pollcemen w1th a
: predilection for engaging in more' ‘serious forms of ‘corruptlon‘.l76“

Flnally, acceptance of - gratultles may came to be regarded as a rJ.ght

177
“that is cnforceable by extortlon. ‘

The most w1despread forms of acceptlng :anolve f.ree meals, drlnks, ‘i

- hotel rooms, and other day to day amenltles. A restaurant or bar may

decllne to charge a polJ.ceman for food or drlnks or may charge at a

reduced rate. The est,abllslrment'my be merely expressing good will or
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Fa numerous c1tatlons ‘

may be encouraging: police presence in hopes of avoiding trouble’ from
patrons. “The establwhmcnt may be buylng cons1deratlon, dlscrc,tlon, and
qulck response :m Lhc, event of future trouble. S:LmJ larly, hotels w1ll

frequ(.ntly give gratultles to pollcemen in: the form ol Lree or reduced

*rate rooms and meals. The corner drugstore may donate an occasmnal

pack of clgarcttcs and the grocery an occas:.onal oandy bar. Abuses of‘

these "pr1v1leges are poss;lble. Pollcemen have become alcohollcs

because they checked Liquor ]‘icenses too ‘frequently;l—ls the o

‘re.stauranteur who cuts out frec_ meals may fJ.nd hnmself harassed w1th

179

A sllghtly more suspect form of accept:n.ng parallels the famlllar

pract_lce of Chrlsunas Llpb to the nowsboy, mallman, and garbage

‘collector Often voluntarlly, local merchants and bus:messman

.contrlbute to a Chrlstmas pack that 1s divided between pollcemen serv;\.ng

the area.180 The acceptance of Voluntarlly offered tips- may be

. formallzed into systematlc snakedowns of local merchants. Investlgatlon :

of such shakedowns may expose partlc.lpatlon of hlgh ranklng pollce

of f1c1als.]81‘ ‘I‘hc,se and SJ.m:Llar voluntary payments SOIIEt.Lm’...S represent

express:.ons of gratltude by c:.v1llans for work done, as when an owner of
a ‘stolen car LlpS the pollceman who recovered 1t. Pollc‘emenmay even

tip their fellows who are not in a position to obtain gifts fram '
| | 182 |

~civilians to expedite routine clerical work‘. ' v

Corruptlon may go Deyona individuat Venla.thy. ~There-are severall

‘dlfferent ways 1o corrupt the process of law enforcertent 1tself It is

posslble to corrupt vlrtuall_y an ent;re pollce force..1 83 2 AIt' 1s_,

however ’ notv terribly ,.effiCient or l-economical. It mkes much more sense

- to gai’n‘control‘ of “police policy by’ gaining control of key. . :
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ir1('1.'1v;i.duals.w4 By tnis weo nicque, the day-to-day performance of the

honest nen nay be undermined or nullified. It is possible , for coxanple '
to adopt the policy of a "wideeopen t.OWn."‘185 It is also possible Lo |
have Lhc department organized so that the need to corrupt ig mlm_mlzed
or the- pOSSlblllty of effectlve polJ.ce actJ.on VJ.rtually eliminated. A
classic technique of LOI‘.LUPLlOn is. the V1(,c squad pattorn w186 Police .
activity agaJ ngt the ma _JOI' Cl’ldeVOI‘ of organized crime is centralired |
in one spc,clal squad in the departm(,nt Men not assigned Lo that unit‘["
are requlred to refer organlzed matters to the excluslve unit. It ‘is
thus necessary only to corrupt that unJ.L to subvert polJ.ce actJ.v:Lty
Indeed, it may ‘not even be necessary to corrupt that unJ.t. If you
‘organuo and operatc, it so poorly that its members become known
throughout the communlty, its effec,t:l.veness will term.'Lnate WJ.thout the
necesslty of actual corruptlon 187
| Law enforcement may also be aff:.rmatlvely corrupted | It is
posslble to use the pol:l.ce to eliminate your corrpetzl.tors.188 Selectivé X
law enforcement has its advantages. It helps‘ create an .i‘llusion of
honest enforcement, while it secures the reality of illegal ‘monopoly
It i